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MONTGOMERY COUNTY
FINANCIAL CONDITION

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Entity's
Program Title Number Number Disbursements
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed Through Ohio Department of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities
Social Services Block Grant - Title XX 93.667 MR-57 429,205
Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid) 93.778 (A) 4,108,929
Passed Through Ohio Department of Mental Health
Projects for Assistance in Transition From Homelessness 93.150 35-PATH-98-01 44,885
Social Services Block Grant - Title XX 93.667 MH-34 626,275
Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid) 93.778 (A) 6,296,691
Block Grants For Community Mental Health Services 93.958
CMHS Block Grant - Kids 35-BG-AD-99-01 28,809
CMHS Block Grant - Community Plan 35-BG-AD-99-02 61,275
Total Block Grants For Community Mental Health Services 90,084
Passed Through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services
Block Grants For Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959
SAPT Block Grant - Federal Per Capita (A) 1,784,585
SAPT Block Grant - UMADAOP (A) 187,079
SAPT Block Grant - HIV/AIDS 57-57735-01-IVDO-T-97/00-9160 36,331
SAPT Block Grant - HIV/AIDS 57-57735-01-IVDO-T-99/00-9160 179,251
SAPT Block Grant - NOVA 57-57424-01-WOO-T-99/00-9043 75,139
SAPT Block Grant - Project Cure 57-57640-01-WFS-T-99/00-9009 73,704
SAPT Block Grant - AIDS Outreach (A) 32,448
SAPT Block Grant - MVH 57-57731-01-WFS-T-99/00-9607 28,832
SAPT Block Grant - Drugs Don't Work 57-57473-01-DFW-P-99/00-9243 15,000
SAPT Block Grant - Youth Possibilities in Dayton 57-57936-02-YMENT-P-00-9832 4,095
Total Block Grants For Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 2,416,464
Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid) 93.778 (A) 484,537
Total United States Department of Health and Human Services 14,497,070
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
(Direct Programs)
Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-95-UC-39-0004 231,728
B-96-UC-39-0004 774,550
B-97-UC-39-0004 643,170
B-98-UC-39-0004 1,738,943
B-99-UC-39-0004 130,951
Total Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants 3,519,342
Emergency Shelter Grant 14.231 S-98-UC-39-0001 69,883
S$-99-UC-39-0001 3,338
Total Emergency Shelter Grant 73,221
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 M-96-UC-39-0004 98,205
M-97-UC-39-0004 295,080
M-98-UC-39-0004 469,698
M-99-UC-39-0004 12,006
Total HOME Investment Partnership Program 874,989
Lead Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing 14.900 OHLAG0056-95 1,104,479
Total United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 5,572,031
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
(Direct Programs)
National Criminal History Improvement Program 16.554 95-RU-R39-9049 25,094
98-RU-R39-9049 24,306
Total National Criminal History Improvement Program 49,400
Criminal Justice Discretionary Grant Program 16.574 98-DG-E01-0011 153
98-JB-013-A056 52,002
Total Criminal Justice Discretionary Grant Program 52,155



MONTGOMERY COUNTY
FINANCIAL CONDITION

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Entity's
Program Title Number Number Disbursements
Victims of Crime Act 16.575 99-VA-CHAE-372 4,939
Byrne Formula Grant Program 16.579 99-DG-D02-7549 15,000
Title V of Violent Crime Drug Court Planning 16.585 96-DC-MX-0019 53,140
Drug Court Implementation 97-DC-VX-0103 65,101
99-DC-VX-0167 18,957
Total Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 137,198
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 16.592 96-LB-VX-3170 69,371
97-LB-VX-3170 32,099
98-LB-VX-3170 61,622
99-LB-VX-4079 4,855
Total Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 167,947
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grant - COPPS Ahead 16.710 96-DG-G0O1-9060 359,375
97-JJ-CPI-0241 90,508
96-1002 215,514
Total Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grant - COPPS Ahead 665,397
Passed Through Ohio Department of Justice
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention 16.540
Juvenile Justice - Start Right Enhancement 96-JV-T50-5004 11,070
98-JV-T50-5028 10,228
97-JJ-DP2-0235 11,364
Juvenile Justice - Project RHAP 98-JJ-DP2-0235 35,958
Total Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention 68,620
Victims of Crime Act 16.575 98-VA-GENE-246 77,938
98-VA-CHAE-372 21,941
Total Victims of Crime Act 99,879
Byrne Formula Grant Program 16.579
Omnibus Crime Control & Safe Streets Act 96-RS-SAT-1010 161,956
Anti-Narcotics Control - Lighthouse Sex Offenders 96-DG-F02-7354 26,778
Anti-Narcotics Control - Sheriff C.A.N.E. 98-DG-A01-7526 8,347
Anti-Narcotics Control - Sheriff C.A.N.E. 99-DG-A01-7526 87,090
Anti-Narcotics Control - Drexel Assistance Project 98-DG-B01-7560 72,081
Anti-Narcotics Control - Domestic Violence - Crisis Response PT1 99-DG-D02-7547 84,171
Anti-Narcotics Control - Domestic Violence - Crisis Response PT2 99-DG-D02-7548 103,168
Anti-Narcotics Control - Domestic Violence - Court Project MMC/MOR 99-DG-D02-7549 54,026
Anti-Narcotics Control - Builders Academy 97-DG-F02-7550 19,697
Anti-Narcotics Control - Builders Academy 98-DG-F02-7550 14,104
Anti-Narcotics Control - Day Treatment 98-DG-F02-7552 95,377
Total Byrne formula Grant Program 726,795
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 97-WF-VA2-8908 62,403
98-WF-VA2-8908 39,535
99-WF-VA2-8908 17,468
Total Violence Against Women Act 119,406
Total United States Department of Justice 2,106,736
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Passed Through Ohio Bureau of Employment Services
Job Training and Partnership Cluster:
Job Training and Partnership Act 17.250 9-P3-04-00-00 3,320,806
Employment and Training Assistance-Dislocated Workers 17.246 A-P3-04-00-00 117,611
Total United States Department of Labor - Job Training and Partnership Cluster 3,438,417
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Passed Through Ohio Department of Transportation
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 PID-1537 234,606
PID-4853 62,918
Local Alcohol Programs 99-13-02-J7-J 28,405
Total United States Department of Transportation - State and Community Highway Safety 325,929



MONTGOMERY COUNTY
FINANCIAL CONDITION

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Entity's
Program Title Number Number Disbursements

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services

Drug Free Schools and Communities - DAYBREAK 84.186A 57-57936-01-DF S-P-99-9075 50,462
Drug Free Schools and Communities - PRESCHOOL/FAMILY PREV 57-57936-01-DF S-P-99-9075 21,500
57-57936-01-DF S-P-00-9075 12,736

57-57737-01-DFS-P-99-9718 44,803

Drug Free Schools and Communities - WSU CDD 57-57737-01-DFS-P-00-9718 16,115
Total Drug Free Schools and Communities 145,616

Passed Through Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Corrections
Adult Education - State Grant Program 84.002 415-003 15,100
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education

Special Education Cluster:

Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 066159-6B-SF-99P 89,688
Special Education - Pre-School Grants 84.173 066159-PG-SI-99P 78,585
Total Special Education Cluster 168,273
Innovative Education Program Strategies - Title IV 84.298 066159-C2-S1-99 2,810
Total United States Department of Education 331,799

UNITED STATES SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION
Passed Through Ohio Department of Mental Health

Social Security Research and Demonstration - Job Incentive Focus 96.007 (A) 14,911

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education Division of School Food Service

National School Lunch 10.555 070474 69,196
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 26,356,089

(A) Project number not known or not applicable.
The notes to the schedule of federal awards expenditures is an integral part of this statement.



MONTGOMERY COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITION

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures (the Schedule) summarizes activity of the
County’s federal award programs. The Schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

NOTE B - SUBRECIPIENTS

The County passes through certain federal assistance received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development, the State Department of Mental Health, and the State Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services to other governments or not-for-profit agencies (subrecipients). As described in Note A,
the County records expenditures of federal awards to subrecipients when paid in cash.

The subrecipient agencies have certain compliance responsibilities related to administering these federal
programs. Under Federal Circular A-133, the County is responsible for monitoring subrecipients to help
assure that Federal awards are used for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations and the
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and that performance goals are achieved.

NOTE C - NUTRITION CLUSTER

Cash receipts from the U.S. Department of Agriculture are commingled with State grants. It is assumed
federal monies are expended first.

NOTE D - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS

Certain federal programs require that the County contribute non-federal funds (matching funds) to support
the federally funded programs. The County has complied with the matching requirements. The expenditure
of non-federal matching funds is not included on the schedule.

NOTE E - PROGRAM INCOME

In addition to federal receipts shown, $26,149 of CDBG program income was received during 1999. These
funds were used to offset 1999 program expenditures.

NOTE F - OTHER FEDERAL ASSISTANCE

During 1999, the County received other federal assistance totaling $140,054 as proceeds from the sale of
assets obtained through federal drug seizures.

NOTED G - JOB TRAINING AND PARTNERSHIP CLUSTER

Monies received by the County for the Job Training and Partnership Act and the Employment and Training
Assistance-Dislocated Workers programs will be audited by other auditors in accordance with Power Ohio.



One First National Plaza
130 West Second Street
Suite 2040
Dayton, Ohio 45402
Telephone  937-285-6677
800-443-9274
Facsimile 937-285-6688
www.auditor.state.oh.us

STATE OF OHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable County Commissioners
Honorable County Auditor
Honorable County Treasurer
Montgomery County

451 West Third Street

Dayton, Ohio 45422

To the Honorable County Commissioners, Auditor and Treasurer:

We have audited the financial statements of Montgomery County, Ohio (the County) as of and for the year
ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated July 21, 2000, wherein we noted that
the County changed its method of accounting for governmental and proprietary fixed assets and
compensated absences. Additionally, assets and cash restricted for debt associated with the Reibold
Building previously classified in the Internal Service fund were reclassified and are reflected in certain
governmental funds. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component unit.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts presented as a discrete component unit, is based on the
report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards
which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings as items 1999-60357-001 through 1999-
60357-003. We also noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to
management of the County in a separate letter dated July 21, 2000.



Honorable County Commissioners

Honorable County Auditor

Honorable County Treasurer

Montgomery County

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance and on Internal Control
Required by Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted
certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to
be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant
deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment,
could adversely affect the County’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent
with the assertions of management in the financial statements. Reportable conditions are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings as items 1999-60357-004 through 1999-60357-006.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that
are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe none of the reportable conditions
described above is a material weakness. We also noted other matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this report, that we have reported to management of the
County in a separate letter dated July 21, 2000.

This reportis intended for the information and use of the management, Board of Commissioners, and federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

July 21, 2000



One First National Plaza
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JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Dayton, Ohio 45402
Telephone  937-285-6677
800-443-9274
Facsimile 937-285-6688
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STATE OF OHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable County Commissioners
Honorable County Auditor
Honorable County Treasurer
Montgomery County

451 West Third Street

Dayton, Ohio 45422

To the Honorable County Commissioners, Auditor and Treasurer:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Montgomery County, Ohio (the County) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 1999.
The County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’'s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the County’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance occurred with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
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to Each Major Federal Program and Internal Control Over Compliance
In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would
be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses. We noted a matter involving the internal control over federal compliance that does not require
inclusion in this report, that we have report to management of the County in a separate letter dated July 21,
2000.

Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of the County as of and for the year ended
December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated July 21, 2000, wherein we noted that the
County changed its method of accounting for governmental and proprietary fixed assets and compensated
absences. Additionally, assets and cash restricted for debt associated with the Reibold Building previously
classified in the Internal Service fund were reclassified and are reflected in certain governmental funds. We
did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as
it relates to the amounts presented as a discrete component unit, is based on the report of the other auditors.
Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements
taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of federal awards expenditures is presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the general-purpose
financial statements. The information in that schedule, except for the federal financial assistance received
by Montgomery County for the Job Training Partnership Act and Employment and Training Assistance -
Dislocated Workers programs, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not apply procedures to the JTPA programs for the year ended December 31, 1999. Since Ohio
JTPA requires a separate audit of the JTPA programs, an audit that includes the six month period ended
December 31, 1999 will be performed sometime in the future by other auditors. The other auditors’ opinion,
dated April 21, 2000, was qualified for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 for the JTPA programs. These
programs represent 13% of federal disbursements as shown in the Schedule of Federal Awards
Expenditures.

This reportis intended for the information and use of the management, Board of Commissioners, and federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

July 21, 2000



MONTGOMERY COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505
DECEMBER 31, 1999

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(d)(1)(i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion | Unqualified
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material control No
weakness conditions reported at the
financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any other reportable Yes
control weakness conditions
reported at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material non- | No
compliance at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal No
control weakness conditions
reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any other reportable No
internal control weakness conditions
reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance | Unqualified
Opinion
(d)(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings No
under § .5107?
(d)(1)(vii) Major Programs (list): Community Development Block Grant,
CFDA #14.218
Social Services Block Grant,
CFDA # 93.667
Medical Assistance Program,
CFDA #93.778
(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Type A: > $687,530
Programs Type B: all others
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? Yes




MONTGOMERY COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Continued)

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

FINDING NUMBER 1999-60357-001
Finding For Recovery Repaid Under Audit

Based on Montgomery County Prosecutor's Office Employee Handbook Chapter 5, Section C, an
employee is entitled to compensation at his current rate of pay for the pro-rated portion of any earned
but unused vacation leave for the current year to his credit at the time of separation from employment.
In addition, the employee shall be compensated for any unused vacation leave accrued to his credit with
the permission of the Prosecutor’s Office, for the three years immediately preceding the last anniversary
date. Mr. Gary Lynn Ware received compensation for 776.59 hours of vacation leave as part of his
termination pay-out, however, only 708.88 hours were allowed based upon the above referenced policy.
This condition resulted in him being overpaid in the amount of $1,939.21. Upon receiving notice from
the Auditor of State of this condition, the $1,939.21 was repaid to Montgomery County in full.

FINDING NUMBER 1999-60357-002
Finding For Recovery

Based on Montgomery County Prosecutor's Office Employee Handbook Chapter 5, Section C, an
employee is entitled to compensation at his current rate of pay for the pro-rated portion of any earned
but unused vacation leave for the current year to his credit at the time of separation from employment.
In addition, the employee shall be compensated for any unused vacation leave accrued to his credit with
the permission of the Prosecutor’s Office, for the three years immediately preceding the last anniversary
date. Mr. Edward W. Vecchio, Jr. received compensation for 677 hours of vacation leave as part of his
termination pay-out, however, only 615.4 hours were allowed based upon the above referenced policy.
This condition resulted in him being overpaid in the amount of $1,607.14.

In accordance with the foregoing facts, and pursuant to Ohio Rev. Code Section 117.28, a Finding for
Recovery for public monies being illegally expended is hereby issued against Mr. Edward W. Vecchio,
Jr., and Ms. Barbara Plemons, Prosecutor’s Office Payroll Personnel Officer, jointly and severally, in the
amount of $1,607.14 and in favor of Montgomery County’s General Fund.

FINDING NUMBER 1999-60357-003
Finding For Recovery

Based on Montgomery County Public Defender’s Office Employee Handbook Article 12, Section 1, an
employee is entitled to compensation at this current rate of pay for the prorated portion of any earned
but unused vacation leave for the current year to his/her credit at the time of separation; whether
voluntary or involuntary and in addition, shall be compensated for any unused vacation leave accrued
to his/her credit for the three years immediately preceding the last anniversary date. Ms. Beverly Ann
Herring received compensation for 975.95 hours of vacation leave as part of her termination pay-out,
however, only 646.20 hours were allowed based upon the above referenced policy. This condition
resulted in her being overpaid in the amount of $5,315.57.

10




MONTGOMERY COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Continued)

In accordance with the foregoing facts, and pursuant to Ohio Rev. Code Section 117.28, a Finding for
Recovery for public monies being illegally expended is hereby issued against Ms. Lynn G. Koeller,
former Chief Public Defender, in the amount of $5,315.57 and in favor of Montgomery County’s General
Fund. Ms. Koeller is being named because she submitted the inaccurate number of vacation hours for
payment to the Montgomery County Payroll Department. Ms. Herring passed away during the period
under audit, in March of 1999.

FINDING NUMBER 1999-60357-004
Child Support Enforcement Agency

During 1999, the County Child Support Enforcement Agency (CSEA) fully implemented the Support
Enforcement Tracking System (SETS). SETS is a federally mandated system established to record and
issue child support payments for each county. Since implementation, CSEA has experienced difficulties
in reconciling SETS to its bank accounts and has encountered various errors in relation to disbursements
made by SETS. The State of Ohio is responsible for SETS and has guaranteed funds to correct all
errors with the system.

The County CSEA receives payments for child support and enters the data into SETS. CSEA has
various monitoring controls in place to ensure that accurate data are input into SETS. At the time of
payment, it becomes the responsibility of the State to ensure that accurate payments are made to the
guardian of the child or children. However, many errors have come to the attention of CSEA that have
been attributed to SETS and not CSEA.

We recommend CSEA and the State continue to coordinate their efforts to eliminate the cause of errors
and correct the limitations imposed on the reconciliation process.

FINDING NUMBER 1999-60357-005
Accrued Wages and Benefits

Certain deficiencies were noted in the County’s policies and procedures in accounting for compensated
absences. To ensure completeness, accuracy, and consistency in accounting for compensated
absences, the County should address the following conditions:

. Several departments not under the Board of County Commissioner’s (BCC) were not following
their policies in calculating termination pay-outs. Each department has a policy which states the
maximum amount of sick and vacation hours their employees are allowed to accrue. However,
during our testing, hours in excess of the stated limitations were noted, which resulted in
overpayment of employees termination pay-outs. In FY 1999 the overpayment of termination
pays amounted to $5,315.57; in FY 2000 the overpayment of termination pays amounted to
$3,546.35.

Each department should follow its termination pay-out policy to ensure overpayment does not
occur.

11



MONTGOMERY COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Continued)

. The current sick policy for employees under the Board of County Commissioner’s (BCC) was
not used to calculate the compensated absences figure. A new policy went into effect in FY
1998, however, it was never presented to the Director of Accounting’s attention. The old policy
limited sick leave accrual to 720 hours (480 converted for pay-out purposes); the new policy
limited sick leave accrual to 3,000 hours (1,500 converted for pay-out purposes). The significant
increase resulted in about a $1 million prior period adjustment (increase) in FY 1998 which
affected the General Long-term Debt Account Group; the FY 1999 compensated absences
figure was corrected when presented to the Director of Accounting.

The BCC, as well as all departments, should forward a copy of all policy changes that affect the
financial statements to the Director of Accounting immediately following implementation.

Implementing these procedures will allow management to have greater accountability of compensated
absences and to properly reflect the total liability to the County.

FINDING NUMBER 1999-60357-006
Clerk of Courts

The Clerk of Courts collects auto title fees which are deposited with its financial institution. The Clerk
is to then remit these collections to the County Treasurer for the Special Revenue Fund. Although the
fees collected were deposited on a timely basis with the financial institution, the Clerk did not remit those
fees to the County Treasurer in a timely manner. In some instances, the remittance did not occur for
up to six months. In 1998, fees amounting to $1,066,475 that were collected prior to December 31, 1998
were not provided to the County Treasurer until 1999. In 1999, fees amounting to $128,584 were not
provided to the County Treasurer until 2000. This delay in remittance caused understatements of title
fees in the Special Revenue Fund in both 1998 and 1999, and caused an overstatement of Equity in
Pooled Cash in the Agency Fund. To ensure accurate financial reporting, and the safeguarding of
assets, the Clerk of Courts should remit title fees with the County Treasurer on a more timely basis.

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None
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SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .315 (b)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Finding Finding Fully Not Corrected, Partially Corrected; Significantly
Number Summary Corrected? | Different Corrective Action Taken; or Finding No
Longer Valid; Explain:
1998- Clerk of Courts title | No Not Corrected. Similar condition reported for 1999.
60357- fees were not
001 deposited on a
timely basis with
the County
Treasurer.
1998- District Court Area Partially Procedures to improve procedures over cash
60357- 1 was not properly Corrected receipts, disbursements and reconciliations were
002 managing cash implemented in August 1999. Other
receipts and recommendations are included in the management
disbursements. letter.
1998- County’s accounting | Yes N/A
60357- system was not
003 properly identifying

federal receipts and
expenditures.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Transmittal Letter
From County Auditor

A_J. Wagner
Montgomery County Auditor

Montgomery County Admmnistration Buillding
451 West Third Street + Dayton, Ohio 45422-1027

July 21, 2000
To the Citizens and Board of County
Commissioners of Montgomery County:

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is the end product of the combined talents and efforts of
numerous individuals associated with Montgomery County, Ohio. The sound financial leadership provided by
the County's various elected officials and the hard work and diligence of their collective finance and
accounting personnel is reflected on the pages which follow. On their behalf, I am pleased to present this
report.

This report provides complete and accurate information on Montgomery County's financial position as well as
the results of operations for all of the various funds and account groups in county government for the Fiscal
Year Ended December 31, 1999. It has bcen prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for governments, and all disclosures required by GAAP in order to ensure a fair representation of
the County's financial condition have been included.

I wish to express my appreciation to all those who play a part in the financial administration of Montgomery
County whose efforts have resulted in this report. 1 especially wish to thank the staff of the Accounting
Department for their outstanding and dedicated work. This report will be submitted for review by the
Government Finance Officers Association, and we anticipate recciving another Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting from the GFOA for the sixtecnth consecutive year. 'The Certificate of
Achicvement will recognize the efforts of the County's officials and their staffs in preparing a high-quality
report which meets professional standards for governmental accounting. 1 congratulate all those who play a
part in making this possible.

Sincerely,

C )

Montgomery County Auditor
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Transmirttal Letter

|

=. ) A.J. Wagner
il -
il Montgomery County Auditor

Montgomaery County Admwnistration Building
451 West Third Street - Dayton, Ohio 45422-1027

July 21, 2000
Honorable A.J. Wagner
Montgomery County Auditor

Honorable Don Lucas

Honorable Charles J. Curran
Honorable Vicki D. Pegg
Montgomery County Commissioncrs

Honorable Hugh M. Quill
Montgomery County Treasurer

Citizens of Montgomery County:

I'am pleased to present the Montgomery County Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1999. This report contains basic financial statements, supplemental financial statements, and other
financial and statistical information, providing a complete and full disclosure of all material financial aspects of the County
for the 1999 fiscal ycar. Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, and fairness of this report rests with the County
Auditor's Office and specifically, the Accounting Department. This report is prepared in conformance with gencrally
accepted accounting principles, as sct forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other
recognized authoritative sources, and is representative of the County's continual commitment to provide financial informa-
tion to the citizens of Montgomery County.

The CAFR is organized into three sections: the Introductory Section: the Financial Section; and the Statistical Section.
The Introductory Scction includes letters of transmittal, a list of elected officials, and an organizational churt of the County.
The Financial Section contains the State Auditor's opinion letter; the combined financial statements, which provide an
overview of the County's financial position and operating results; and the combining, individual fund and account group
statements and schedules, which provide supplemental information relative to the combined financial statements. The
Statistical Section includes selected financial, economic, demographic, and other sociocconomic information about the
County which may be used to extrapolate trends for comparative fiscal years.

FORM OF GOVERNMENT AND REPORTING ENTITY

Montgomery County, established on May 1, 1803, is located in the southwest part of the State of Ohio. It encompasscs 28
municipalitics and townships, of which the city of Dayton is the largest. Approximately 566,000 people reside within the
County's 462 square mile area, making Montgomery County the fourth most populous of Ohio's 88 counties.

The County has only those powers conferred upon it by Ohio statutes. A three-member Board of County Commissioners,
elected at large in even-numbered years for four-year overlapping terms, is the primary legislative and executive body of
the County. The Auditor serves as the fiscal officer and property tax assessor for the County. The Treasurer collects
property taxes and is the custodian of all funds. Other elected officials, serving four-year terms each, include the
Prosecutor, Sheriff, Engincer, Clerk of Courts, Recorder, and Coroner. Common Pleas Judges, Domestic Relations
Judges, Juvenile Judges, Court of Appeals Judges and the Probate Judge are also elected on a county-wide basis. An
appointed County Administrator dirccts and supervises activitics of departments dircctly responsible to the Board of
County Commissioners. The Administrator's responsibilitics include coordinating the annual budgctary process and
serving as primary liaison between the Board of County Commissioners, other County clected officials, designated boards,
and other units of government. The County provides its citizens with a wide range of services that include human and
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social services, health and community assistance-related services, civil and criminal justice system service, road and bridge
maintenance, and other gencral and administrative support services. The County also opcrates several Enterprise Funds
that include a water system, wastewater system, solid waste management system, an intermediate care facility for the
mentally retarded and developmentally disabled, and two parking garages.

For financial reporting purposes, the County complies with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14 in defining the
financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of the County as the primary government, which also
includes all of the elected officials, organizations, activities and functions which are not legally scparate from the County
and whose corporate powers the County holds. Also included in the reporting entity are any component units or legally
separate organizations for which the County is financially accountable or for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the County is such that exclusion could result in incomplete or misleading financial data. The County has
included one such organization, Monco Enterprises, Inc., as a discrcte presentation, in its reporting cntity. Note A of the
combined financial statements provides a complete discussion of the reporting entity.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND EMPLOYMENT

The strength of the Dayton arca cconomy is derived from the importance of its aviation and aerospace industrics, coupled
with its diverse economic base and its gcographic location, with ready access to some of the largest markets in North
Amcrica. Economic development efforts continue to focus on the stimuli from Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, the
Miami Valley Rescarch Park, the automotive and automotive component supplier industries, as well as the area's
distribution capabilities which have been advanced by the increasing accessibility which Dayton has built into its
transportation systems.

The unemployment rate, at the end of 1999, for the Dayton Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) was 3.3% which was
below the state and national averages of 4.0% and 4.1%, respectively. The Ohio Bureau of Employment Services reports
that nonagricultural wage and salary employment, for the Dayton MSA, advanced 1,600 jobs between December 1998 and
December 1999. Expansion in service-producing industries created 5,000 jobs. The leading growth sectors were services
and local government. Nominal gains occurred in wholesale trade and finance, insurance, and real estate.

Some of the largest for-profit employers in the Dayton MSA include: Delphi Automotive Systems; Premicr Health
Partners; Airbomne Express and Meijer, Inc. Several of the arca's largest employers are hospitals or medical centers, many
of which provide specialized medical services to patients from outside the arca. Three of the largest employers are
universities, The largest single employer is Wright-Patterson Air Force Base which employs akmost 21,000. Wright-
Patterson is headquarters for the foremost research and development center in the U.S. Air Force and a vast, worldwide
logistics system. Delphi Automotive Systems employs approximately 13,000 in the Dayton area. General Motors split off
Delphi Automotive Systems in 1999 in order to provide greater opportunities for Delphi to scll its products. There are five
Delphi Chassis plants located in the County area. Another sign of Dayton's advanced technology basc is the Miami Valley
Rescarch Park. Located on more than 1,250 acres of land, the Miami Valley Research Park is a university-related, world
class, high tcchnology park being developed by the non-profit Miami Valley Rescarch Foundation. Currently, 45
organizations, with combined employment of over 2,400 jobs, have located in the park.

At the end of the year, Montgomery County employed almost 4,100. Ohio's Collective Bargaining Law provides that
public employees of the State and many local subdivisions (including the County) have the right to organize, bargain
collectively and have union representation. The Collective Bargaining Law also designates those actions which constitute
unfair labor practices and prescribes procedurcs for their remedy. It also sets forth dispute resolution procedures for
contract negotiation, including arbitration or other mutually agreeable methods. [f the impassc persists after conciliation
procedures, then public safety employees must take the dispute to binding arbitration and do not have the right to strike.
All other employees have the right to strike after 10 days written notice. The County's employee relations are cstablished
largely in association with the following labor organizations: The Fraternal Order of Police; The Professional Guild of
Ohio; The Tcamsters Local 957, The Health Care and Social Service Union; The American Federation of State, County
and Municipal Employees; and The Dayton Public Service Union.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

Significant Events For 1999

The Montgomery County Data Center continued to update all computer system configurations for current hot-site contracts
and completed the disaster recovery documentation plan. The Auditor's Office, in conjunction with the Office of
Management and Budget and the Treasurer's Office worked diligently on the implementation of the Performance Serics, an
integrated, online, rcal-time financial management system which started countywide operation in January, 1999. This
system integrates purchasing, financial accounting, budgeting, treasury management and asset management. The County
Administrator, along with the Administrative Services Department, created a communications division, funded through
reallocation of existing funds, and hired a communications manager in 1999. With this new position, increased emphasis
was placed on public information and education and a new County web page was introduced. The Board of Mental
Retardation and Devclopmental Disabilities was successful in reorganizing the adult services division in order to achieve
the following: enhanced vocation opportunities and training for individuals wanting to work under one facility; enhanced
habilitation for individuals nceding those services; and increased community involvement by consumers. The Stillwater
Center successfully moved twelve residents from the main facility to the new group home. This move provided a unique
opportunity to serve individuals in a smaller residential setting. During the year, the Center also had an opportunity to
serve ning families with profoundly disabled chiidren and/or adults in an out-of-home respite service. In addition, it
completed the certification and licensure process of the Ohio Department of Health and Qhio Department of Mental
Retardation and Developmental Disabilitics. The Children Services Board was successful with the implementation of a
“new service delivery system and also finished the first phase of a project to redesign the agency’s database. The Human
Services Department successfully completed the Support Enforcement Tracking System (SETS) conversion with the
lowest conversion error rate in Ohio, while also excceding its state performance standards - resulting in additional
incentive dollars available for local initiatives to assist the working poor.

The County Engincer's Office was successful in completing a major street-rebuilding project and also replaced six major
bridges and four culverts. In 1999, the County Engineer’s Office participated in its first Local Public Authority project in
conjunction with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT). Under the program, ODOT turns one of its projects
over to a local public authority to design, bid and build a construction project, which also is intended to speed up the time
within which a project is completed.  The Public Works Department Material Reuse Facility has been recognized
nationally and has received awards from Keep America Beautiful and the National Association of Counties. This facility
has diverted over 307,000 pounds of reusable materials from the waste stream whilc assisting over 286 registered nonprofit
organizations, local governments and others. The MonDay Community Correctional Institution was re-certified by the
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services for outpatient and residential programming. During 1999, the
MonDay program continucd the refinement of policy and procedures for its therapeutic community model, received
renewal of the Residential Abuse Treatment grant from the Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services and was rated very
satisfactorily through the Correctional Program Inventory instrument from the University of Cincinnati.. The Miami
Valley Regional Crime Lab received accreditation status from the American Society of Crime Lab Directors in 1999. The
Miami Valley Crime Lab is the first nationally accredited forensic laboratory in the State of Ohio. Also in 1999, the
Sheriff's Office was re-accredited by the Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement Agencies (CALEA). The jail
received accreditation from the American Correctional Association (ACA). With this accomplishment, the Montgomery
County Sheriff’s Officc became one of the few agencics to have a “triple crown” accreditation from the CALEA, the ACA
and the National Commission on Correctional Health Care (NCCHC). The Juvenile Court was successful in the first full
year of operations for the Intervention Center and the expanded Start Right program. The court also received accreditation
for the Probation Department, Detention Services and Nicholas Residential Treatment Center through the American
Correctional Association.
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Plans For 2000 and Beyond

The Data Processing Department will implement a new countywide network infrastructure and develop, secure and
provide reliable countywide Internet access into County applications. Other issues include providing countywide virus
protection, upgrading of certain applications and expanding case management and network access. The Recorder’s Office
will implement workflow redesign to correspond with the electronic imaging of daily documents in place of microfiche
production. The Board of Elections will be redrawing over 640 precinct boundarics using new federal census data. The
Board of Elcctions is also preparing for its future relocation to the County Administration Building,.

Records in the Clerk of Courts Legal Division will be made available to citizens via the Internet and the clectronic filing
of legal documents. Following the Auto Title Division’s recent relocation to thc County Administration Building, it will
work with both the Burcau of Motor Vehicles and the Ohio State Patrol to establish a one-stop shap in Kettering later in
2000. The County Courts Clerk opcrations will be reorganized and 2000 will be the first full year of operation under the
Clerk of Courts. Juvenile Court will be opening the 50 bed State-funded Center for Adolescent Services in the fall of 2000.
The Court will also expand its pilot Community Court program to include all of Dayton, as well as several other
Jurisdictions. In addition, the Court is designing and implementing a Court Information System and will soon begin
designing a new 144 bed Juvenile Detention Center. The Sheriff*s Office will continuc to work with area courts and local
governments on the efficicnt management of an inmate population that continucs to increase. The Sheriff's Office will
also be completing the installation, implementation and training on the use of the mobile data terminals in deputy vehicles,
as well as enhancing and improving the recently installed jail management and computer aided dispatch systems
throughout 2000.

In 2000, the Public Works Department will be managing many capital projects throughout the County. Public Works
will also continue planning, coordinating, implementing and promoting waste recovery and disposal programs. The
Sanitary Engincering Department will implement the Lab Information Management System, while continuing the
construction projects outlined in the Water and Water Pollution Control Master Plans and managing the construction of a
new building to housc engineering, operational and departmental staff as well as vehicle maintenance and storage. In 2000
and beyond, the Human Services Department will continue to implement the A.T. Hudson recommendations for the
Public Assistance and the Child Support Enforcement Agency. This is in response to the declining welfare rolls within the
County, implementation of the Job Center and new statc and federal welfare reform programs. In addition, Human
Services expects to focus on the workforce development plan, continue to implement prevention, retention and
contingency programs and incorporate changes as a result of the merger between the Ohio Bureau of Employment Services
and the Ohio Department of Human Services. There is also a planned phasc-out of the Job Training Partnership Program
and the implementation of the Workforce Investment Act that will take place in 2000. The Children Services Board plans
to implement redesign recommendations to provide a team approach to services which will enhance continuity of service
delivery to families and assure permanency for children in a timely manner. It will also focus on the construction of its
new facility and on the second phase of the redesign of the agency’s database and on staff training.

The flexibility of the General Fund is limited by the mandates of the state and federal governments and by the impact of
the economy on the County’s revenucs and expenditures. The County has embarked on its new 2000-2009 ten-ycar
Gencral Fund Financial Plan. This plan is a systematic and comprehensive plan that enables the County to continue to
provide its current level of services to the community; to address continuing state and federal mandates; to provide funds
for community programs; and to maintain financial stability. The mission of the plan is to assure the economic vitality and
quality of life of Montgomery County over the next ten years. Key clements of the plan include: strong community and
regional leadership; partnerships with the private sector, other governmental units and citizens; identification of best
practices; and vision. Since ten years is an extremely long period for any financial projections, the plan must be monitared
annually, with adjustments made based upon actual revenues and expenditures.
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Department Focus

Each ycar, a County department or agency is sclected for highlighting its service cfforts and accomplishments. For 1999,
the Montgomery County Domestic Relations Court has been selected for this focus. Following is a brief commentary
about this Department's operations along with some statistics and accomplishments during the past year.

The Montgomery County Domestic Relations Court is the division of the Common Pleas Court of Montgomery County,
Ohio, empowered by statute to hear all divorces, dissolution, legal scparation, and annulment cases as well as civil
domestic violence cases for residents of Montgomery County. In addition, the court maintains jurisdiction and continucs
to have post-decrec hearings on such matters as spousal support, child custody, child support, visitation issucs and other
related matters.

The court consists of two judges, who are assisted in performing the dutics of the court by seven magistrates, the Legal
Secretary Section, the Assignment Office, the Compliance Office (which works closely with the Support Enforcement
Agency), the Family Services Section, the Parent Education Section and the court administrative staff. During 1999, there
were 3,052 new filings for divorce, dissolution, legal separation or annulment. After dismissals, the court granted 2,651
final judgments and decrees on these cases, disposing of a total of 3,021 cases. Administratively, the court issucd 15,000
orders for cases reactivated for various reasons. As a result of new procedures designed to provide access to the court for
the unrepresented, a record number (994) of domestic violence cases were filed.

During the year, the court continued to provide the nationally recognized program of Scttlement Hearings, in order to
help parents resolve post-decrec differences without resorting to formal hearings. Research completed in the prior year
shows the program 1o be effective in decreasing litigation. In addition, the court also has partnered with the program,
Kids’ Turn of the Miami Valley to assist children whose parents are separating, while also reaching 2,207 parents through
the court’s own Parent Education Seminar.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Accounting System and Budgetary Control

The County utilizes an automated accounting and financial management information system that provides the capability to
prepare financial statements based on generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for governments. This system,
which is used by all opcrations of the County, is the basis for the County's accounting and budgctary controls.

The County's system of internal accounting controls is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolutc, assurance that:
(1) financial transactions are processed in accordance with management's authorizations; (2) transactions comply with
County policies and Ohio law; and (3) financial records arc reliable for preparing financial statements and maintaining
accountability for assets and obligations. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of internal control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that the cvaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.

The County's day-to-day accounting and budgetary records are maintained on a basis other than GAAP. For financial
reporting purposes, the accounting records are converted to the modified accrual basis for all Governmental Funds and to
the accrual basis for Proprictary Funds.

A more detailed discussion of the basis of accounting and budgetary controls, along with a reconciliation of the GAAP
and budgetary bascs can be found in Notes B and C, respectively, of the combined financial statements.

-10 -
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General Government Review

Revenues:

Total Revenucs

Property tax.......
Salestax...........

Other taxes........

Intergovernmental

Miscellancous....

The following schedules include all Governmental Funds, except Capital Project Funds, and present a summary of
revenues and expenditures for the year ended December 31, 1999, along with the amount and percentage of increase
(decrease) in relation to the prior year.

¥ Increase Y% Increase

1999 1699 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Actual % of Total from 1998 From 1998

............................................ $ 87,678,617 21.08 % $ 1,231,367 142 %

........................................... 62,860,529 15.11 3,568,807 6.02
.......................................... 8,012,521 1.93 432,619 571
Licenses and permits.........oo i 2,399,728 0.58 579,022 31.80
Fees and charges for services............................ 35,471,566 R.53 1,564,943 4.62
IFines and forfeitures. ... 1,716,496 0.41 421,391 32.54
Special as8ESSMENTS. ... 405,698 0.10 (39,902) (8.95)
........................................... 196,801,889 47.31 32,810,051 20.01
Investment Camings. ... 11,887,399 2.85 (14,502,724) (54.906)
........................................... 8,737,073 _210 2,460,114 39.19
$415,971,516 100.00 % $ 28,525,688 7.36

Fees and charges for
services
8.53%

. Fines and forfeitures
Licenses and permits

FProperty taxes
21.08%

Intergovernmental
47.31%

— Other taxes
1.93%

Investment earnings

Special assessmants
2.85%

0.10% Miscellaneous
2.10%

1999

The increase in licenses and permits revenues is attributable to the Special Revenue funds, where the primary increase in
this revenue source occurred in the Building Regulations fund as a result of increased permit activity in 1999 compared to
the previous year. The increase in fines and forfeitures revenues is mostly due to increased collections of fines and
forfeiturcs during the year in the General Fund. The growth in interzovernmental revenue in¢luded a more than $2 million
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Transmittal Letter (Cont’d.)

jump in the General Fund duc to increased dollars distributed for local government funds and certain state reimbursements.
It also included an increase of more than $30 million, compared to the previous year, in the Special Revenue funds where
the most significant growth took place in the Human Services and Children Services Board funds. While actual investment
camnings cash receipts showed only a slight decline from the prior year, the revenue on a GAAP basis showed a dramatic
decline duc to the effect of GASB Statement No. 31, and the recognition of unrealized losses based on market value
declines. Miscellancous revenues tend to fluctuate because they contain revenue sources that are not stable, like donations,
one-time reimbursements and refunds. The increasc in 1999 was primarily attributable to higher receipts in this revenue
source in a number of Special Revenue Funds.

§ Increase % Increase
1999 1999 {Decrease) (Decrease}
Actual % of Total from 1998 from 1998
Expenditures:
Current:
General BOVEIMMENT......o..viiie e, $22,012,933 574 % $ 2,300,250 11.67 %
Judicial and law enforcement................oienn 109,947,009 28.69 5,808,347 5.58
Environment and public works........... 16,257,398 4.24 1,441,006 9.73
Social services 192,446,345 50.22 13,739,923 7.69
Community and cconomic development............... 19,037,226 497 6,364,485 50.22
Intergovermmental:
S0CIal SBTVICES ... vvv e 16,405,742 4,28 10,741,688 189.65
Community and econornic development............... 3,302,388 0.86 (3,284,773) (49.87)
Environment and public works. ... 210,941 0.06 (51,840) (19.73)
Debt Service:
Principal retirement................. 1,936,204 0.51 331,280 20.64
Interest and fiscal charges...............cos 1,629,644 _043 119,555 7.92
Total Expenditures $383,185,830 100.00 % $ 37,509,921 10.85

Community and

acanamic Debt service 0.94%
development service B.u&s General

5.83% overnment 5.74%

Judicial and law

Social services
54.50% Environment and

public works 4.30%

1999

The increase in community and economic development expenditurcs is primarily attributable to the Special Revenue
funds, where current year growth in this expenditure type exceeded $4 million, a result of increased development activity
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funds, where current year growth in this expenditure type exceeded $4 million, a result of increased development activity
in 1999. In the General Fund, where this expenditure type grew by more than $2 million, the change was in large part due
to the County’s functional reclassification, in 1999, of certain parks and recreation program expenditures to the community
and economic development function. The intergovernmental character of expenditures represents the transfer of resources
from the County to other governmental units. The increase in human scrvices expenditures in the intergovernmental
character is attributable to the Human Services Levy Special Revenue fund, reflecting an increase in actual levy transfers,
made during the year, to the Public Health District. The decrease in community and economic development expenditures
in the intergovernmental character is due to the Economic Development Special Revenue fund, where fewer ED/GE
program transfers were made in 1999, Similarly, the decrease in environment and public works expenditures in this
character is duc to the General Fund, where resources transferred to the Soil and Water Conservation District declined
compared to the previous year.

The General Fund balance at the end of the year exceeded $39.1 million, reflecting a decrcase of more than $15.4 million
compared to the previous year. This includes a $7 million planned spend-down of reserves. In addition, a significant
portion of the decrease is attributable to a downward adjustment to investment eamnings, pursuant to GASB 31, to reflect
the decline in the fair value of investments. The total fund balance for all Special Revenue Funds increased by nearly $29
million during the year to a year-end balance of nearly $140 million. The increase is primarily due to the 1999 excess of
revenucs and other financing sources over expenditures and other uses in a number of Special Revenue Funds including;
the Human Scrvices Fund; the Board of Mental Retardation Fund; the Children Services Board Fund; and several other
smaller funds. The total fund balance in the Debt Service Funds approximated $4 million at the end of the year, while the
Capital Projects Funds ended the year with a total fund balance of almost $55.6 million, reflecting capital outlay during
1999 of nearly $30 million and a net excess of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other uses, of
almost $3.4 million.

Proprietary Review

The County's Enterprise operations in 1999 included the Sanitary Engineer's Water and Wastewater Funds. Other
Enterprise Funds included the Solid Waste Management Fund, as well as the Parking Facilitics and Stillwater Center
Funds. Intcrnal Service operations were comprised of the following funds: Printing Services; Mailroom; Stockroom;
Service Depot; Telecommunications; Other Data Services; Health Insurance Admin/E.A.P.; Property/Casualty Risk
Management; and Workers' Compensation Risk Management.

Financial data for the County's Proprictary Funds show that total 1999 operating revenucs for these funds exceeded
$114.2 million, whilc operating expenses were almost $90.9 million. Compared to the previous year, this represents a
increase in operating revenucs and a slight decrease in operating expenscs. The growth in operating revenues is attributable
1o the Enterprisc Funds. Total 1999 operating revenues for the Enterprisc Funds were nearly $103.4 million, while
operating cxpenses approximated $82 million, resulting in operating income cxceeding $21.4 million. Most of this
operating income was attributed to the Wastewater Fund, followed by the Solid Waste Management and Water Funds.
After nonoperating items and operating transfers, the Proprietary Funds realized a net income of more than $22.5 mitlion.
Nearly $20.8 million of net income was realized in the Enterprise Funds. The largest net income, of almost $7.5 million,
was realized in the Wastewater Fund and was accompanicd by net incomes exceeding $6.8 million and $6.2 million in the
Watcr and Solid Waste Management Funds, respectively. The Internal Service Funds had total operating revenues of more
than $10.8 million in 1999, while operating expenses exceeded $8.9 million, resulting in an operating income of more
than $1.9 million. After nonoperating items and operating transfers-in, the Internal Service Funds realized a net income of
almost $1.8 million.

Fiduciary Review

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the County in a trustec capacity, primarily for other governments and/or other
funds. The County's fiduciary funds are comprised of an Expendable Trust Fund, and Agency Funds. At December 31,
1999, total Fiduciary Fund assets exceeded $543.2 million, whilc liabilities approximated $542.4 million.
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Debt Administration

At December 31, 1999, outstanding bond issues consisted of: revenue bonds of $120,075,033; sclf-supporting general
obligation bonds payable from Enterprise Funds of $37,654,362; special assessment bonds of $1,605,038 and other
general obligation bonds of $38,620,000, both of which are reported in the General Long-term Debt Account Group. In
December, the County issued $17,125,000 of Various Purpose General Obligation Bonds, which were comprised of
$225,000 of special assessment bonds and $12,800,00 of general obligation bonds, both of which are payable from the
General Long-term Debt Account Group, and $4,100,000 of sclf-supporting general obligation bonds payable from
Enterprise funds. Note H to the combined financial statements provides complete disclosures as to the status of the
County's long-term debt.

The County's legal debt margin (for unvoted debt), at the cnd of 1999 was $79,817,974. Its nct general bonded debt per
capita for 1999 was $64.53. The calculation and related discussion of the legal debt margin, and other debt-related
statistics, arc included in the statistical section of this report.

All of the County's revenue bonds carry insured ratings of Aaa by Moody's and AAA by Standard & Poors, and Fitch.
The County's outstanding general obligation and special assessment bonds are presently rated Aa by Moody's and AA by
Standard & Poors.

Cash Management

The Montgomery County Treasurer serves as the custodian of, and investing authority for, all County funds, pursuant to
state law. The Treasurcr also works closely with the County's Investment Advisory Committee to direct the investment
policies of the County. The basic objectives of Montgomery County's investment program are: to ensure the safety of
public funds by protecting investment principal; to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the County's operating
requirements; and to attain the maximum yield possible consistent with the first two objectives. Monies held in the County
Treasury are pooled for the purposc of investment management. Investment income is distributcd on the basis of the
average daily balance of those funds eligible to reccive investment income to the average daily balance of the total County
Treasury, with the General Fund receiving the balance of the earnings. Investment earmings are an important source of
General Fund revenues. Montgomery County's portfolio grew to an annual average of approximately $481 million during
the year. The highest average weighted yield on the County's portfolio occurred in December, with a yield of 5.85%, while
the lowest average weighted yield was 5.51% in March.

Counties in Ohio arc required by the Uniform Depository Act, Section 135 of the Ohio Revised Code, to approve
depository agreements once cvery two ycars with those financial institutions who wish to receive County funds for deposit,
These agreements specify the maximum amount of public funds, both active and inactive, those institutions may receive
and have on deposit at any time during the effective dates of the agreement. They also provide for the collateralization of
thosc public funds. The County’s current depository agreements were authorized by the County Commissioners during
August, 1999 and arc effective through August, 2001.

Additional information on the cash management function is contained in Note E of the combined financial statcments.

Risk Management

Ohio, by statute and court decision, retains only limited tort immunity for local governments. In addition to potential tort
liabilities, the County is liable for its employees’ workers' compensation claims, plus the risk of casualty loss to real and
personal property owned by the County, and must provide faithful performance bonds for certain County officials.

Except for property and liability coverage which the Alcohol, Drug Addiction & Mental Health Scrvices Board and the
Board of Mental Retardation & Developmental Disabilitics obtain on their own, the County's insurance and risk
management needs arc coordinated by the County's Risk Management Department. Certain County property/casualty
liability risks are managed through a self-funding program. The County also maintains a self-funding program for certain
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workers' compcensation claims, by participating in a retrospective rating plan offered by the Ohio Burcau of Workers'
Compensation. The liabilitics for insurance ¢laims payable from the County's self-funded programs include amounts for
probablc claims that have been incurred but not reported, based on previous estimates by independent claims
administrators and the County.

Additional information regarding risk management is contained in Note J to the combined financial staternents.
In addition, a detailed description of outside insurance coverage provided to the County may be found in the Synopsis of
Insurance, within the statistical section of this rcport.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Independent Audit

Included in this report is an Auditor of State unqualified opinion rendered on the County's operations and financial posi-
tion, as well as its existing assets and liabilities as reported in the combined financial statements, for the year ended
December 31, 1999. An annual, independent audit of the County's financial statements is part of the annual preparation of
a CAFR. This annual, independent audit (which also meets Federal Single Audit requirements) will continue to review,
comment on and, thereby, strengthen the County's accounting and budgetary controls.

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFQA) awarded a Certificate of
Achicvement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Montgomery County for its Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. This was the fifteenth consecutive year that Montgomery County has
received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievernent, a government must publish an easily
rcadablc and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprchensive annual
financial report continues to mecet the Certificate of Achicvement Program requircments, and we arc submitting it to the
GFOA to determing its eligibility for another certificate.
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STATE OF OHIO One First Nation aza
130 West Second Street

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Suite 2040

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Dayton, Ohio 45402
Telephone  937-285-6677

800-443-9274
Facsimile 937-285-6688
www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Honorable County Commissioners
Honorable County Auditor
Honorable County Treasurer
Montgomery County

451 West Third Street

Dayton, Ohio 45422

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of Montgomery County, (the County) as of
and for the year ended December 31, 1999. These general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the
County's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based
on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component unit. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as
it relates to the amounts presented as a discrete component unit, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financia! statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the general-purpose financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Montgomery County, as of December 31, 1999,
and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types and discretely presented component
unit for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

As described in Note D to the general-purpose financial statements, the County changed its method of accounting for
governmental and proprietary fixed assets and compensated absences. Additionally, assets and cash restricted for debt
associated with the Reibold Building previously classified in the Internal Service fund were reclassified and are reflected
in certain governmental funds.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 21, 2000 on our
consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of the
County, taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial staternents and schedules
listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in
relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and therefore express no
opinion thereon.

JIM PETRO
Auditor of State

July 21, 2000

-19.-



MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combined Balance Sheet
All Fund Types, Account Groups
and Discretely Presented Component Unit

December 31, 1999

Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents.........oo £ 25,080,104 § 147318917 §  3997,905 § 60,955,023
Cash and cash cquivalents-segregated accounts........... o 20,279
Investments--segrepated accounts....
Net receivables:
Taxes.. 15,822,897 86,447,868
Taxes levied for other governments.
ACCOUNTS e e 733,519 1,650,389
Special ussessments. ., 1,663,804
ACCIUCU INLETESL ..o i ettt 6,050,789 170,627
Total receivables ..., 22,607,205 88,268,884 1,663,864 0
Due from other Tunds.. e 3,684,838 6,576,997
Due from other governments................. 12,035,738 8,599,333 435,000
Due from component unit.. 100,000
Inventory of supplies................. PP
Restricted assets:
Kquity in pooled cash and cash equivalents............oooieiiie o
Cash and cash equivalents--scgregated 8CCOUNTS. ..o
Investments--segregated accounts.................
Land Improvements. ...
Utility plant in SEIVICE....ooiiiiiiccc e
Buildings, structures and improvement
Furniture, fixtures and equipment..........oooooooo
Less: Accurnulated depreciation..........ocoooeiiiicccieec,
CONSIIUCTION-IN-PIOBTESS. .. ..o oo oottt e
Total net fixed ASSEIS.............coooiiiiiii oL 0 0 0 0
Amount available in Debt Service Funds..........oooi
Amount to be provided for
retirement of general long-term debt........
TOIA] ASSCIS. ... e $__63,407885 §_ 250,864,131  $__ 5688048 $__ 61,390,023

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Proprietary Fiduciary Component
Fund Types Fund Types Account Groups Unit
Totals Totals
Expendable General General (Memorandum Only) (Memorandum Onlv)
Internal Trust and Fixed Long-term Primary Monco Reporting
Enterprise Service Agency Assets Debt Government _Enterprises, Inc. Entity

$ 58,853,298 5 28,240,406 b 83,835,137 ¥ $ 408,280,790 % b 408,280,790
500 15,418,478 15,445,257 153,068 15,598,325

280,000 280,000

102,270,765 102,270,765

443,978,077 443,978,077 443,978,077

18,732,758 415,592 21,532,258 158,004 21,690,262
1,663,864 1,663,864

652,058 6,873,474 6,873,474
19,384,810 415,592 443 978,077 0 0 576,318,438 158,004 576,476,442
544,073 3,545,412 14,351,320 14,351,320
1,188,129 22,258,200 22,258,200
100,000 100,000

1,013,335 169,362 1,182,697 1,182,697
70,023,127 70,023,127 70,023,127
20,434,017 20,434,017 200,434,017
10,973,111 10,973,111 10,973,111
122,853 122,853

7,008,513 75,000 4,686,140 11,769,653 11,769,653
704,526 1,412,810 2,117,336 2,117,336
271,202,382 271,202,382 271,202,382
119,313,967 24,490 88,703,697 208,042,154 208,042,154
12,424,500 1,256,017 32,370,604 46,051,121 540,174 46,597,295
(194,249,466) (969,600} (195,219,066) (231,239) (195,450,305)
109,854 419 16,838,187 126,692,606 126,692,606
326,258,841 385,907 0 144,011,438 0 470,656,186 314,935 470,971,121
3,995,949 3,995,949 3,995,949

50,312,619 50,312,619 50,312,619

$_ 508,673,247 §_ 32.756,679 ¥ 543,231,692 144,011,438 $_ 54308508 §_ 1.664,331.711 § 1,028 860 % _ 1,005,360,571
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combined Balance Sheet
All Fund Types, Account Groups

and Discretely Presented Component Unit (Cont'd.)

December 31, 1999

Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt
General Revenue Service

Capital
Projects

Liabilities

Accounts payable........ i, $
Current portion of insurance claims payable..
DeferTed TEVENUE. .....virir et
Due 1o other fUnds. ...
Due to other povernments....
Due to primary BoVEIMIMENt. ...
Accrued wages and BEnefits.
Current portion of long-term notes
Current portion of general obligation bonds...............
Accrued interest on general obligation bonds.......o
Current portion of capitalized leases
Matured general obligation bonds............
Matured special assessment bonds....o
Matured special assessment bond interest..
Other Mabilbes. ...

Payable from restricted asscts:
Matured revenue bonds. ...
Matured revenue bond INICTEST. o
Accrued revenue bond interest....
Current portion Of FEVENUE BONAS.......c.cvivriririirerinirirriire s
Matured general obligation bonds...........
Construction contracts..............

Debt:

Long-term notes payable (net of current portion). ...
Insurance claims payable (net of current portion).... ...
Revenue bonds (net of current portion)
Less: Unamortized revenue bond charges........ccvrvvivvi v
General obligation bonds (net of current porlion).........
Less: Unamortized general obligation bond charges.
Capitalized leases (net of curment portion ). s
Estimated Hability for landfill post-closure costs....... .
Special assessment debt with

governmental commitment:

Special assessment bonds payable.. ...

Total Liabilties.........................ii

2,048,093 % 13,839,291 $ 1,956

19,309,706 80,433,401 1,663,864
1,315,028 7,196,272
187,332 1,179,885

1,403,402 2,252,343

10,000
15,000
1,279

$

5,824,553

5,618

1,272

24,263,561 110,901,192 1,692,099

5,831,443

Fund Balances, Contributed Capital
And Retained Earnings
Investrnent in general fixed aS8€15. ...
Contributed capital... ...
Retained eamings:
Reserved for restricted assets. .. ...
UREESCIVEd. ootttk
Fund balances:
Reserved for enCUMDTanCeSs.......ociivri et e
Reserved 1or AeBE SEIVICC. ..ot e
Unreserved:
UNGeSiZNated.. oo oviiiiii i

Total Equity And Other Credits

1,053,843 54,825,230
3,995,949

38,090,481 85,137,709

27,011,146

28,547,434

39,144,324 139,962,939 3,995,949

55,558,580

Total Liabilities, Equity And Other Credits.......c...cc...occoeiiiiinaen, $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Proprietary Fiduciary Component
Fund Types Fund Tvpe Account Groups Unit
Totals Totals
Expendable General General (Memorandum Only) (Memorandum Only)
Internal Trust and Fixed Long-term rimary Monco eporting
Enterprise Service Agency Assels Debt Government _Enterprises, Inc. Entiry
$ 3,004,212 % 603,929 b3 5 k) b 25,982,034 § 15,223 % 25,997,257
522,344 522,344 522,344
107,406,971 107,406,971
1,020,223 1,788,429 3,025,750 14,351,320 14,351,320
12,406,282 237,216 491,734,030 505,744,745 505,744,745
0 100,000 100,000
2,362,350 124,609 13,464,114 19,608,090 26,804 19,634,894
1,412,316 1,412,316 1,412,316
1,770,305 1,770,305 1,770,305
361,387 361,387 361,387
2,124 44,053 46,177 46,177
10,000 10,000
15,000 15,000
1,279 1,279
47,664,181 47,664,181 8,104 47,672,345
20,000 20,000 20,000
44,019 44,019 44,019
1,062,751 1,062,751 1,062,751
6,835,000 6,835,000 6,835,000
55,000 55,000 55,000
1,246,744 1,246,744 1,246,744
140,030 140,030 140,030
32,526,411 32,526,411 32,526,411
3,484,332 3,484,332 3,484,332
113,240,033 113,240,033 113,240,033
(8,425,013) (8,425,013) (8,425,013)
35,884,057 38,620,000 74,504,057 74,504,057
(1,051,583) (1,051,583) (1,051,583)
63,700 619,416 683,116 683,116
730,160 730,160 730,160
1,605,038 1,605,038 1,605,038
205,306,808 0,868,612 542,423,961 0 54,308,568 951,596,244 150,191 951,746,435
144,011,438 144,011,438 144,011,438
254,372,977 3,595,805 257,968,782 257,968,782
92,026,711 92,026,711 92,026,711
(43,033,249) 22,292,262 (20,740,987) 878,669 (19,862.318)
82,890,219 82,890,219
3,995,949 3,995,949
807,731 152,583,355 152,583,355
303,366,439 25,888,067 807,731 144,011,438 0 712,735 467 878,669 713,614,136
$_ 508.673.247 5 32.756,679 $_ 543,231,692 $_ 144011438 §_ 54308568 $_ 1,664,331.711 § 1,028 860 % _ 1,665.360,571




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combined Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

General
Revenues:
PIOPEITY TAXES. ...ttt et et e ar e eae e te e 12,767,746
BALBS Xt 62,860,529
ONCT TAXES ettt iiiiir e e e e ettt et e e eeee e 1,710,669
Licenses and permits...........oooirrniiner e 53,642
Fees and charges for Services... ... 17,188,462
Fines and forfeifires. ... ... 1,457,513
Special @sSCSSMENTS........oiiriiiic e
Intergovernmental..........c.cocoiiriiiiic e 22,600,664
INVESIMENt CATTIIES.....c0iviitiiiii ettt et 11,200,485
MISCEIIANEOUS . ..ottt eee e 1,248,640
TOUU REVEORUES. ... i e 131,088,350
Expenditures.
Current:
General GOVEIMIMENL.. ..ot cie s 18,007,590
Judicial and law enforcement...........ooooeeeeiiiiiio e 72,524 419
Environment and public Works.........c.cccceiiiiiiin e, 309,778
Social SErVICES. ..o, s 2,056,156
Community and economic development..........c.occoovvveeveoeeeeeeeecnn. 2,795,700
Capital OULIAY......coiiii i
Intergovernmental:
SBOCIAL SETVICES. .. 1t viiiii it eeie ettt e et te e e e e e s e e e e saareree s e rereeeaas 164,000
Community and economic development................oooioviiin i, 2,100,000
Environment and public WOrks..........ccooooiieiiii e, 210,941
Debt service:
Principal retirement........ OO YU UV UV P O U ORI 77,221
Interest and fiscal charges........coooooiiiiiiiii e, 17,500
Total EXpendiiures.. ..o oo e 98,263,305
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
OVer EXpenditures. ... 32,825,045
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets/sundries.........ooooovoveeeieeeeee e 60,929
Proceeds trom capital leases.......oooeiiieiiiii i 130,958
Proceeds from bonds......ccooooiiiiiiiiic e
Operating transfers N, 4,679,416
Operating transters OUl........cccoiiiiiiiic et (53,098,387)
Total Other Financing Sources And USeS........................................._.. (48,227 084)
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And
Other Financing Sources Over
Expenditures And Other USes..............c.ocoiicn i, (15,402,039)
Fund Balance (Deficit) at
Beginning Of Year, Restated (Note D). 54,546,363
Fund Balance (Deficit) at
End Of Year. ... ) 39.144.324

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement,
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Fiduciary
Fund Type

Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt Capital Expendable Totals
Revenue Service Projects Trust (Memorandum Only)
74,910,871 $ h 87,678,617
62,860,529
6,301,852 8,012,521
2,346,086 2,399,728
18,283,104 33.570 35,505,136
258,983 1,716,496
405,698 64,497 470,195
174,201,225 1,732,000 198,533,889
686,914 11,887,399
7,449 399 39.034 2,978,654 203,771 11,919,498
284,438,434 444,732 4,808,721 203,771 420,984,008
4,005,343 22,012,933
37,422,590 109,947,009
15,947,620 16,257,398
190,290,189 192 446,345
16,241,526 19,037,226
29,960,357 29,960,357
16,241,742 16,405,742
1,202,388 3,302,388
210,941
154,755 1,704,228 1,936,204
35,201 1,576,943 1,629,644
281,641,354 3,281,171 29,960,357 0 413,146,187
2,797,080 (2,836,439) (25,151,636) 203,771 7,837,821
15,403 76,332
365,063 496,621
13,025,000 13,025,000
94,169,329 2,340,913 16,362,387 117,552,045
(68,392,333) (865,474) (196,314) (122,552,508)
26,158,062 2,340,913 28,521,913 (196,314) 8,597,490
28,955,142 (495,526) 3,370,277 7,457 16,435,311
111,007,797 4,491,475 52,188,303 800,274 223,034,212
139,962 939 3,995,949 3 55,558,580 $ 807,731 239.469,523
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and Actual
All Annually Budgeted Governmental F'und Types
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

General Fund
Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
PrOPETLY BXES. .ottt ettt e neas $ 12,772,805 § 12,772,805 % 1]
alES LK. s 62,118,940 62,118,946 0
OthEE EAXES. v 1,728,415 1,728,125 (290)
Licenses and permits.............. e 53,667 53,607 0
Fees and charges fOr SeTVICES. ..o 15,222,921 15,557,841 334,920
Fines and fOrfeitures. ... e 1,386,000 1,462,114 76,114
Special ASSESSITIENS. ... iviiii ittt
Intergovernmental...........cooooo o 21,501,164 21,499,216 (1,948)
INVesStment CamMINgS. ... 21,705,055 23,051,671 1,346,016
Miscellaneous......c...ocoevenes e 858,173 §92,374 34,201
TOLGl REVEIUES. ... e 137,347,146 139,136,759 1,789,613
Expenditures:
Current:
General ZOVEITITICTIE. ...ttt ettt e e . 20,331,191 18,589,774 1,741,417
Judicial and law enforcement. .. ... 76,943,318 74,682 887 2,260,431
Environment and public Works........oocoiiiiiiii 320,557 275,570 50,987
Social services......ooooooiiiiiiii i 2,119,729 2,050,463 63,2606
Community and economic development................., 3,345323 2,952,253 393,070
Intergovernmental:
o T T o) Ll 164,000 164,000 0
Community and economic development. 2,100,000 2,100,000 0
Environment and public WorTKS. ..o 210,941 210,941 0
Debt Service:
Principal retir€ment........o.ooooiiiiiii e
Interest and fiscal charges.........ccoooiii i
Total EXpendilures....................coooooiiioioi oo 105,541,059 101,031,888 4,509,171
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over EXpendifures.................c.oiiiiiiiiiiiii 31,806,087 38,104,871 6,298,784
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers If. ... 6,260,612 6,419,072 158,460
Operating transfers Ut ... (53,189,361) (53,098,387) 90,974
Total Other Financing Sources And USes...........c.cc.oo i (46,928,749) (46,679 315) 249,434
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses..................................... (15,122,662) (8,574,444) 6,548,218
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year. ... 43.214,813 43214813 0

Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.........cooooiiiiiii e $ 28,092,151 § 34640369 § 6.548 218

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Annually Budgeted
Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Funds

Totals (Memorandum Only)

Variance Variance Variance

Revised Budgetary Favorable Revised Budgetary  Favorable Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual  (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
74,188,803 § 74997121 § 808,318 § $ b 3 86,961,608 8 87,769,926 § 808,318
62,118,946 62,118,946 0

6,268,001 6,303,737 35,736 7,996,416 8,031,862 35,446
2,338,941 2,334,637 (4,304) 2,392,608 2,388,304 (4,304)
17,422,744 17,337,352 (85,392) 32,645,605 32,895,193 249,528
243,047 243,376 329 1,629,047 1,705,490 76,443
373,355 405,698 32,343 373,355 405,698 32,343
57,573,982 57,443,171 (130.811) 79,075,146 78,942,387 (132,759)
205,194 038,946 433,752 21,910,249 23,690,617 1,780,368
3,303,900 3,281,191 (22,769) 684 684 4,162,817 4,174,249 11,432
161,544,672 162,579,531 1,034,859 374,039 406,382 32,343 299,265,857 302,122,672 2,856,815
2,923,729 2,748 810 174,919 23,254 920 21,338,584 1,916,336
16,105,180 14,178,131 1,927,049 93,048,498 88,861,018 4,187,480
21,728,456 18,995,495 2,732,901 22,055,013 19,271,005 2,783,948
110,855,155 107,646,988 3,208,107 112,974,884 109,703,451 3,271,433
6,846,206 5,969,398 876,808 10,191,529 8,921,651 1,269,878
164,000 164,000 0

2,100,000 2,100,000 0

210,941 210,941 0

1,704,228 1,704,228 0 1,704,228 1,704,228 0

1,579,007 1,577,869 1,138 1,579,007 1,577,869 1,138

158,458,720 149,538,822 8,919,904 3,283,235 3,282,097 1,138 267,283,020 253,852,807 13,430,213
3,085,946 13,040,709 9,954,763 (2,909,196)  (2,875,715) 33,481 31,982,837 48,269,865 16,287,028
42,265,103 44,766,126 2,501,023 2,340.916 2,340913 3) 50,860,631 53,520,111 2,659,480
(5,945,467) (5,412,719) 532,748 (59,134 ,828) (58,511,100) 623,722
36,319,636 39,353,407 3,033,771 2,340,916 2,340,913 3) (8,268,197) (4,984,995) 3,283,202
39,405,582 52,394,110 12,988,534 (568,280) (534,802) 33,478 23,714,640 43,284 870 19,570,230
38,484,295 38,484,295 0 4,494,357 4,494,357 0 86,193,465 80,193,465 0
77.889.877 % __ 90878411 % _ 12988534 $§ _ 3926077 $_ 3959555 § _33478 $_ 109908105 $ _ 129478335 $§ 19,570,230
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combined Statement of Revenues,

Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings

All Proprietary Fund Types and Discretely Presented Component Unit

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Totals Component Totals
(Memorandum Only) Unit (Memorandum Only)
Internal Primary Monco Reporting
Enterprise Service Government Enterprises, Inc. Entity
Operating Revenues.
Charges for services.... 102,908,573 § 10,742.937 % 113,651,510 § 1,131,058 § 114,782,568
Other revenue..................... 476,431 101,630 578,061 67,815 045,876
Total Operating Revenues........................... 103,385,004 10,844,567 114,229,571 1,198,873 115,428,444
Operating Expenses:
Personal services. ... 21,027,564 1,267,206 22,294,770 815,720 23,110,499
Materials and supphies. 3,009,188 2,130,253 5,139,441 34,955 5,174,396
Contractual ServiCes............oi 5,343,524 2,575,330 7,918,854 36,774 7,955,628
Utilities. ... 37,561,205 1,422,837 38,984,042 38,984,042
Depreciation... 10,901,879 85,332 10,987,211 27,037 11,014,248
Insurance Claims............ 1,350,000 1,350,000 1,350,000
Other eXPENnSEeS. ..oouviiore i 4,103,813 108,746 4,212,559 118,638 4,331,197
Total Operating Expenses............................ 81,947,173 8,939,704 90,886,877 1,033,133 91,920,010
Operating Income (LoSS)............................. 21,437,831 1,904,863 23,342,694 165,740 23,508,434
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
INVESHIMETL INCOMIE. ..o 1,530,657 1,530,657 17,101 1,547,758
Interest expense and
(SCH] CHATEES. .. vv e et (7,652,011) (4,657) (7,656,668) (7,656,668)
Gain (loss) from disposal of
1€ ASSELS. ..ovvvieis i 4,959 (15,066) (10,107) (2,810 (12,917)
Other nonoperating revenue
(EXPENSE). i 423517 (107,389 116,128 316,128
Total Nonoperating Revenues
(EXpenses).....ocoi (5,692,878) (127,112) (5,819,990) 14,291 (5.805,699)
Income (Loss) Before
Operating Transfers 15,744,953 1,777,751 17,522,704 180,031 17,702,735
Operating transfers i, 5,168,201 18,791 5,186,992 5,186,992
Operating transfers out........ooooi (149,451) (37,078) (186,529) (186,529)
Net Income (LOSS)...c.cocooooovniia, 20,763,703 1,759,404 22,523,167 180,031 22,703,198
Retained Earnings (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year, Restated (Note D).......... 28,229,759 20,532,798 48,762,557 698,638 49,461,195
Retained Earnings (Deficit) At
End Of Year........ccccccooiiiioeii $___ 48993462 §_ 22292262 § 71285724 % 878,669 $ 72,164,393

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this stalement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combined Statement of Cash Flows
All Proprietary Fund Types - Primary Government

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 (Cont'd)
Internal Totals
Inerease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents EII[E)‘[)Fi.Tc’ Service ( ‘Memorandum Onl V)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from CUStOMIETS. ..o $ 96,017,074 % 305481 % 96,322,555
Cash receipts from quasi-external operating transactions. ..o 517450 10,398,236 10,915,692
Cash payments to cmployces for services ... . (16,171,839) (1,021,976) (17,193,815)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services.........._........ (37,977,159) (6,844.451) (44,821,610)
Cash payments for insurance Claims.. ... (2,052,564) (2.052,504)
Cash payments for quasi-external operating transaction . (9,270,588) (443,293) (9,713,881)
Other operating cash receipts.....oo.vvve s 476,187 98,759 574 946
Cash from Oher SOUTCES... oo 44,758 1,884,684 1,929,442
Other cash payments.............. (33,829) (33.829)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating Qetivities........................... 33,602,060 2,324 876 35,926,936
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities.
Operating transfers in from other funds........... 5,168,201 18,791 5,186,992
Operating transfers out to other funds (149,451) (37,078) (186,529)
Noncapital l0an proceeds.........oovorrer e 276.896 276,896
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital
SINARCIAZ ACHVILIES .. ... (. (oo s 5,295,646 (18.287) 5,277,359
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on capital leases........... . 4.770) (43,019) (47,789
Interest paid on capital lcascs.... (451) (4,657) (5,108)
Principal paid on long-term notes. (994,000) (994.,000)
Interest paid on long-term notes... (910,131 (910,131
Principal paid on revenue bonds... (6,480,000) (6,480,000)
Interest paid on revenue bonds........ (6,730,414) (6,730,414)
Proceeds from general obligation bonds..................... . , 4,100,000 4,100,000
Principal paid on general obligation bonds.........ccceeevne - (1,358,872) (1,358,872)
Interest paid on general obligation bonds (1,899,082) (1,899.082)
Landfill post-closure costs paid (48,939) (48,939)
Other Nscal charges paid. ..., (170,897) (170,897)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets. oo (15,338,843) (42.577) (15,381,420)
Net cash provided by (used for) capital
and related financing QUUVIES...............ooooovooooioiioccec (29,836,399) (90,253) (29,926,652)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investrnent securities. ..., (1,769,998) (1,769.998)
Sale of investment securitics 1,566,298 1,566,298
Interest received on INVESMENTS. ... 3,584,390 3.584.390
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities..............cccco......... 3,380,690 0 3,380,690
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents........ooccevecvenrnnnnnn, 12,441,997 2,216,336 14,658,333
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year......oviiciinn, 136,868,945 26,024,070 162,893,015
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year........coooooiovvnceisnnneneee $ 149.310.942 § 28240400 % 177,551,348
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO
Combined Statement of Cash Flows

All Proprietary Fund Types - Primary Government (Cont'd.)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Internal Totals
Enterprise Service (Memorandum Only)
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating iNCome (L085)....oii e % 21,437,831 1,904,863  § 23,342 694
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation. ... 10,901,879 85,332 10,987,211
Miscellaneous nonoperating income (expense) 10,929 1,884,684 1,895,613
(Increase) decrease in accounls reccivable. (5,925,205 68,058 (5.857,147)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds.. (33,772) (110,439) (144,211)
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments (415,310) (415,310)
(Increase) decrease in inventory of supphies............. (%,499) (21,332) (29,831)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 1,883,367 162,726 2,046,093
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds...... 264,560 14,328 278,888
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments 5,408,784 (964,551) 4,444,233
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits 77,496 3,771 81,267
Increase (decrease) in insurance claims payable (702,564) (702,564)
Total @dfusSIMERIS ... ... ... ... oo 12,164,229 420,013 12,584,242
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities ... hY 33,602,060 2324876 % 35,926,936

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:

During 1999, the Fnterprise funds reflected note payable obligations from noncash state public works loans in the amount
of $12,937,637. The Enterprise funds recognized noncash contributions of capital in the amount of $1,800,706 and a noncash
decline in the fair value of investments of $29,162. The Intemal Service funds entered into new borrowings under capital lcasc

agreements in the amount of $84,048.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Statement of Cash Flows
Component Unit

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Monco
Enterprises, Inc.

Cash flows from operating activities:
Excess of 1evenie over CXPeNSCS.......oiiiiiiii e et $ 180,031
Adjustments to reconcile excess revenue over
expenses to net cash provided by operating

activities:
DePreCIAtION. ...t 27,037
L.oss on disposal of equipment 2,810
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 5,576
(Increase) decrease in other assets. ..o cic i, (34,681)
Increase (dccrease) in accounts payable 4,817
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits......... (16,514)
Increase (decrease) in other Habilities..........c.coovvvvviiiicie e, 97,508
Total adjUSTMENTS. ... ....i it 86,553
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities.....................co L 266,584
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of equIpment....... ... (266,127)
Proceeds from sale of equipment................. 7,787
Proceeds from sale of investments 20,000
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities.................................... (238,340)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities.................................... 0
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.........oooooviiiini . 28,244
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year...........ccococoeiiiiiniinniiee e, 124,824
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.......c.cccooiiiiiviiioiiiee e $ 153,068

The Component Unit had no non-cash investing or financing activity during 1999.

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OIIIO

Notes to the Combined

Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

NOTE A
Description of
Montgomery County

Montgomery County was established on May 1, 1803, by an act of the Ohio General Assembly. It operates as a
political subdivision of the State of Ohio excrcising only those powers conferred by the Ohio legislaturc. A total of
eleven legislative and administrative County officials are clected by Montgomery County voters. The three member
Board of Commissioners is the legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chicf fiscal
officer and tax assessor and the County Treasurer serves as the custodian of all County funds and as tax collector. In
addition, there are six other elected administrative officials provided for by Ohio law which include: the Clerk of
Courts; Recorder; Coroner; Engineer; Prosecuting Attorney; and Sheriff, The judicial branch of the County includes
cleven Common Pleas Court Judges, two Domestic Relation Judges, two Juvenile Court Judges, one Probate Judge,
and five Court of Appeals Judges.

Montgomery County provides a multitude of services to its approximately 566,000 residents. For example, the
County offers a wide range of human and social services, hcalth and community assistance services, law
enforcement services, road and building maintenance services as well as other general and administrative support
services. Additionally, Montgomery County operates a water and wastewater system, a solid waste management
system, a health-carc facility for the mentally retarded and developmentally disabled, and two parking facilities.

Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the County complics with the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, in defining the financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of
the County as the primary government, which also includes all of the elected officials, organizations, activities and
functions which are not legally separate from the County and whose corporate powers the County holds. The
financial reporting entity also includes the component units for which the clected officials of the County are
financially accountable or for which the County is not financially accountable, but the nature and significance of
their relationship with the County are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements
to be mislcading or incomplete. Component units arc legally scparate entities that meet any of the following criteria:
(1) The primary government appoints the voting majority of the potential component unit's board, and (a) the
primary government is able to impose its will on the potential component unit or (b) the primary government is in a
relationship of financial benefit or burden with the potential component unit; (2) The potential component unit is
fiscally dependent upon the primary government or; (3) The financial statements would be

misleading if data from the potential component unit were not included.

Based on this criteria, the following is included as a discretely-presented component unit:

Manco Enterprises, Inc.: Monco Enterprises, Inc. is a legally separate, not-for-profit corporation served by a self-
appointing board of trustees and organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Ohio in 1970. The purpose of the
corporation is to assist and promote the general welfarc and nceds of the mentally retarded and otherwise
handicapped persons who live in Montgomery County. Monco provides employment opportunitics to these persons
by enrolling them in sheltered workshops and in community employment. The Montgomery County Board of
Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities provides Monco with staff salaries, transportation, certain
cquipment, staff to administer and supervise training programs, various financial reporting and certain funds as
necessary for the operation of the workshops. Based on the significant scrvices and resources provided by the
County to the Workshop and thc Workshop's sole purpose of providing assistance to retarded and handicapped
adults of Montgomery County, it is the County's position that exclusion could result in misleading financial data;
therefore, Monco Enterprises, Inc. is included as a discretely-presented component unit of Montgomery County.
Copies of this component unit's complete, scparately audited financial reports are on file at: The Montgomery
County Auditor's Office, Accounting Department, 451 West Third Street, Dayton, Ohio 45422,
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Notes to the Combined

Financial Statements

NOTE A
Description of
Montgomery County
(Cont'd.)

Related Organizations: Bascd on GASB Statement No. 14 criteria, the following are not inciuded in the County's
financial reporting entity. The County is not financially accountable for these fiscally independent organizations.
The imposition of will or financial benefit/burden relationship criteria do not apply and the County’s accountability
is limited to making certain appointments:

Five Rivers MetroParks District: The Probate Judge appoints three commissioners to administer the Park District.

Miami Valley Regional Transit Authority: Four of cight Board members are appointed by the County commission.

Dayton Montgomery County Public Library District: Four of the seven Library Trustees are appointed by the
County Commission and the remaining threc are appointed by Common Pleas Court Judges.

Sinclair Community College: Six of the nine Trustees are appointed by the County Commission and the remaining
three are appointed by the Governor.

NOTE B-

Basis of Presentation
and Summary of
Significant Accounting
Policies

The accounts of the County are organived on the basis of funds or account groups, cach of which is considered a
scparatc accounting entity. The operations of each fund arc accounted for based on a sct of self-balancing accounts
that comprise its asscts, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. The various
funds are summarized by type in the genceral purpose financial statements.

Amounts in the "Totals-Memorandum Only-Primary Government" columns in the combined financial staterments
represent a summation of the combined financial statement line items of the fund types and account groups of the
primary government only and are presented for analytical purpose only. The summation includes fund types and
account groups that use different bases of accounting. In addition, amounts in the "Totals-Memorandum Only-
Reporting Entity" column in the combined financial statements represent a summation of the combined financial
statement linc items of the fund types and account groups of the primary government and its discretely presented
component unit. Conscquently, amounts shown in these "totals-memorandum only” columns are not comparable to a
consolidation and do not represent the total resources available or total revenues and expenditures/expenses of the
County or the reporting entity.

The County uses the following fund types and account groups:

Governmental Funds.: Those funds through which most governmental functions are typically financed.
Funds included are:

General Fund: This fund accounts for all financial resources not accounted for in another fund. The major revenue
sources are sales tax, property tax, investment earnings, and state and local government fund receipts. The General
Fund is the operating fund of the County.

Special Revenue Funds: These are funds used to account for specific governmental revenues (other than major
capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action.
These funds include the Human Services Fund, Children Services Board Fund, Board of Mental Retardation Fund,
and all other federal and state grant funds.

Debt Service Funds: The Debt Service Funds arc used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the
payment of, principal and interest on general long-term debt.

Capital Projects Funds: These funds are used to account for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities and capital improvements other than those financed by Proprietary Funds. They include projects financed
by special assessments.

Proprietary Funds: The Proprietary Funds are used to account for those County activities which are similar to those
often found in the private sector. The measurement focus is upon determination of net income, financial position,
and changes in financial position. Funds included are:

Enterprise Funds: These funds account for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of County facilities which
are financed primarily by user charges.

Internal Service Funds: These funds arc used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department to other departments of the County or to other governments on a cost-reimbursement basis.
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Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity, for other
governments and/or funds. The County's Fiduciary Funds are comprised of:

FExpendable Trust Funds: Expendable Trust Funds are trust funds whose resources may be expended.
The County uses an Expendable Trust Fund to account for asscts, consisting of unclaimed funds, that it is holding in
a trustee capacity. Expendable Trust Funds arc accounted for and reported in essentially the same manner as
governmental funds.

Agency Funds: Agency Funds arc custodial in naturc (asscts equal liabilities) and do not purport to present the
financial position or results of opcrations of the related entities. These funds include undivided tax funds and payroll
withholding funds.

Account Groups: Account Groups are used 1o establish accounting control and accountability for the County's
general fixed assets and general long-term debt. The two account groups include:

General Fixed Assets Account Group: This account group is uscd to account for all fixed asscts of the County other
than those accounted for in the Proprietary Funds. General fixed assets include land, tand improvements, buildings,
structures and improvements, and furniture, fixtures, and equipment owned by the County.

General Long-term Debt Account Graup: This account group is used to account for all long-term debt of the
County cxcept that accounted for in Proprietary Funds.

Component Unit: A component unit is a legally separate organization for which the elected officials of the County
are financially accountable, or for which the nature and significance of its relationship with the County is such that
exclusion would cause the County's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County are prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Bases of Accounting

Primary Government - Governmental Funds and Expendable Trust Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual
basis of accounting and "flow of current financial resources" measurement focus. Under the modified accrual basis,
revenues for these funds are recognized when they become both measurable and avatlable to finance County
operations (collected within sixty days after year-end). In applying this concept, primary revenue sources accrued at
year end include sales tax, certain fees and charges for services, various intergovernmental revenues and investment
earnings. Under the modified accrual basis, expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the related
fund hability is incurred, if measurable, except for interest and principal on general long-term debt, which is
recorded when due. Agency funds are purely custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not focus on the
measurcment of operations; the modified accrual basis of accounting is followed, however, for recognizing assets
and liabilitics in these funds. Proprictary Funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting and "flow of
cconomic resources” measurement focus. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when camed and
measurable and expenses are recognized as incurred, if measurable.  The accounting and financial reporting
trcatment applicd to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. For Governmental and Expendable Trust
Funds, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of
these funds present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing
uses) in net current assets. For Proprietary Funds, all assets and liabilities (whether current on noncurrent) associated
with their activity are included on the balance sheet. The reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into
contributed capital and retained earnings components. Operating statements of these funds present increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

The Primary Government follows GASB Statement No. 20 in applying GASB guidance to its proprictary activitics
and Financial Accounting Standards Board statements and interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions
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and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before Novemnber 30, 1989 that do not conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements.

Discretely-Presented Component Unit - Financial transactions of Monco Enterprises, Inc. are accounted for and
reported on the accrual basis of accounting and the "flow of cconomic resources” measurement focus. Under the
accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned and measurable and expenses are recognized as incurred, if
measurable. This non-govermnmental component unit adheres to generally accepted accounting principles but is not
required to apply GASB standards, other than the reporting entity provisions of GASB Statement No. 14 when it is
included in a governmental financial reporting entity. [t should, therefore, be noted that for cash flow purposes the
component unit follows the reporting of FASB Statement 95 which is not compatible with the govemmental model.
As such, the Statement of Cash Flows for the Component Unit is reported scparately in the Combined Financial
Statements.

Budgetary Accounting and Control

The County is required by state law to adopt annual budgets for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds,
the Debt Service Funds and Certain Proprictary Funds. For these funds, the Board of County Commissioners must
adopt an appropriations budget by January 1st of a given year, or adopt a temporary appropriation measure with final
passage of a permanent budget by April lst. Budgets arc adopted for each organizational unit by major
expenditure/expense category (i.e. personal services, professional scrvices, capital outlays, etc.) which constitutes the
legal level of budgetary control.

Each County department, in conjunction with the Office of Management and Budget, prepares an oniginal budget
which 1s approved by the Board of County Commissioncrs. Throughout the year, the County monitors and maintains
the legal level of budgetary control within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting expenditures/expenses
and encumbrances to cxceed appropriations for each major expenditurc/cxpense category (i.c. personal scrvices,
professional services, capital outlays, ectc.). While management is permitted discretion in allocating a major
expenditure/expense catcgory budget among specific subcategories, any and all budget modifications involving
revisions between major expenditurc/cxpensc categories or to total appropriated amounts must be approved through
legal resolution by the Board of County Commissioners. Each revised budget includes all modifications that were
made throughout the year, including any supplemental appropriations. During the year, scveral supplementary
appropriations were necessary. Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end. Prior year
encumbrances and corresponding prior year appropriations arc carricd forward as part of the budgetary authority for
next year and are included in the revised budget amounts shown in the budget-to-actual comparisons.

The budgetary process does not include annual budgeting for the following Special Revenue Funds, which operate
on a different fiscal year: Alcohol, Drug Addiction and Mental Hcalth Services Board; Human Services;
Community Development Block Grant; Job Training Partnership Act; Child Support Enforcement; Youth Services
Subsidy; Economic Development; Community Corrections; ADAMHS Board Federal Grants; Children Services
Board State Grants; Justice Assistance Act; Community Human Services Capital Alloc.; Community Oriented
Policing Program; Shenff's Seized Assets; Sheniff-CANE; Sheriff-OCN; DUI Enforcement Grant; Local Law
Enforcement Block Grant; General Fund Strategic Investment; Juvenile Court HS Levy Grants; Juv. Acct. Inc.
Block Grant; CPC State Grants; CPC Federal grants; Litter Control; Dora Tate Center Grant; MRDD Federal Grants;
MRDD Residential; MRDD Dual Diagnosis; MRDD Family Resources; VAWA Grant; VOCA Grant; DR Ct-Child
Protection Mediation, and Building Regulations Grant. It also does not include annual budgeting for Capital
Projects Funds and for the Internal Service Property/Casualty and Workers' Compensation Risk Management Funds.
Appropriations in these funds are made on a multi-year basis and the free balances do not lapse at ycar-end.
Budgctary control is on this multi-year basis and, therefore, comparisons with annually appropriatcd funds do not
provide mcaningful data and are not presented. In addition, no budget was adopted for the Children Services
Building Debt Service Fund, which was unappropriated during the year and had no expenditures, so no budgctary
schedulc is presented for this fund.

The County's budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on a budgetary basis instcad of on a GAAP basis.
The major differcnces between the budget basis and the GAAP basis are that revenucs are recorded when
actually received (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP) and expenditures/expenses
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are recorded when paid (budget) as opposed to when incurred (GAAP). Additionally, the County reflects
outstanding encumbrances as expenditures/expenses on the budgetary basis.

The actual results of operations compared to the revised appropriation for annually budgeted Governmental Funds
are presented in the Combined Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and
Actual (Non-GAAP Budgctary Basis)-All Annually Budgeted Governmental Fund Types.

Fncumbrances

Encumbrance accounting for purchase orders and contracts is used during the normal course of operations to reserve
portions of appropriations in County funds as an extension of budgetary control. An encumbrance is a reserve on
the available spending authority duc to a commitment related to unperformed contracts for goods or services and
does not represent 4 GAAP expenditure or liability. Reserves for encumbrances are reported separately for each
Governmental Fund.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The County Treasurer pools and invests all active and inactive County Funds. All cash and investments with the
Treasurer are considered to be cash equivalents, since they arc available to County funds on demand. If a fund
overdraws its account in the Treasury pool, the overdraft is reported as an interfund liability in that fund, with a
corresponding interfund receivable reported in the General Fund.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, Proprietary Fund participation in the Treasurer's investment pool is
treated as a demand account. In addition, all highly liquid investments held by fiscal agents in segregated accounts,
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased, are also considered to be cash cquivalents.  Scparate invest-
ments arc reported as investments on the Balance Sheet. [nvestments are recorded at fair value, in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 31.

Inventory of Supplies

Inventory is reported in Proprictary Funds and valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Costs are expensed
when mventory is consumed.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets occur only in the Proprietary Funds. The restricted assets include revenue bond debt proceeds
restricted by applicable bond indentures, funds reserved for the redemption of matured revenue and general
obligation bond coupons, and funds reserved for the purpose of future construction.

Fixed Assets

All fixed asscts arc valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market valuc on the date received. General infrastructure fixed
assets, those applicable to roads, bridges, sidewalks and the like, are not capitalized in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group. Infrastructurc fixed asscts related to Proprietary Funds arc capitalized, based on the County's
valuation policy, within the appropriatc Proprietary Fund. No depreciation has been provided on general fixed
assets. Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by Proprictary Funds is charged as an cxpense against
current operations. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful life using the straight line method.
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The estimated useful lives of the various fixcd asscts classes arc as follows:

Class Estimated Useful Life
Utility plant in SETVICE.....iiiiiii i s 50 years

Buildings, structures and iMprovementS. ... e 20-40 years
Furniture, fixtures and COUIPIMENL.. ..ot ciseieieie e 9 | 2 YCATS

Bond anticipation notes

All bond anticipation notes are short-term and do not meet the refinancing criteria, as established by FASB
Statement No. 6, for classification as long-term.  As such, they are classified as current fund liabilitics in the fund
receiving the proceeds.

Long-term Liabilities

In accordance with GAAP, long-term liabilities are not recognized within Governmental Funds. They are, instead,
reported as liabilitics in the General Long-term Debt Account Group. Long-term liabilitics used to finance
Proprietary Fund operations and directly payable from revenues of those funds are reported in the applicable
Proprictary Fund.

{Unamortized Bond Charges

In 1993, the County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Staterment No. 23 in
connection with its accounting and financial reporting [or refundings of debt reported by proprietary activities.
Accordingly, unamortized bond charges for revenue bonds and self-supporting general obligation bonds are shown
on the balance shecet as contra-liability accounts and include amounts for deferred losses from advance refundings of
proprictary debt. Unamortized bond charges arc amortized as a component of interest expense, using the straight-
ling method, over the remaining life of the applicable debt.  Additional, detailed information regarding unamortized
bond charges is provided in Note H.

Capitalization of Interest

It is the County's policy to capitalize net interest costs on funds borrowed to finance Proprietary Fund construction
projects until substantial completion of the project. For the year ended December 31, 1999, net interest cost of
$870,243 was capitalized to construction-in-progress, in connection with Proprictary Fund construction projects.

Contributed Capital

Contributed capital is not subjcct to repayment and represents primarily assets contributed to Proprictary Funds by
residential and commercial developers and subdividers. Tt also includes federal and state grants externally restricted
for capital acquisitions. The County docs not close depreciation of grant-funded assets to the contributed capital
account. Accordingly, all depreciation on contributed assets is included in the determination of net income and
subsequently closed to retained eamings.

Special Assessments

The County applies the provisions of GASB Statement No. 6 in accounting for and reporting special assessments
and related transactions. The County's Special Assessment Bonds are secured by liens on assessed properties and are
also backed by the full faith and credit of the County as additional security. Accordingly, they are accounted for and
reported in the General Long-term Decbt Account Group as Special Assessment Debt with Governmental
Commitment. The accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on these bonds is
accounted for and reported in the Debt Service Funds. Capital improvements financed by special assessments
(including those affecting Enterprise Funds) arc accounted for and reported in the Capital Projects Funds. The cost of
special assessment improvements affecting Enterprise Funds is capitalized on the appropriate Enterprise Fund
balance sheet and is offsct by contributed capital. Service type special assessments are accounted for and reported in
the fund type that best reflects the nature of the transactions and are treated like user fees. All special asscssment
levies are reported as revenue when measurable and available.

Intergovernmental Revenues

Intergovernmental revenues, such as grants, entitlements, or shared revenues, are recognized as revenue when
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mcasurable and available in Governmental Funds and when eamed and measurable in Proprictary Funds. Federal
and state reimbursement-type grants for the acquisition or construction of fixed assets in certain Proprietary Funds
are recorded as receivables and contributed capital when the related expenses are incurred. All other federal and state
reimburscment-type grants are recorded as rcccivabies and revenues when the related expenditures/expenses are
incurred. Cash pass-through grants received by the County are recognized as revenues and expenditures/expenses in
a Governmental or Proprictary Fund, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 24,

Sales Tax

The County has levied a 1% sales tax which is collected by the State of Ohio and remitted to the County monthly.
This tax was enacted by the Board of County Commissioners, under the authority of the Ohio Revised Code. Sales
tax revenues are credited to the County's General Fund and provide financing for current operating expenditures as
well as for the support of various other community programs and activitics. The County complies with GASB
Statement No. 22 in accounting for and reporting sales tax revenues. Sales tax revenues are recognized in the period
they become both measurable and available to finance current period expenditures. The County accrues sales tax
revenue only for taxes which are collected and held by the State as of year end and which are remitted to the County
within 60 days following year end.

Interfund Transactions

During the normal course of operations, the County has numnerous transactions between funds. Operating transfers
represent transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to a fund through which those resources will be
expended. Residual equity transfers represent nonroutine transfers of equity between funds. Interfund transactions
that would be treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses if they involved organizations external to the County
arc similarly treated when involving other funds of the County.

Compensated Absences

The County applies the provisions of GASB Statement No. 16 in accounting for and reporting compensated
absences. The vesting method is used to estimate accrued sick leave liabilities. These liabilitics, as well as those for
vacation leave and other compensatory leave, also include estimates for salary-related payments associated with the
payment of compensated absences and are reported as accrued wages and benefits. For Governmental Funds, the
portion of the Hability which is not currently due and payablc is recorded in the General Long-term Debt Account
Group. Employees earn vacation time at varying rates depending on the duration of their employment. Employees
with a minimum of one year of service become vested in accumulated unpaid vacation time. Ohio law requires that
the vacation time not be accumulated for more than three years. Unused vacation is payable upon termination of
employment. Law enforcement employees in the County Sheriff's Department may accumulate unused sick leave,
until retirement, up to a maximurm of 3,000 hours; those employees with a minimum of ten years of service are, upon
retirement, paid for accumulated sick leave at 50% of their current wage rate. Non-bargaining employces of the
Board of County Commissioners, and certain other County offices, with a minimum of ten years of servicc may,
upon retirement, receive cash payment for accurnulated unused sick leave at the employee’s rate of pay at the time of
scparation, at the rate of one hour’s pay for every two hours of accumulated balance, for a maximum of 3,000
convertible hours to a maximum cash conversion of 1,500 hours. Other County employees may accumulate unused
sick leave, until retirement, up to a maximum of 720 hours. Employecs with a minimum of ten years of service are,
upon retirement, paid for accurnulated sick feave, at current wage rates, as follows: for 1-240 hours, 1 day's pay for
3 days accumulated sick lcave: for 241-400 hours, | day's pay for 2 days accumulated sick leave; and for 401-720
hours, 1 day's pay for | days accumulated sick leave.

Insurance

The County’s risk management programs includc sclf-funding for certain property and casualty liability and
workers’ compensation claims. The programs are administered, in part, by third-party scrvice agents and arc
accounted for in the Internal Service Funds in accordance with GASB Statement No. 10. Self-insurance liabilities
reported at year-end include incurred but unreported claims, based on third-party and managerial estimates.
Additional, detailed information regarding risk management is provided in Note J.

Fund Equity

The County records rescrvations for portions of fund equity which are legally restricted for specific future uses or
which do not represent available, spendable resources and therefore, are not available for appropriations for
expenditures. Designations of fund equity are amounts that have been officially designated by management for a
specific future use, which arc not legally segregated. Unreserved/undesignated fund equity indicates that portion of
fund equity which is available for appropriations in future periods.
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g basis follows:
Reconciliation-

GAAP Basis

to Budger, Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Basis Over Expenditures and Other Uses
Special Deir

Description General Revenue Service
GAAP BasiS.....oovoooecenicinicniensss i $(15,402,039) $ 28,955,142 $ (495,526)
Non-annually budgeted funds..........ccnn (23,535,023)
GAAP basis for annually budgeted funds................... $(15,402,039) § 5420119 % (495,526)
Increase (decrease)
Duc to revenues:

PrOPErty TaXES oot e b 5,059 $ 86,250 $

SIS LAKES v.vvvererire e et (741,583)

OLREr BAXES oot e e eieee s i 17,450 1,885

Licenses and permits 25 (11,449)

Fees and charges for services. i (1,630,621) 367,558

Fines and forfeitures. ..o, 4,601 (3,038)

INETZOVEMMIEIAL v e (1,101,448) (2,605,667)

Investment eamings.... 11,851,186 (36,026)

MiSCEIANEOUS. cvevvrvveeveeeeee e eees it s s e e o (356,266) 1,153,573 (38,350)
Total dUE 10 FEVEIIUCS . ouiir i eee e ee e e et aasans $  8,048.409 % (1,046,914) $ (38,350)
Due to expenditures:

Current:

General ZOVEIMIMENt. ... e $ (582,184) $ 1,256,533 3

Judicial and law enforcement..........oocoocie oo (2,158,468) (4,986,441)

Environment and public works.............oooens 34,208 (3,256,569)

SOCTAL BEIVICES. .ot st (307) (2,217,545)

Community and cconomic development ... (156,553) (2,982,775)

Debt Service:

Principal retirement. ... 77,221 154,755

Interest and fiscal charges..........cccccoee i 17,500 35,201 (926)
Total due to eXpenitures. ... $(2.768.583) $(11,996,841) 5 (926)
Duce to other financing sources and (uscs):

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets/sundries................. $  (60,929) $  (15,053) 3

Proceeds from capital 1€ases.......oovvooiic (130,958) (365,663)

Operating transfers IN............c e 1,739,656 (810,602)

Operating ransfers Ol e () 61,209,070
Total due to other financing sources and (Uses)............. $ 1,547,769 % 60,017,752 3 0
Budgetary BasiS. ... oo e $ (8.574.444) $ 52,394,116 $(534,802)
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The County reclassified the Reibold Building fund, cffective January 1, 1999, changing it from an Internal
Service fund type. This change resulted in the operating portion of the fund being reclassified to a Special
Revenue fund type. It also resulted in certain cash restricted for debt being reclassified to a Debt Service fund
type and certain cash restricted for capital construction being reclassified to a Capital Projects fund type. All
fixed assets, previously reported in the Reibold Building Internal Service fund were transferred to the General
Fixed Assct Account Group for 1999, at their net book value of $5,796,464. Bonds payable totaling, $3,555,000
were similarly transferred to the General Long-term Debt Account Group.

The County changed its fixed asset capitalization threshold during 1999, increasing it from $1,000 to a new
threshold of $5,000. The retroactive application of this change resulted in the removal of all assets valued at less
than $5,000 from the General Fixed Assct Account Group and from Proprietary Funds.

An adjustment was also madc to correct a misclassification of $581,613 in cash previously included in the
Water and Scwer Assessment Capital Projects fund which is now included in the restricted cash of the
Wastewater Enterprise fund. Similarly, $1,300,000 in cash previously included in the Public Works Capital
Projects fund has been reclassified and ts now included in the restricted cash of the Stillwater Center Enterprisc
fund. Also, $1,110,305 previously included in the restricted cash of the Water Enterprise has been reclassified
and is now inctuded in the restricted cash of the Wastewater Enterprise fund. These changes had no cffect on the
operating results of the prior year as previously reported.

Finally, due to the recognition of a revised County policy which increased the maximum number of sick leave
hours staff of certain departments may be compensated for upon retirement, the estimated liability for
compensated absences included in the General Long-term Debt Account Group as of December 31, 1998, was
increased by $1,032,329 from the previously reported amount of $12,113.447 to a revised amount of
$13,145,770. The impact of this policy rcvision on the Proprietary funds and on any compensated absences
amounts included as fund liabilities was not material.

The following is a summary of these adjustments by fund type and by Account Group.

General
Fund Balance Retained Farnings Long-term
Investment Debt
Special Debt Capital Internal In General (Total
Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Service Fixed Assets  Liabilities)
Amounts at December 31, 1998,
as previously reported $110,740,878  $2,896.458  $44.596,623  $29.384,148  $32.641,564 §134,384,527 §$37.817.484
Restatement for reclassitication
of Reibold Building Fund 266,919 1,595,017 9,473,293 (12,082,337) 5,796,464 3,555.000

Restatement for change in
capitalization threshold
Restatement for reclassification
of construction cash
Restatement for change in
cstimated Liability for sick leave

Amounts at January 1, 1999, as
restated

(1,881,613)

(3,036,002)

1,881,613

(26,429)

(12,764,335)

1.032,329

$I1L.007.797  $4.491.475

$52,188,303

$28,229,759

$20,532.798

§127,410,656

$42,404.813
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Primary Government: Monies held in the County Treasury are pooled for the purpose of investrent management.
Eamings on the pooled investments are distributed, by the County Treasurer, on the basis of the average daily
balances of those funds cligible to reccive investment income to the average daily balance of the total County
Treasury. With the exception of a limited number of specific funds which qualify to receive investment income, as
prescribed by Ohio law, all remaining investment income is allocated to the General Fund. Al cash and
investments with the County Treasurcr arc considered to be cash equivalents since they are available to County
funds on demand. The County invests in those instruments identified in section 135.35 of the Ohio Revised Code.
Specifically, authorized investment instruments consist of (1) Bonds, notes, or other obligations guaranteed by the
United States; (2) Bonds, notes, or other obligations issued by any federal government agency or instrumentality; (3)
No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations listed in (1) or (2) and repurchase
agreements under the terms of which agreement the County purchases and the seller agrees unconditionally to
repurchase any of the securitics listed in (1) or (2); (4) Bonds and other obligations of Ohio, its political
subdivisions, or other units or agencies of Ohio or its political subdivisions; (5) Qualifying commercial paper 1ssued
by any corporation incorporated under the laws of the United States or a state; and (6) the Ohio State Treasurer's
investment pool (STAROhio). Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase
agreements and derivatives arc prohibited. STAROhio is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, but
docs operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in
STAROhio are valued at STAROhio's share price which is the price the investment could be sold for on December
31.1999.

Funds invested by fiscal agents are determined by trust agreements and bond indentures. Like the cash invested by
the County Treasurer, eligible investments include U.S. government obligations.

Amounts available for deposit or investment are as follows:

Primary Government:

Cash and cash equivalents (carrying amounts)

Pooled (including the County Treasurer's investment pool)...............ooocovicii o $ 478,303917
SCEICGACA. ...t e 35,879,274
Scgregated investment accounts (CATYING @MOUNES) ... .ovutiven it et eeaiaas 10,973,111
Reconciling items (net) to arrive at bank balance of deposits...................oc 4,872,605
Total available for deposit and investment:
(Bank balance of deposits/fair value of investments). .. ... $ 530,028,907

Any public depository at the time it receives a County deposit or investment is required to pledge to the investing
authority, as collateral, eligible securities of aggregate market value that, when added to the portion of the deposit by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, equals or excceds the amount of County funds deposited. A public
depository may, at its option, pledge a single pool of eligible sccuritics to secure the repayment of all public monies
held by the depository. The pool of securities so pledged must have a current market value at lcast equal to 110% of
all public monies on deposit with the depository including the amount covered by federal insurance
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GASB Statement No. 9 requires the County to report cash flows for its Proprictary Funds. For purposes of the
Statement of Cash Flows, Proprictary Fund participation in the Treasurer's investment pool is treated as a demand
account and reported as a cash equivalent on the Balance Sheet. In addition, all highly liquid investments held by
fiscal agents in segregated cash accounts, with a maturity of three months or less when purchased, are also
considered to be cash equivalents. Only scparate investments arc reported as investrments on the Balance Sheet. At
December 31, 1999, the fair value of investments was $8,906,776 below the County's net cost. Investments are
carried at fair value, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31. Fair value is determined by quoted market prices.
The County includes the change in the fair value of investments as an adjustment to investment earnings.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB Statement No. 3) has established credit risk categories for
deposits and investments as follows:

Category 1 - Investments that are insurcd or registered, or securities held by the County or its agent
in the County's name.
Deposits that are insured or collateralized with securities held by the County or its agent
in the County's name.
Category 2 - Investments that arc uninsured and unregistered with securities held by the counterparty's
trust department or agent in the County's name.
Deposits that are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's
trust department or agent in the County's name.
Category 3 - Investments that are uninsured and unregistered with securitics held by the counterparty,
or by its trust department or agent but not in the County's name.
Deposits that arc uncollateralized or collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution, or by its trust department or agent but not in the County's name.
Based on the above criteria, the County's deposit and investments at December 31, 1999 are classified as follows:

Category Bank Carrying Fair
I 3 Balance Value Value
Deposits:
FDIC Insured Deposits $ 39057384 $ $ 3957384
Demand Deposits 60,277,151 60,277,151
Total Deposits $ 3957384 $ 60,277,151 $ 64,234,535
Investments:
U.5. Treasury Notes § 83,603,544 $ 83,603,544 $ 83,603,544
Qther 1.5, Government
Secunities 337,866,878 337,860,878 337,866,878
Municipal Bonds 644 400 644 400 644 400
Investments in State
Treasury Pool (1) 26,358,327 29,358,327
Investments in U.S. Gov't,
Mutual Funds (1) 14,321 223 14,321,223
Total Investments $422,114,822 3 465,794,372 $ 465,794,372

(1) The County's investments in the State Treasury Pool and the U.S. Government Mutual Funds are not categorized because they are
not evidenced by sceurities that exist in physical or book entry form.

Discretely Presented Component Unit: At year-end, Monco Enterprises, Inc. had $153,068 available for deposit, of
which $104,210 was eligible for FDIC insurance coverage, with the remaining $48 858 uninsured and
uncollateralized. The $280,000 investment consisted of nonnegotiable certificates of deposit eligible for FDIC
insurance coverage. There are no statutory guidelines regarding the deposit and investment of funds by a
not-for-profit corporation.
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NOTE F. Indmidual lund mterfund recevables and payables balances, for the Primary Government, as of’
December 31, 1999, are as follows:

Interfund

Receivables/Payables

Due From Due Io
Receivables Payables
General 'und. ... $ 3,684,838 $1,315,028
Special Revenue Funds:
Board of Mental Retardation 516,734 355,609
Alcohol, Drug Addiction and Mental Heaith Services Board .. 1,046 28,030
Children Services Board 2,084,918 183,790
Human Services . ) 478,662 2,558,778
Human Services Levy | 2,444,127
Country View Manor 4,080 14,074
Road, Auto and Gas 65,610 145,380
Real Estate Assessme 2,660 10,428
Community Development Bloc 925 1,046,458
Job Training Partnership Act, ..., 2,019,284
Child Support Enforecment 401,772 512,516
Youth Services Subsidy, | 14,215
Cornmunity Corrections |, 10,406 27,781
ADAMHS Board Federal Grants | 160
Hotel/Motel Tax Administration 307
OtEr e i 566,057 278,962
Total Special Revenue FURTS ... oo 6,576,997 196,
Capital Project Funds:
Public Works Capital, ..o 4,326
Data Processing Capital | 1,292
Total Capital Project Funds 0 5018
Enterpnise Funds:
T 53,769 151,642
WS WA 218,853 269,492
Solid Waste Management 258,430 405,312
Parking Facilities ... 13,021 704
Stillwater Center 193,073
Total Enterprise Funds . 343073 0202723
Intemal Service Funds:
Printing Services . 13,726 2,643
Mailroom ___ 136,842 1,812
Stockroom, 219,612 1,348
Service Depot . 85,221 10,150
Teleccommunications 430,513 16,908
Health Insurance Admin/E.AP 414 1,402
Property/Casualty Risk Management, ..., 1,000 8,857
Warkers' Compensation Risk Management e 2,658,084 1,745,309
Total Internal Service Funds 3,545, 1,788,420
Agency Funds:
Undivided Tax A gency Funds........... 3,025,750
Total Agency Funds... Lt rie e i e e e vre s v aee e e vee e reaes 0 1,025,750
TOU 1. .. oo oo oot et et e ettt e e et et e et et e s $14,351320  $14,351,320
Due to/from Primary Government and Component Unit consists of the following:
Due From Due To

Component Unit _Primary Government

Primary Government--

Board of Menital Retardation--

Special Revenue Fund. ... $100,000

Component Unit-

Monco Enterprises, INC........oooiiiiiiiii $100,000
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NOTE G-
General Fixed Assets

A summary of changes in gencral fixed assets follows:

Balance Adjusted Balance Balance

Decemeber 31, January 1, December 3/,
1998 Adjustments* 1999 Additions  (Deductions) 1999

Land. .o $ 4,403,194 § 282,940 % 4,680,140 % $ § 4,686,140
Land improvements. .. 1,423,337 (20,252) 1,403,085 0,725 1,412,810
Buildings, structures and improvements 83,799,318 4,904,379 88,703.697 8,703,697
Furniture, fixtures and equipment._._._ 43,388,838 (12,574,447) 30,814,391 3498 887 (1,942,674) 32,370,604
Construction-in-progress.......oe ... 1,369,840 439,503 1,809,343 15,028,844 16,834,187
$134,384,527  §(6,967.871) $127,416,656 $18.537,456 $(1.942,674) $144.011,438

*The adjustments include the beginning year transfer of certain assets, previously reported in an Intemal Service fund, w the
General Fixed Assets Account Group due 1o a fund reclassification, as further explained in Note D. In addition, the adjustments

reflect the County’s change in its fixed asset capitalization threshold, during 1999, from $1,000 to $5,000.

At December 31, 1999 general fixed asscts include approximately $1,165,000 of cquipment under capitalized

leases.

Construction-in-progress is composed of the following:

Project Expended o Required
Authorization Dec. 31, 1999 Committed Future Financing

Parks Maintenance Building...................... § 157,593 $ 154,553 by 3,040 None
Madison Lakes Lodge Renovation..............e 238,730 235,024 3,706 None
Coroner/Crime Lab Renovation................ ... 411,500 389,041 22,459 None
VOA Building Construction ... 3,565,106 3,043,399 521,707 Nong¢
Reibold Building Projects.....o.oooiiiiinnnnns 12,279,034 5,105,427 7,173,607 None
Animal Shelter Expansion....oo 1,201,692 102,062 1,099,630 None
CSB Building Construction .........ooevvienons 8,069,790 3,437,475 4,632,315 None
Center For Adolescent Services................... 5,500,000 3,552,781 1,947.219 None
Kuntz Facility Renovation........................ 2,606,844 818,425 1,788,419 None

$34,030,289 $16,838,187 $17,192,102
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Primary Government:

The following is a summary of bond and long-term notc obligations of the County as of December 31, 1999:

Year Purpose/ Interest Final January 1, December 31,
Issued Description Rate Maturity 1999 Additions (Reductions) 1999
Self-Supporting General Obligation Bonds Pavable From Enterprise Funds:
Fayable from water revenues:
1990 Morth High Water Main 7.000% 2000 $ 105,000 h) 3 (50,000) 55,000
1992 Yarkee St/Sp Valley Wir
Main Ext 5.700% 2012 522,734 (27,872) 494,862
1992 Byers Rd Wir Main Ext 5.700% 2012 130,500 (6,000) 124,500
1993 North High Water Main 440004
'93 Refunding 5.500% 2011 855,000 (10,000) 845,000
1999 5t Rt 49/1-70 Corr Wir 47508
Improvement 5.750% 2019 1,700,000 1,700,000
total payable from water 3 1,613,234 3 1,700,000 3 (93.872) 3,219,362
Puyable from wastewater revenues:
1990  Sewer Inprovement 7.0007% 2000 % 835,000 5 $ (315,000 520,000
1992 Chatauqua Sewer Dist 5.700%, 2012 295,000 (15,000) 280,000
1993 Sewer Improve Bonds- 4.400%
'93 Refunding 5.5000% 201 8,755,000 (75,000} 8,680,000
1994 Clyo/Spring Valley 6.000%-
Swr Project 6.200%% 2014 1,310,000 (55,000) 1,255,000
1996 Big Three Trunk 5.300%
Swr Project 5.600F% 2016 5,795,000 (190,000) 5,605,000
1996 Water Pollution Control 5.300°4
Master Plan 5.600% 2016 11,790,000 (380,000) 11,410,000
1999 St Rt 49/1-70 Corr Swr 4.750%
Improvement 5.750% 2019 2,400,000 2,400,000
total payable from wastewater $ 28,780,000 $ 2,400,000 % (1,030,000) 30,150,000
Payable from parking focilities rvenues:
1991 Parlang Facilities Constr. 6.400¢% 2001 % 705,000 h) (220,000 485,000
1993 Parking Facihitics- 4.400F%
93 Refunding 5,500% 2011 3,830,000 (30,000) 3.800.000
total payable from parking facilities 3 4,535,000 3 3 (250,000) 4,285,000
Total Self-Supporting General Obligation Bonds
Fayable From Enterprise Funds: b 34,928,234 $ 4,100,000 § (1.373,872) 37,654,362
Revenue Bonds Payable From Enterprise Fund Reverues:
Payable from water revenues:
1992 Water Rev Bords- 5.150%
Girtr Moraine/Beaverereck 6.250% 2017 $ 36,335,000 $ (310,000 36,025,000
1993 Water Rev Refimding Bonds 4,400
530004 2008 16,090,000 (1,295.000) 14,795,000
total payable from water $ 52,425,000 $ $ (1,605,000) 50,820,000
Payable from wastewater revenues:
1993 Sewer Systermn Revenue 4.700%
Refimding 5.800% 201t $17.240,033 3 5 (1,280,000) $15,960,033
total payable from wastewater $17,240,033 3 (1,280,000) $15,960,033
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Year Purpose/ Interest Final January 1, December 31,
Assued Description Rate Marurity 1999 Additions (Reductions) 1999
FPavable from solid waste management revenues:
1967 Incinerator 4.500% &
5.230% 2002 % 1,800,000 $ (420,000) % 1,380,000
1995 Solid Waste Rev 4.200%
Refunding 6,000 2010 23,375,000 (1,200,000} 22,175,000
1996 Solid Waste Rev 5.000%-
Bonds 5.500% 2010 31,735,000 {1,995,000) 29,740,000
total payable from solid waste munagennent $ 56,910,000 3 - § (3,615000) $ 53,295,000
Total Revenue Ronds Payvable From Enterprise Revenues: $ 126,575,033 5 - $(6,500,000) $ 120,075,033
Long-term Notes Payable From Enterprise Funds:
Pavable from warer funds:
1994 Ohio Public Works
Cotrmission [.oans 1374 2014 $ 465,375 g - $ (27375) % 438,000
total payable from water b 405,375 3 - (27,37%) $ 438 000
Payable from wastewater funds:
1978  Ohio Water Dev. Authority 5250% 2017 $ 3,022,746 (100,569) g 2922177
1994 Ohio Public Works
Commrmssion [oans 0% 2015 2,801,495 50,950 (173,495) 2,738,950
1995 Ohio Water Dev. Authority 4.180% 2014 1,436,055 (67,482) 1,368,573
1996 Ohio Water Dev. Authority 41600 2016 4,535,381 14,514 (180,691) 4,369,204
1996 Ohio Water Dev. Authority 4.350% 2016 1,052,159 5,359 (43,531) 1,013,987
1997 Ohio Water Dev. Authority 4.040% 2017 2,117,259 (51,135) 2,066,124
1997  Ohio Water Dev. Authority 4.120% 2017 6,082,400 221,571 (238,944) 6,065,027
1998 Ohio Water Dev. Authonty 3910 2018 422,220 4,609,102 (110,778) 4,920,544
1999 Ohio Public Works
Commission Loans 3000% 2013 225,940 225946
1999 Ohio Water Dev. Authority 3790% 2020 3 - b 7,810,195 3 7,810,195
total payable from wastewater 5 21,529.715 $ 12937637 $ (966,625) $ 33,500,727
Total Long-term Notes Payable From Enterprise Funds: g 21,995,090 § 12937637 $ 0 (94000) § 33938727

The current portions of Proprietary Fund bond and long-term note obligations are included in the
Decernber 31, 1999 balances in the preceding sehedule. Current and long-term portions are as follows:

Sclf-supporting general obligation bonds: Current Long-term FPortion
pavable from Enterprise Funds: FPortion (net of current)
Water $ 155,305 3 3,064,057
Wastewater 1,345,000 28,805,000
Parking Facilitics 270,000 4,015,000
total pavable from Enterprise Funds z 1,770,305 $ 35884057
Revenue bonds payable from Enterarise Funds;
Water g 1,675,000 $ 49,145,000
Wastewater 1,340,000 14,620,033
Solid Waste Management 3,820,000 49,475,000
total payable from Enterprise Funds: b3 6,835,000 $ 113,240,033
rr_ f vy e L i o oo
Water 5 27,375 3 410,625
Wastewater 1,384 941 32,115,786
total pavable from Enterprise Funds: $ 1,412.316 § 32526411

- 46 -



MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Notes to the Combined
Financial Statements

NOTE I1-
Long-term Debt
and Other
Obligations
(Cont'd.)

Unamortized Bond Charges

The County follows GASB Statement No. 23 in conngction with its accounting and [inancial reporting for refunding of
deht reported by proprietary activities. As such, unamortized bond charges for revenue bonds and sclf-supporting general
obligation bonds are shown on the balance sheet as contra-liability accounts and include deferred losses in connection with
advance refunding. Deferred losses represent the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying value of
the old debt and are amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunding debt or the refunded debt, Issuance costs and
discounts or premiums related to refunding bonds are, however, amortized over the life of the new debt. All unamortized
bond charges are amortized as a component of interest expense, using the straight-linc method. Following is a detailed
summary of unamortized bond charges by Enterprise and the net carrying value of bonds, at December 31, 1999:

Total Bonds Out- Less: Unamortized Bond Charpes: Net Carrying
standing (Long-term Issuance (Inscount) Deferred Value
& Current Portions) Costs Premium Loss Total of Bonds
Linterprise FFunds-
Revenue Bonds:
Water Fund:
1993 Water Rev Refunding Bonds $ 14795000  § (239382) % (79.919)  $(1,381,765)  $(1,701.066) $ 13,093,934
1992 Water Revenue Bonds 36,025,000 (635,970 (586,854) (1,242,824) 34,782,176
total § 50,820,000 % (895,352) % (666,773) $(1,381,765) $(2,943,890)  § 47876110
Wastewater Fund:
1993 Sewer Sys. Rev, Refunding Bonds $ 15,960,033 § (327,255)  §  (94.208)  $(1,932.784)  $(2,354.247) $ 13,605,786
total % 15,960,033 § (3272 F  (94,208)  $(1.932,784)  $(2.354,247) § 13.605,780
Solid Waste Management fund:
1996 Sohd Waste Revenue Bonds $ 29,740,000 § (545826) § (R2,858) § % (628.684) £ 29111316
1995 Solid Waste Rev. Refodng Bonds 22,175,000 (415,656) 147,437 (2,229.973) {2,498,192) 19,676,308
1967 Incinerator Revenue Bonds 1,380,000 0 1,380,000
Total $ 33,295,000 % (961.482) % 64,579 $(2,229,973) $(3,126,876) § 50,168,124
Total Enterprise Funds: $120,075,033  35(2,184,089) $(696,402) $(5,544,522) $(8.425,013) $111.650.020
Self-Supporting General Obligation Bonds:
Water fund:
1993 N. High Wtr. Refunding Bonds $ 845,000 % (6,061) 5 (5171 $ (51,327) $(63,159) $ 781,841
Other Water Bonds 2,374,362 0 2,374,362
total 3 3219362 % (6.661) % (5,171) $ (51,327) $ (63,159) $ 3,156,203
Wastewater fund:
1993 Sew lmpr. Refunding Bonds $ 8,680,000 5 (68,355) $(53,073) $(563.837) % (685265) § 7,994,735
QOther Wastewater Bonds 21,470,000 0 21,470,000
total $30,150,000 $ (68,355 $(53,073) § (563,837) $ (685,265) $29,464,735
Parking Facilitics fund:
1993 Parking Fac. Refunding Bonds $ 3,800,000 5 (29,954) $(23,256) $(249.949) 3 (303,159) F 3,496,841
Other Parking Facilities bonds 485,000 0 485,000
total $ 4,285,000 $ (29,954) $(23,256) $ (249,949) § (303,159 $ 3,981,841
Totl Enterprise Funds: $37,654,362 5 (104,970) 5 (81,500) $ (865.113) $(1,051,583) $36,602,779
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Defeased Debr:

The following is a summary of outstanding defeased debt, by fund-type and account group, at December 31, 1999, Through
the process of advance refundings, this debt has been defeased in substance, and fully funded, in cscrow, through the
purchasc of United States Treasury Obligations, pursuant to Escrow Deposit Agreements. The investments have amounts
and maturities to generate cash flow sufficient to meet the principal and interest payments duc over the remaining life of the
bonds. All monies and investments in the Escrow Funds are irmevocably pledged to the payment of principal and interest on
the defeased bonds for their remaining life. Accordingly, the Escrow Accounts, and corresponding debt, are not included in
the financial statements.

Enterprise Funds:

Defeased self-supporting general obligation bonds:

WRLET TUNU e ettt . 795,000

Wastewater fund . 8,100,000
Parking Facilities fund 3,545,000
tatal $12,446,000
Defeased revenue bonds:
WALET TUNCL Lottt et e e et a et areee e e e $14,480,000
Wastewater fund............... 16,245,000
Solid Waste Management fund. [ .. 21,600,000
total: $32.325,000
Total Defeased Enterprise Fund Debt; $64,765,000
General Long-term Debt Account Group:
Defeased general obligauion BORAS ..o i $22.030,000
Total Defeased General Long-term Debt
Account Group Debi: $22.,030,000
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Special assessment bonds are sceured by an unvoted property tax levy (special assessment), which constitutes a licn on assessed
properties. 'Ihe bonds are also backed by the full faith and credit of the County as additional sccurity. Accordingly, these bonds arc
reported in the General Long-term Debt Aceount Group as Special Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment:

Year Purpose/ Interest Final January 1, December 31,
Issued Description Raie Maturity 1999 Additions (Reductions) 1999
Special Assessment Debt With Governmentad Commitment:
Special Assessment Bonds-
Payable from road assessments:
1978  Cillen Lane Improvement
Assessment 0.500% 1999 $ 1,000 % $ (1,000) $ 0
1979 Holes Creek Ditch Assmt 5.625% 1999 110,000 (110,000) 0
1989  Paragon Road Improvement 6.625% 1999 100,000 (100,000) 0
1991 Horning Ditch-Series C 0.350% 1999 3,000 (3,000) 0
1992 Tom's Run Ditch 5.700% 2000 6,000 (3,000) 3,000
1992 McEwen Road Improvement 5.700% 2002 275,000 (65,000) 210,000
1996  Mohler Ditch 5.250% 2004 95,000 (15,000} 80,000
1998  Swarnp Creek Ditch 5.500% 2006 80,000 (8,200) 71,800
1998  Marshall/Sweet Potato Ditch 5.500% 2006 8,500 (900) 7,600
1999 Pleasant Plain Ditch 4.750%-
5.000% 2007 40,000 40,000
total payable from road assessments $678,500 $ 40,000 § (306.100) $412,400
Pavable from water/sewer assessments:
1979 Sewer Assessment 5.875% 1999 $ 10,000 $ 3 (10,000) 3 0
1980  Sewer District/Munger-
Wingmead 7.750% 2000 45,000 (20,000) 25,000
1981 Sewer Dist Assmt [981 Serics 12.250% 2001 65,000 (20,000) 45,000
1984 Wir & Swr Assmt 1984 Serics 9.500% 2004 85,000 (10,000) 75,000
1988 Hunt Drive Water Assmt 6.750% 2008 30,000 (3,000) 27.000
1989 Groby's Water Line Ext 7.750% 2009 17.000 (1,000) 16,000
1989 Ontario Ave. Sewer Line 7.375% 2009 60,000 (5,000) 55,000
1991 Centerville Terr Swr Assmt 0.200%-
Series B-Issue [ 6.900% 2011 105,000 (10,000) 05,000
1991 Social Row Road Wir Assmt 6.200%-
Series B-lssue 1 6.900% 2011 29,000 (2,000} 27,000
1992 Yankee Street/Spring Valley
Waier Main 5.700% 2012 257,466 (13,728) 243,738
1992 Byers Road Water Main Ext 5.700% 2012 304,500 (14,000) 290,500
Shechan Rd Water Main Ext 5,700% 2012 8,500 (400) £,400
1994 Wilmington Pike Swr Project 6.000%-
6.200% 2014 66,000 (3,000 63,000
1996 Wolf Creck Pike Water Main 5.600% 2016 38,000 (1,000) 37,000
1999 Post Town Road Water Main 4.750%-
5.750% 2019 185,000 185,000
total payable from water/sewer assessments $1,120,766 $ 185,000 $(113,128) $1,192.638
Total Special Assessment Bonds: $1,799,266 $ 225,000 $(419,238) $1.605,038

General obligation bonds reported in the General Long-term Debt Account Group carry a tull faith and credit pledge of the County.
The basic security for the bonds is the County's ability to levy an ad valorem tax on all real and personal property in the County
subject to such taxation, within the ten mill limitation imposcd by Ohio Law. The County anticipates that the debt service on these
bonds will primarily be paid from revenues of its General Fund. The following general obligation bonds are reported in the General

Long-term Debt Acecount Group.

Year Purpose/ Interest Final January 1, December 31,
Issued Description Rate Maturity 1999 Additions (Reductions) 1999
General Obligation Bonds Reported in the (General Long-term Debt Account Group:
1990 County Engineer's

Maintenance Facility 7.000% 2000 $ 625,000 $ 3 (300,000) § 325,000
1990  Reibold Renovation 7.000% 2000 380,000 (185,000) 195,000
1991 Facility Improvements 0.400% 2001 2,290,000 (600,000) 1,690,000
1993 Reilbod Renovation 4.400%-

'93 Refunding 5.500% 2011 3,175,000 (25,000) 3,150,000

1993 Facility Improvements- 4. 400%-

'93 Refunding 5.500 2011 20,635,000 (175,000) 20,400,000
1999  Children Services 4.750%-

Building 5.500% 2014 12,800,000 12 800,000

Total Gieneral Obligation Bonds: $27,105,000 12,200,000  $(1,285,000)  $38,620,000
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NOTE H- The annual requirements to amortize long-term bond and note obligations outstanding as of December 31, 1999 are as
Long-term Debt follows:
and Other FEnterprise Funds
Obligations General Obligation
(Cont'd.) Bonds Paid Long-term
Year Ended Jrom Revenue Revenue Bonds Note Obligations
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2000 $1,770,305 $2,032,348 $ 6,835,000 $ 6,409,534 5 1412317 $ 966,429
2001 1,557,315 1,927,130 7,180,000 6,082,749 1,777,990 1,213,805
2002 1,987,315 1,844,266 7,635,000 5,743,506 1,789,071 1,149,402
2003 2,092,315 1,743,299 7,510,000 5,368,086 1,801,902 1,084,448
2004 2,212,098 1,635,850 7,226,098 5,740,427 1,814,710 1,018,919
2005-2020 28,035,014 9,616,209 83,088,935 31,531,183 25,342,137 7,114,958
Total $37.654,362 $18,799,102 $120,075,033  $60,875.485 §33938,727 $12.347961
General Long-term Debt Account Group
Year Ended Special Assessment Bonds General Obligation Bonds
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2000 $ 214,295 $ 98939 $ 1,365,000 $ 2,036,608
2001 203,885 84,335 2,485,000 1,949,908
2002 188,385 70,480 2,580,000 1,814,463
2003 104,985 59,199 2,695,000 1,689,101
2004 121,702 52,045 2,830,000 1,556,188
2005-2019 771,786 242,566 26,665,000 6,740,914
Total $ 1,605,038 608,164 $38,620,000 $15,793,182
The remaining components of the General Long-term Debt Account Group are accounted for
as follows:
January 1, December 31,
1999 Additions (Reductions) 1999
Accrued wages and benefits:
Sick leave ... ..o $4,750,711 $3,037,021 $(3,540,553) $4,847,179
Vacation..... 8,360,703 8,902,409 (8,676,903) 8,586,209
OtheT...coiii 34,362 15,363 (18,999) 30,726
Total accrued wages and benefits............. S13,145,776  $12,554,793  $(12,236,455) $13464,114
Capital Lease Obligations........coooo e 354,771 $ 496,621 $ (231,976) % 619416

Accrued Wages and Benefits: Employees eam 15 days of sick leave per year. Upon retirement, cmployecs with at
least 10 years of eligible service credit are compensated for unused sick leave based on the total number of hours
accumulated and the County's conversion schedule. As discussed in Note B, the County uses the "vesting method" to
cstimate probable sick leave hiabilities. Unused vacation cannot be accumulated for more than three years, according
to Ohio law, and is payable at the employee's current wage rate. The year-end liability for vacation time consists of
approximately 439,800 unused vacation hours. The other accrued wages and benefits liability is made up of
approximately 1,970 other compensatory time hours.
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Capital Lease Obligations: The County has entered into agreements to leasc certain data processing and other equipment, as
well as copiers and other items. These agreements, in substance, are capital purchascs and the related obligations are
classificd as such in the financial statements. Within the General Long-term Debt Account Group, the future minimum lease
payments under these capital Icascs, and the present values of net minimum lease payments at December 31, 1999 are as
follows:

Year [.ease Payments
200 . $ 255,582
0 ) D PP 199,483
200 145,367
2003 85,867
Total minimum lease payments. ... 686,299
Less arnount representing interesh. ..o (66,883)
Present value of future minimum 1ease payments. .. ..o eaa $ 619416

Capital leasc obligations in Proprictary Funds refleet an increase of $36,259 over the beginning year balance of
$73,618. The increase resulted from principal additions during 1999 of $84,048 exceeding payments of $47,789.
The future minimum lease payments from Proprietary Fund capital leases and the present values of net
minimum lease payments at December 31, 1999 are as follows:

Year Lease Payments
2000, e § 51,051
200 L e 44,587
20020 e e 11,159
200 el 6,660
2004, 3,330
Total MINIMUM [EASE PAYITIENLS. ...\ rt ettt ettt e e e e e e s et aee s 116,787
Less amount Tepresenting INIETESt. . ...uv ittt ia et ettt aaa e s e aaaaiean (6,910)
Present value of future minimum lease payments............oooooiii $ 109,877

The present value of future minimum lease payments is reflected in the Proprietary Fund
balance sheets under current and long-term portions of capitalized lcascs.

Operating Leases: At December 31, 1999, the County had several operating leases for office and storage space.
Current operating leases provide for set annual payments with options to rencgotiatc the terms of the agreement
at the end of the lease period. The operating lcase arrangements range in length from six months to twenty

years, and do not contain purchase options, escalation clauses or other restrictions. Operating lcase payments

are recorded in the period paid. Total rental payments for these leases for 1999 were $2,961,617; for 2000 through
through 2019, rental payments are as follows:

Year Le¢asc Payments
2000 e e e e e et $ 3,121,704

L P 3,021,550
B S 1,496,162
2003 i e e et eaae e 416,396
2 e e ae e e e aaee 298,140
200200 e 4,250,078
Total Minimum lease PAYIMIEOLS. . ..o ae e $ 12,604,030

Other operating lease commitments for certain office machinegs and small equipment are not material.

Conduit Debt Obligations:
From time to time, the County has issued Industrial Development Bonds, Hospital Revenue Bonds and Housing Revenue
Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial, commercial,
health-care and housing facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are
payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the
acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the County, the State, nor any
political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported
as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

As of December 31, 1999, there were fifteen series of Industrial Development Bonds, twenty-two series of Hospital
Revenue Bonds and eleven series of Housing Revenue Bonds outstanding, with aggregate principal amounts payable of
$45.4 million, $681.3 million and $36.5 million, respectively.
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NOTE L

Defined Benefit
Pension Plans

and Post-
employment Benefits

The County has implemented GASB Statement No. 27 in connection with the following pension plan disclosurcs,
Post-employment benefit disclosures continue to conform to GASB Statement No. 12.

PERS: The County contributcs to the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement Board. PERS
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by State statutc per Chapter 145 of the Ohio
Revised Code and assigned to the Public Employees Retirement Board. PERS issues a stand-alone financial report.
Interested parties may obiain a copy by making 4 written request to 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 4321 5-
4642 or by calling (614) 466-2085 or 1-800-222-PERS (7377).

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for cmployce and employer contributions. The employec
contribution rates are 8.5% for employees other than law enforcement. Law enforcement employees contribute 9.0%
of covered salary. The 1999 employer contribution rate for local govermnment employer units was 13.55% of covered
payroll. The law enforcement employer rate was 16.70% of covered payroll. The County's contributions to PERS
for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $19,666,677, $19,143,795 and $18,334,242,
respectively, equal to the required contributions for cach year.

Postemployment Benefits: The Public Employces Retirement System of Ohio provides postretirement health care

coverage to age and scrvice retirants with 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit and to primary survivor
recipients of such retirants. Health care coverage for disability recipicnts is available. The health care coverage
provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB
Statement No. 12. A portion of each employer's contribution to PERS is sct aside for the funding of postretirement
health care. The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to fund
postretirement health carc through their contributions to PERS. The 1999 employer contribution rate for local
government employer units was 13.55% of covered payroll; 4.2% was the portion that was used to fund health care.
The law enforcement employer rate for 1999 was 16.70% and 4.2% was used to fund health care.

OPEB is financed through employer contributions and investment camings there on. The contributions allocated
to retiree health and Medicare, along with investment income on allocated asscts and periodic adjustments in health
care provisions are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely. Expenditures for OPEB during 1999
were $523,599,349. As of December 31, 1999, the unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB
payments were $9,870,285,641. The number of benefit recipients eligible for OPEB at December 31, 1999 was
118,062.

During 1997, the Retirement Board adopted a new calculation method for determining employer contributions
applied to OPEB. Under the new mcthod, effective January 1, 1998, employer contributions, equal to 4.2% of
member covered payroll, are used to fund health carc expenses. Under the prior method, accrued liabilities and
normal cost rates were determined for retiree health care coverage.

STRS Ohio: The County also contributes to the State Teachers Retirernent Systemn of Ohio (STRS Ohio) for
certified teachers employed by the County's Board of Mental Retardation. STRS Ohio is a cost-sharing multiple
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State Teachers Retirement Board. STRS OQhio provides
retrernent and  disability benefits, annual costolliving adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficianes.  Authonty to establish and amend benelits 15 provided by State statute per Chapter 3307 of the Ohio
Revised Code and assigned to the State Teachers Reurement Board. STRS Ohio issues a stand-alone (inancial report.
Copies of STRS Ohio's 1999 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report can be requested by writing to §TRS Ohio, 275 L.
Broad St., Columbus, Oluo 43215-3371, or by callg (614) 227-4090.
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NOTE I

Defined Benefit
Pension Plans

and Post-
employment Benefits
(Cont'd.)

Chapter 3307 of the Revised Code provides statutory authority for member and employer contributions.
Contribution requirements and the contributions actually made for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, were 9.3% of
covered payroll for members and 14% for employers. The County's contributions to STRS Ohio for the years ended
December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $315,014 and $298,340 and $276,296, rcspectively, equal to the required
contributions for cach year.

Postcmployment Benefits: The State Teachers Retirement System (STRS Ohio) provides comprehensive health
care benefits to retirces and their dependents. Coverage includes hospitalization, physician fees, prescription drugs,
and reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums.  All benefit recipients and sponsored dependents are eligible for
health care coverage. Pursuant to thc Revised Code, the State Teachers Retirement Board (the board) has
discretionary authority over how much, if any, of the health care costs will be absorbed by STRS Ohio. Most benefit
recipients pay a portion of health care cost in the form of a monthly premium.

The Revised Code grants authority to STRS Ohio to provide health care coverage to benefit recipients, spouses
and dependents. By Ohio law, the cost of the coverage paid from STRS Ohio funds shall be included in the
employer contribution rate, currently 14% of covered payroll. The board currently allocates employer contributions
equal to 2% of covered payroll to the Health Care Reserve Fund from which health care benefits are paid. However,
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the board allocated employer contributions equal to 8% of covered payroll to
the Health Carc Reserve Fund. The balance in the Health Care Reserve Fund was $2.783 billion at Junc 30, 1999.
The Health Care Reserve Fund allocation for the year ended June 30, 2000, will be 8.0% of covered payroll.

For the year ended June 30, 1999, the net health care costs paid by STRS Ohio were $249,929,000. There were
95,796 eligible benefit recipients.

NOTE J.
Risk

Management

The County complics with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 10, as amended by GASB Statement No. 30, in
connection with its accounting and financial reporting of risk financing activities.

The County is expoesed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injurics to cmployces; and natural disasters. The County accounts for its risk management activities
in Internal Service funds which also finance its uninsured risks of loss. Under these programs the Internal Serviee
funds provide coverage for up to a maximum of $300,000 for each workers' compensation claim, $250,000 for each
general liability claim, $100,000 for each property damage claim, and $10,000 for cach claim on behalf of employce
performance. There were no changes in these coverage maximums from the previous ycar. For the property and
casualty loss program, the County purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the
Fund and for other risks of loss. For the workers' compensation program, the County pays premiums to the State
Bureau of Workers' Compensation for claims in excess of coverage provided by the Fund. In addition, the Fund
pays assessments to the Bureau of Worker's Compensation for administration and payment of claims. The County
purchases commercial insurance for all of its employee health-care benefit programs.  For all of the County's
insurance programs, settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three years.

With the exception of commercial coverage for property and casualty losses which the Board of Mental
Retardation & Developmental Disabilitics and the Alcohol, Drug Addiction, and Mental Health Services Board
separately obtain on their own, all funds of the County participate in the insurance programs and make payments to
the Internal Scrvice funds based on estimates of the amounts needed to fund current year claims and reserves.
Claims liabilities reported at December 31, 1999 are based on the requirement that a liability for claims be reported if
it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can
be reasonably estimated. Claim liabilitics, including incurred but not reported claims, are accrued based on
estimates made by management and third-party administrators of the programs. Thesc cstimates are not actuarial but
arc based on past cxperience adjusted for current trends and other factors that would modify past experience. The
liabilities are based on the estimated ultimatc cost of settling the claims and include effects for specific incremental
claim adjustment cxpenscs, salvage, subrogation or estimated recoveries. Actual claims may differ from the
estimates, which are reevaluated periodically to take into consideration settled claims, frequency of claims, and other
economic and social factors.
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NOTE J. Following is a summary of changes in self-insurance claims liabilities for the past two years:
Risk
Management Internal Service Funds- 1999 1998
(Contd.) Property/Casualty Risk Management: ___
Claims liability at January 1 ... $ 258,904 $ 675,990
Change in provision for prior ycars' claims
Current year claims and estimates, ... 500,000 283333
Claim payments (363,432) (700,419
Claims liability at December 31, § 395472 $ 258904
Property/Casualty Risk Management . .. ..
Workers' Compensation Risk Management:
Claims liability at January 1 $4.450.336 $3.073.836
Change in provision for prior ycars' claims
Current year claims and estimates ... 850,000 1,376,500
Claim payments, ... (1,689,132)
Claims liability at December 31 ... . $3,611,204 54,450,336
Workers' Compensation Risk Management
Total claims liability at December 31 ..., $4.006.676 $4.709 240
Internal Service Funds
On the balance sheet at Decernber 31, 1999, the $4,006,676 total claims liability is comprised of $522,344 in
estimated current insurance claims and $3,484,332 in estimated long-term claims.
NOTE K. Montgomery County employees and elected officials may participate in the Ohio Public Employees Deferred
Compensation Program or the County Commissioncrs' Association of Ohio Deferred Compensation Program, both
Deferred created in accordance with Internal Revenue Section Code 457, Participation is on a voluntary payroll deduction
Compensation basis. The plans permit deferral of up to 25% of an employee's annual compensation, not to exceed $7,500 per year,

until future years. According to the plans, the deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,

retirement, death or in the casc of an unforesecable emergency.

The Internal Revenue Code requires Section 457 plan assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
participants and their beneficiaries; accordingly, the amounts held in both plans are no longer reported as assets of

the County.
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NOTE L At December 31, 1999, significant outstanding Proprietary construction commitments, for which
Proprietary there were no future funding requirements, approximated the following:
Construction . Committed
C . ) Committed From Enterprise Funds
ommutments Water Projects:
Southern Water Treatment Plant Project. oo e $ 2,749,000
Salem Avenue Corridor Water Utility Installation Project 1,233,000
OUNCT WaLET PLOJECES ..ot oeeeseees ettt eeee e e et e bt ee s st se e e e 3,522,000
Waustewater Projects:
Water Pollution Control Master Plan Project et 13,282,000
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilliation ProjectS . . e 1,723,000
O W e W T PO S e e e et 1,384,000
Sohd Waste Management Projeets:
SolId Waste Trans er St On PrO et e ettt ee b et 524,000
Other Solid Waste Management Projects. ..., . 185,000
Total Committed FFrom Enterprise Funds: $ 24,602 000
NOTE M- Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility and tangible personal (used in business) property
Property Tax focated in the County. Real property taxes collected during 1999 were levied after October 1, 1998 on the assessed
Revenues value as of January 1, 1998, the lien date. Public utility property taxcs collected in 1999 attached as a lien on

December 31, 1997 and were levied after October 31, 1998. Taxpayers were required to pay onc half of these taxcs
by March 3, 1999 with the remaining half duc July 21, 1999, Tangible personal property taxes collected in 1999,
were levied after October 1, 1998 on the value listed as of December 31, 1998.

Public utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property at true value, while other tangible personal
property assessments are 25% of true valuc. True valuc is based on cost and established by the State. Assessed
values on real property are established by State law at 35% of appraised market value. A revaluation of all property
is required to be completed cvery sixth ycar, with a statistical update every third year. The last revaluation was
completed in 1996 and a statistical updatc was completed in 1999.

The assessed value by property classification, upon which the 1999 tax levy was based, follows:

Real PrOPETLY oottt $6,769,814,710
Public utility €Al PTODPEILY.........ooo oot e s 1,894,520
Tangible personal property . 1,101,188,253
Public utility tangiblc personal property ..o 530,202 660
TOML .ot $8,403,100,143

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills of assessed value without a
vote of the people. Presently, the County levies 1.70 mills of the first 10 mills of assessed value. During 1999, in
addition to the 1.70 mills, 11.24 mills were levied based upon mills voted for the Human Services and Mental
Retardation Levies. A summary of voted millage follows:
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NOTE M-
Property Tax
Revenues

(Cont'd.)

Voter Rate Levied for Final

Levy Authorized (urrent Year (b) Levy
Purpose Date Rate (a) R/A (&) Year
Hurnan Services A 1993 5.21 433 494 1999
Human Services B 1995 5.03 444 48] 2003
Mental Retardation 1977 1.00 037 051 cont.
Total 11.24 9.14 10.26

(a) In mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation.

(b) Ohio law provides for a tax credit to voted levies to offset increased values resulting from a reappraisal of real property.
To attain this tax credit, reduction factors are applied to authorized voted levies so that cach levy yields the same
amount of property taxes as in the year in which the levy was approved. Increases to voted levy revenues are restricted
to assessments from new construction. The reduction factors are computed and applied separately for residential/
agricultural (R/A) property and commercial/industrial (C/1) property.

The County ‘Treasurer collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts within the County. The County Auditor periodically
remits to the taxing districts their portions of the taxes collected. Collection of the taxes and their remittance to the taxing districts
arc accounted for in various agency funds of the County. Property taxes reccivable in the Governmental Funds represent
outstanding delinquent taxes and real, tangible personal and public utility taxes which were measurable as of December 31, 1999.
The delinquent taxes outstanding which were collected and available to the County within the first 60 days of 2000 were recorded
as 1999 revenue. Although property taxes levied for the next fiscal year are measurable amounts as of December 3 1st, they are not
mtended o finance 1999 operations nor are they available for appropriation until 2000; therefore, the receivable is offset by a
credit to deferred revenue.

NOTE N-

Intergovernmental
Revenues

The following is a summary of major intergovernmental revenues:

General Fund:

Ohio Local Government Fund DIStiBULON ... et eeesess et asinsnenis $ 13,563,244
State Property Tax Reimbursements 1,494,712
State Public Defender Reimbursements | 3,339,200
Local Government Reimbursetnents 1,510,435
Other 2,693,073

Total General Fund $ 22,600,664

Special Revenue Funds:
Federal and State Health and Human Services Grants and Reimbursements | .................. $ 101,768,602

State Transportation Taxcs 8,853,369
Community and Economic Development Grants 5,041,814
Children Services Board Grants and Reimbursements 28,072,177
Child Support Enforcement Incentives, 9,006,739
Community Corrections Grants and Reimbursements 3,983,952
Youth Services Subsidy Grants 3,081,501
Other 14,393,071
T01al SPecial REVENUE FURAS .., .. ..o eceeeees o ess e s se e s e sssesseassssesssessesseneseens $174.201,225

Capital Projects Funds:
Capital Grants and Reimbursernents $_ 1,732,000
$ 1,732,000

Total Capital Projects Funds
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NOTE O-
Interfund Transfers

A summary of operating transfers by fund type follows:

Transfers 1o

Transfers Special Debt Capital Internal

From General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Service Total
General $ $32,613,390  $2,169,038  $15,017,165 $3,293,794 § 5,000 $53,098,347
Special Revenue |, 4,459 815 61,555,939 171,875 479,748 1,724,956 68,392,333
Capital Projects, 865,474 805,474
Enterprise 149,451 149,451
Internal Service.... 23,287 13,791 37,078
Expendable Trust. 196,314 196,314
Total i $4.679.416 $04,109,329  $2,340913  $16,362,387 $5,168,201 18,791 §122,739,037

NOTE P-

Segment Information
for Enterprise Funds

The County maintains five Enterprise Funds which provide water, wastewater, solid wastc management and parking
services as well as an intermediate care facility, known as Stiliwater Center, for the mentally retarded and
developmentally disabled. Segment information for the year ended December 31, 1999 follows:

Total
Solid Waste Parking Stillwater Enterprise

Water Wastewater Muanagement Facilities Center Funds
Operating Tevenues ... $36,297,022 £37,882,551 $20,340,593 $935,883 $7,928 955 $103,385,004
Operating expenses
before depreciation 27,321,515 22,259,229 11,821,309 378,020 9,265,221 71,045,294
DEPreciaion . .ioscrcreeeiiiinnas 2,583,994 6,793,404 1,203,356 185,664 135,461 10,901,879
Opetating income (1088),................... 6,391,513 8,829918 7.315,928 372,199 (1,471,727 21,437 ,83)
Qperating transfers:

1,213,383 1,098,886 1,311,827 1,544,105 5,168,201

(149,451) (149.451)

Net income (loss), 6,543,028 7,495 874 6,242,004 107,914 74,883 20,763,703
Ingrease in current
capital contribution ... 831,143 969,563 1,800,706
Property, plant and
cquipment additions 1,381,591 9,354,921 460,678 43,962 11,241,152
(disposals) .., (133,361) (227.510) (102,621) (5,940) (469.432)
Net working capital 17,862,158 15,707,834 22,429,835 403,600 1,543,113 57,946,606
Total assels,|, .. 170,686,853 240,048,899 80,907,137 7,738.946 9,291,412 508,673,247
Bonds and other long-term
obligations payable from
operating revenues (net of
current portionsy ,,.............cccccooveeeeun. 52,619,682 75,540,819 50,205,160 4,015,000 182,380,661
Tl @qUILY ..o 108,406,643 157,303,998 25,773,403 3,644 564 8,237,831 303,366,439
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NOTE
.. A i i ey -
Deficit Fun d Ingineer Federal Aid Projects
Balances o . g ‘ . .
This Capital Projects Fund deficit of $1,115 is duc to intergovernmental revenues which had not yet been
received at year-end and were not available to finance current period expenditures. This deficit will be
climinated through future intergovernmental revenues.
Wastewater
The retained earnings deficit of $10,193,856 is a result of the County's policy of closing depreciation on contributed
capital to retained camings. Net income in this fund, during 1999, reduced the deficit by $7,495,874.
Health Insurance Admin./E.A.P.
The retained earnings deficit of $917,763 is a result of the cumulative net losses from previous years and is expected
to be funded through future operating revenues or transfers-in.
NOTE R- Litigation
Contingencies, ] ] ) , , L .
The County is currently the defendant in various lawsuits. The ultimate disposition of the lawsuits and other
Judgments ) . : ) -
1 Clai proceedings cannot presently be determined but will not, in the opinion of the County Prosecutor, adversely affect
ana Claims

continued operations of the County.

Contingencies Under Grant Programs

The County participates in certain federal and state assisted grants and programs that are subject to financial
compliance audits by the grantor agencies or their representatives. These audits could lead to a request for
reimburscment to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grant. The County believes
that disallowed claims, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial position.

Insurance Claims

The County assumes the liability for most property damage and personal injury risks. During the ycar, it also
managed the risk of workers' compensation claims (through a state retrospective rating plan). As disclosed in Note J,
Risk Management, for all of these risks, judgments and claims, including those incurred but not reported as of year-
end, liabilities are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and
the amount of loss ¢an be reasonably estimated.
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NOTE S. During the year, contributed capital in the Proprictary Funds increased by the following amounts:
Contributed Sour
SOUFCE
Capital Government Developers
State & Contributed — Contributed
Federal — Governmental Total Capital Capital
Funding Funds Additions Januvary I December 31
Enterprise Funds:
Watel. v B $ § 831,143 % 831,143 § 82,677,117 § 83,508,260
Wastewater.................... 46,923 922,640 969,563 166,528,291 167,497,854
Solid Waste
Management................ 3,366,863 3,366,863
Total Enterprise................ by 0 346,923 $1,753,783  §1,800,706 $252,572271 $254,372,977
Internal Service Funds:
Mailroom.. $ % $ $ 0 $ 3,750 % 3,750
Stockroom.... 0 805 805
Service Depoto............. 0 32,613 32,613
County Telephone......... 0 342,598 342,598
Hith Ins Ade/E.AP........ 0 1,034,915 1,034,915
Prop/Cslty Risk Mgt....... 0 2,181,124 2,181,124
Total Internal Service.... ... b 0 $ 4} $ 0 by 0 % 3595805 % 3,595,805
NOTE T During the year, under contractual agreements, the County provided the usc of facilities and the services of certain
Related Purty personnel to Monco Enterprises, Inc., a discretely-presented component unit of the County. The total value of these in-
i kind contributions, estimated at $66,000, was rccorded as operating revenues and expenses by Monco in its 1999
Transactions financial statements.
NOTE U Pursuant to State and federal regulations, in 1998 the County placed a final cover on its Ash Monofill, located at the
North Solid Wastc Facility, after the facility stopped accepting the ash rcsulting from previous municipal solid waste
Postclosure incineration. The County is required to perform monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Actual
Care Cost postclosure care costs paid during 1999 amounted to $48,939. The $730,160 reported as the estimated liability for

landfill postclosure costs at December 31, 1999 represents the current cstimate of remaining postclosure care and
monitoring costs as of the end of the year. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all postclosure care
in 1999. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in rcgulations.

The County has met the "Local Government Test" financial assurance requirements of the State Environmental
Protection Agency, to ensure that adequate County funds for remaining postclosure care will be readily available when
needed.
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NOTE V. For the year ended December 31, 1999, miscellancous revenucs consist of the following:
(SN | BN & N .
Miscellaneous Revenues Special Lebt Capital Expendable
General Revenue Service Projects Trust
Fund Fundy Funds Funds Fund
Reimbursements and refunds............. § 889,153 $7.,332,967 $ 684 & 53271 $
Accrued interest on bond proceeds...... 38,350
Proceeds of unclaimed funds............. 203,771
Donations and contributions............. 159,487 116,432 2,925383

$1,248.640 $7.449.399 $39,034  $2,978,654 $203,771

NOTE W- On March 7, 2000, a levy to replace the County's expiring Human Services Levy A was passed by the voters. The new
Subsequent Event levy totals 5.21 rencwal mills and begins with the 2000 tax ycar. The collection ycars on the new levy begin in 2001 and
’ cnd in 2008.

~ 60 -




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining, Individual Fund and
Account Group Statements and Schedules

-61-






MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

General Fund

The General Fund is the operating fund of the County. The major revenue sources are sales tax,
property tax, investment earnings and state and local government fund receipts. It accounts for all

financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 (Cont'd.)
Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
PrOPerty TAXE€S. cooriiirreierire e h) 12,772,805 § 12,772,805 % 0
T Y (=T ). U OO USROS SRR PRSP 62,118,946 62,118,946 0
OtheT {aXES....oii e 1,728,415 1,728,125 (290)
Licenses and permits............coooooniiiiiiiens 53,667 53,667 0
Fees and charges for services. ... 15,222,921 15,557,841 334,920
Fines and forfeitures. . ....cvv oo 1,386,000 1,462,114 76,114
Intergovernmental............oovvvvve v 21,501,164 21,499,216 (1,948)
Investment arnings........ooooovevvvoerreniene e e 21,705,055 23,051,671 1,346,616
MiSCCUANEOUS....civ i rarenenes 858,173 892,374 34,201
Total ReVEHUES........c.cooiiviiiiiiiis e, $ 137,347,146 139,136,759 1,789,613
General Government Expenditures:
Board of County Commissioners
Personal SErvICES........ooieiiiiieiciiiie e, 3 582,451 § 549,209 3 33,242
Professional ServICeS. i, 43,649 35,806 7,843
Operating expenditures. ... veveneneseeenesn e, 64,002 42,611 21,391
Capital outlays...........ccooi 4,040 3,777 263
Total Board of County Commissioners.................. 694,142 631,403 62,739
County Administrator
Personal ServICes. .o 243,395 218,409 24 986
Professional Services........o.oocivierercii e 22,018 21,592 426
Operating expenditures.........c.ccervevrieercneeenceaaennnns 23,485 13,951 9,534
Capital outlays.........cocvioiieirieiins i 7,198 7,198 0
Total County Administrator................................... 296,096 261,150 34,946
Clerk of the Commission
Personal Services......coooviiiiii e, 63,729 62,867 862
Professional services..........coceevivveeecniinnene i, 29,203 20,456 8,747
Operating expenditUres..........coeevvverveeesriesneeesevesnens 17,191 3,615 13,576
Total Clerk of the Commission............................. 110,123 86,938 23,185
Office of Management and Budget
Personal Services.. ..o iriorveieerceree e 713,574 616,359 97,215
Professional SErviCes. ..o 77,051 72,811 4,240
Operating expenditures...........ccccevvveeererceneneneenenen, 68,692 21,165 47,527
Capital outlays.....coooceeeeiiie e 9,838 9,306 532
Total Office of Management and Budget............... 869,155 719,641 149,514
Budget and Administration
Personal services.....ooovviei i 1,381,440 1,266,398 115,042
Profcssional SErviCes. .o cceere e 184,690 152,500 32,190
Operating eXpendifures.........cooccvvvvvevrrriceernncnennens 190,096 121,106 68,990
Debt SEIVICE...uiiiiiiecie e 621 621 0
Capital outlays......cccoocorii e 77,262 64,951 12,311
Total Budget and Administration...................... 1,834,109 1,605,576 228,533
Public Works
Personal ServiCes........ccocvvii 2,247,641 2,192,644 54,997
Professional ServICes......covvvie e 368,168 365,068 3,100
Operating expendifures........cccovrvevvrrirrrevireeernennns 852,890 761,793 91,097
Debt Service. ... 16,725 13,380 3,345
Capital oUtlays.......ccoovvevvevviniies e 57,267 42,119 15,148
Total Public Works.................o.coiiiiiiee 3,542,691 3,375,004 167,687
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Buasis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 (Cont'd.)
General Government Variance
(Cont'd.) Revised Budgerary Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Expenditures:

Non-Departmental

Personal SerVICes.....oivvmvvrrvericvr s rie e 11,706 § 11,706 § 0
Professional Services.......cooocv, 842,380 842,380 0
Operating expenditures............cccoooeieeiiene 31,354 31,354 0
Capital outlays.........cooooiii 8,063 8,063 0
Total Non-Departmental............................ 893,503 893,503 0
Data Processing
Personal ServiCes......oooieeiiiiiieeieeeeee e 1,670,786 1,658,115 12,671
Professional ServiCes........oovvcvviieieeeeeiiiiiiieeeeeeas 1,275,821 1,089,943 185,878
Operating expenditires.........ocoovvvverererererereenrenns 267,578 192,823 74,755
Capital outlays.......cccoovvveriniirenne e 60,024 57,115 2,909
Total Data Processing...............cc.c.cocovvnnnennn, 3,274,209 2,997,996 276,213
Records Center and Archives
Personal SEIVICES.......cviviviciiiiiiiviiivie e 628,349 586,141 42,208
Protessional services.........cccooovviviiiiiceeeeeeeeeeeee 140,387 103,386 37,001
Operating expenditures..........cccoevecveercienascneenns 50,694 35,889 14,805
Debt ServICe. ..o 10,680 10,598 82
Capital oUtlays.....ooorceirieir e, 16,890 14,910 1,980
Total Records Center and Archives............... 847,000 750,924 96,076
Auditor
Personal ServICeS......oovvveeeee e 2,377,051 2,352,895 24,156
Professional ServiCes.......oveoeve e e 302,565 232742 69,823
Operating expenditures...........ccoceervier e eenen. 131,579 99,681 31,898
Capital oWtlays....oocoovvieiiiiiiir v 123,763 123,740 23
Total Auditor.................ccoccociiiii 2,934,958 2,809,058 125,900
Treasurer
Personal services. .. oo 924,299 901,370 22,929
Professional Services........oooooeiirceinnii e 513,325 319,552 193,773
Operating expenditures...............ccocoooiiiiis. 54,224 37,280 16,944
Capital outlays.......coccvvivvivieireiier e 27,113 26,133 980
Total Treasurer ... 1,518,961 1,284,335 234,626
Recorder
Personal ServICeS......uuvvrvueieieieieieierererererereereeees 907,846 900,050 7,796
Professional 8eIviCes. ...ooov oo oo 44,263 28,602 15,661
Operating expenditlures........cooovevvvrvrvievirinrnoninnns 30,948 24,356 6,592
Total Recorder........................coiiiiii 983,057 953,008 30,049
Board of Elections
Personal Services. ... 1,951,546 1,869,536 82,010
Professional services......c..ooovviii e 193,532 124,216 69,316
Operating expenditures..............ccoocoeiericnnnnn. 336,681 181,037 155,644
Capital outlays..........coocooiiiiiiii e, 51,428 46,449 4,979
Total Board of Elections..............cccoeiiinviniennns 2,533,187 2,221,238 311,949
Total General Government................................. 20,331,191 18,589,774 1,741,417

- 65 -




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 (Cont'd.)
Judicial and Variance
Law Enforcement Revised Budgetary Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Expenditures:

Public Works

Personal services. ... 1,150,041 $ 1,064,234 § 85,807
Professional Services...........ovvviviriniririeve s s . 185,233 163,135 22,098
Operating cxpenditures.................. 085,014 962,012 23,002
Capital outlays...........coooo 6,575 4 587 1,988
Total Public Works....................... 2,326,863 2,193,968 132,895
Non-Departmental
PCrSONAL SEIVICES. cueveeieit e eeeciirie e veieir e veniare s 493,201 465,676 27,525
Professional S€TVICES......ccceiiiiier v 5,813,718 5,806,969 6,749
Operating expenditures........cocooovecieennieiiic e, 188,545 184,426 4,119
Capital outlays......ooovreriiricie e 2,000 0 2,000
Total Non-Departmental........................... 6,497,464 6,457,071 40,393
Prosecutor '
Personal ServICES.......uuuivivivieiiieiieieieieieieeeiee e eeee e 7,579,528 7,518,886 60,642
Professional Services............ocovveeeieiiiiiiiice e, 235,506 225,761 9,745
Operating expenditires. ... vveareenvieiceeesieceen 533,052 350,919 182,133
Capital outlays.......ccoeveevennnn ST PSP 142,111 142,111 0
Total Prosecutor...................cooveiiieiiiiiciiessinn, 8,490,197 8,237,677 252,520
Sheriff
Personal Services. ... 19,331,797 19,241,373 90,424
Professional ServiCes. ...oovviiievvevieeeeieievee e 2,108,946 1,980,337 128,609
Operating expenditures........coovvvvivvinnniciniiiiennin, 1,441,231 1,125,377 315,854
Capital OULLAYS..ceeve e 672,445 638,158 34,287
Total Sheriff.......ccccooeviivinisiiri e 23,554,419 22,985,245 569,174
Coroner
Personal SETVICES. ... .iiuiuiiiiririenisisrsnserenenenerann 2,265,436 2,244,663 20,773
Protessional ServICeS......iviviviriicririiciicrceer s erea e 206,623 203,304 3,319
Operating expenditires..........cocoooiiiiiiiinniinicee e, 97,365 95,400 1,965
Capital outlays.......coocvvviriiviiimiieiiie 54,002 53,943 59
Total CoPORCF.............ccoi i e e 2,623,426 2,597,310 26,116
Common Pleas Court
Personal SErVICes........oovivviivericrieiir s 7,923,636 7,888,762 34,874
Professional Services........cocovcvcerviviensensnecsie e 988,222 082,631 5,591
Operating eXpendifUres.........c.oceovvervverreeeeareeceansn. 397,542 394,632 2,910
Dbt SEIVICE . e v v et e e s ee e 22,428 22,428 0
Capital outlays........ocooooiiii 260,457 260,184 273
Total Common Pleas Court.............co......c......... 9,592,285 9,548,637 43,648
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Baxsis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 (Cont'd.)
Judicial and Variance
Law Enforcement Revised Budgetary Favorable
(Cont'd.) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Expenditures:

Juvenile Court .
Personal SErVICES......oooivvrvivvreerierrieeeaeser s inaeraeens 11,709,024 $ 11,210,750 § 498,274
Protessional ServICes....oovivivveeeiieirreevineeinrnereneens 1,886,935 1,640,093 246,842
Opecrating expenditures............coooioviininnnns 896,472 743,915 152,557
DT o] T2 1 [ S 61,213 61,040 173
Capital outlays........coooiiirio e 198,967 191,639 7,328
Total Juvenile Court..........c.....cooeviiiiiiin 14,752,611 13,847,437 905,174

Domestic Relations Court
Personal ServiCes. ..o eereie e 304,092 262,805 41,287
Professional ServiCes....cccicvivviveieiieeiee e 44,156 42,938 1,218
Operating expenditures. ... eene 12,142 0 12,142
Capital outlays.........oooooiiiiii i, 8,018 2,896 5,122
Total Domestic Relations Court.......................... 368,408 308,639 59,769

Probate Court
Personal ServICES...coovurrririeierereree e ee e 1,238,459 1,226,823 11,636
Professional ServiCes. .o, 83,590 79,222 4,368
Operating expenditures.........coooeeeieiiiieeeeen e 101,804 67,759 34,045
Capital outlays.......cococreiiiee e 45,513 45,424 89
Total Probate Court.................cc.coeevivveinnnnii. 1,469,366 1,419,228 50,138

District Courts
Personal SeTvICES. . .coovviviiiiiiieie e 1,449,929 1,415,791 34,138
Profcssional SCrvices.......oovvvvvivveeiinninn, vt 144,220 130,899 13,321
Operating expendifiures........oocccevvvvevvvrereneeennne 461,275 453,179 8,096
Total District COUrts.........c.ooovvviri i, 2,055,424 1,999,869 55,555

Municipal Courts
Personal SEIVICES....uumumuririrerireeeeeererrier e e e e eeeees 77,915 72,334 5,581
Professional SErvICes.....oviviuuriveeiiriviriiiisviieereiees 50,413 38,945 11,468
Operating expenditures..............c.ocivecreieercine e, 869,648 851,607 18,041
Total Municipal Courts......................occoeeiiinin, 997,976 962,886 35,090

Court of Appeals
Personal Services.........coovviieiiiies e 15,898 14,079 1,819
Professional ServICeS......coveveviverinninerinenererenanenes 49,344 47,339 2,005
Operating expenditures.......c.ccocevvverersrennseeenenens 97,632 75,021 22,611
Debt SEIVICE...cooiiiiiie ittt 8,000 6,812 1,188
Capital outlays......ccocoiviiiiriiinecer e 2,690 2,686 4
Total Court of Appeals.................ccocvivvinninnn, 173,564 145,937 27,627

Public Defender
Personal SEIVICES. . uuuuuurrerivrmrmirimisrminisermrerierreesnnn, 3,273,347 3,258,651 14,696
Professional services............ccccovvvve e 193,189 191,097 2,092
Operating expenditures........ooooevvevevnvecereveencenens 270,758 231,592 39,166
DIEBt SEIVICE..oivvetiiorireeeeeireeceeee s e evieeeeeieeeans 3,773 1,617 2,156
Capital outlays........cooooviiiiniiieci e, 300,248 296,026 4,222
Total Public Defender....................coooevcviciin, 4,041,315 3,978,983 62,332

Total Judicial and Law Enforcement................_. 76,943.318 74,682,887 2,260,431
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 (Cont'd.)
Environment & Variance
Public Works Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Expenditures:
Non-Departmental
Professional SErVICES....ooiiiiieine s errnens 48,640 48,640 $ 0
Operating expenditures..........oooooeiiiiiiicieeeens 210,941 210,941 0
Total Non-Departmental ... 259,581 259,581 0
County Engineer
Personal services.......oocovveveeevvevvnennnn UUOTUUTUUTTOUORN 147,577 135,500 12,077
Professional SCIvICCS.......ooovvviieiiiviiieee e 50,666 44,922 5,744
Operating expendifires..........c.occeciiiniieiisnicn s 41,640 33,587 8,053
Debt SETVICE ..o e s s 5,034 4,943 91
Capital outlays........ccoooveiiinrinc s 33,000 7,978 25,022
Total County Engineer............................ 277,917 226,930 50,987
Total Environment & Public Works........................ 537,498 486511 50,987
Social Services Expenditures:
Non-Departmental
Professional services........oooooviioviviic e 844,734 844,499 235
Operating expenditures.........cccoevevveericeneniineannenn, 187,590 187,590 0
Total Non-Departmental ... 1,032,324 1,032,089 235
Veteran Services
Personal ServiCes.. .o 540,685 515,006 25,679
Professional services............ccocov e, 36,626 34,851 1,775
Operating expenditures...........ccccevvveeeeevreeeeieeennnnn 635,148 600,903 34,245
Capital outlays.......ooooeveiriiieee e 38,946 37,614 1,332
Total Veteran Services...............................o. 1,251,405 1,188,374 63,031
Total Social Services....................ccoeeeeieiiiiie i, 2,283,729 2,220,463 63,260
Community and Expenditures:
Economic Development ~ Community Development and Planning
Personal ServICES......ooovviiveveveicriirir e ee s 646,466 473,646 172,820
Professional SeIVICES.....ccvivivvviecreree e ne 39,381 26,063 13,318
Operating eXpenditires........occcevvervrveereerireeesersenens 108,952 30,690 78,262
Capital outlayS.....c.ccvvceieeiiieccee e 33,122 23,270 9,852
Total Community Development and Planning....... 827,921 553,669 274,252
Public Works
Personal Services. ..ocovvviiciiiieieiviriiiiire e serennneens 1,248,458 1,166,689 81,769
Professional SErVICES.......uuuvrvuvimrvrviminrrrrrierrrereronens 257,602 250,827 6,775
Operating expendifures........coocvvvvreevrreeevrnceeennnn. 389,099 376,586 12,513
Debt SEIVICE. ... 2,400 767 1,633
Capital outlays........ccoeviiiiiiniic e, 168,209 152,081 16,128
Total Public Works................cccooiiiiii, 2,065,768 1,946,950 118,818
Non-Departmental
Operating eXpenaifures........ccrvviereverrerivcrnrrnereneenn. 2,551,634 2,551,634 0
Total Non-Departmental.................cc.occoovvriviiann. 2,551,634 2,551,634 0
Total Community and Economic Development....... 5,445.323 5,052,253 393,070
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual (Cont'd.)

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Totals Total Expenditures.......................cccoiii, $ 105,541,059 § 101,031,888 $ 4,509,171
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.................................. 31,806,087 38,104,871 6,298,784
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers M. 6,260,612 6,419,072 158,460
Operating transfers oUt.........ccoconivniiie e, (53,189,361) (53,098,387) 90,974
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............... (46,928,749) (46,679,315) 249,434
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses......................... (15,122,662) (8,574,444) 6,548,218
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year................ 43,214,813 43,214,813 0
Fund Balance at End of Year...................ccccoooo.. $ 28,092,151 $ 34,640,369 $ 6,548,218
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Special Revenue Funds

These are funds used to account for specific governmental revenues (other than major capital projects)
requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action and
expenditures for specified purposes.

Board O_/. ‘This fund manages and operates programs for the mentally retarded and Annually
Mental Retardation developmentally disabled who reside in Montgomery County. Budgeted
A[COhO[, Drug Addiction This Board is responsible for a wide range of substance abuse control and mental Multi-Year
and Mental Health health services for residents of Montgomery County. Budgeted

Services Board

Children This county agency is responsible by faw for investigation of all reports of child Annually
Services Board abusc, neglect or dependency. Services include family counscling, foster care, Rudgeted

adoption services and clinical services.

Human Services The Human Services fund administers public assistance programs under state and Multi-Year
federal regulations. ‘These programs encompass Ohio Works First (OWF), Medicaid, Budgeted

Food Stamps, Child Care and Social Services.

Human Services Levy Levy proceeds support various human service organizations such as the Children Annually
Services Board, Board of Mental Retardation, and other agencies which agrec to Budgeted
provide services that accommodate unmet needs in the community. Two separately

budgeted levy funds, entitled Levy A and Levy B, respectively, comprise this fund.

C(_)untry View Manor The Country View Manor provides residential care in a proteclive, assisled living cnviron- Annually
ment for up to sixty-five elderly County residents who are unable to live independently and Budgeted

who meet the admission requirements. It is funded primarily by the Human Services L.evy.

Road, Auto and Gas This fund accounts for revenues, derived mainly from State taxes and fees, which Annually
finance the operation of the County Engineer's department. Budgeted
Real Estate Monies are collected from the tax settlements to finance the state-mandated Annually
Assessment appraisal of real property in Montgomery County. Budgeted
Community Development This program aids in the rehabilitation and new construction of underdeveloped Multi-Year
Block Grant neighborhoods on a County-wide basis. Budgeted
Job Training The Job Training Partnership Act provides services to economically disadvantaged Multi-Year
Partnership Act County residents in the areas of vocational ¢lassroom training, self-directed job Budgeted

search, work experience and on-the-job training.

Child Supp()rt T'o account for operating fees, reimbursements and related expenditures to maintain Multi-Year
Enﬁ)rcement and enforce the County's child support program. Budgeted
Youth Services This fund supports programs that enable youths to remain in the community rather Multi-Year
Subsidy than being placed in State institutions. These programs include a summer work Budgeted

program, foster care programs and others.

Economic Development This fund accounts for the County's commitment, pursuant to its ten-year plan, to Multi-Year
provide $5 million per year to fund qualifying economic development programs. Its Budgeted

source of funding 15 the General Fund.
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Community

To account for the administration of the community corrections program (MonDay).

Mulii-Year

Corrections MonDay is a male/female facility which 1s operated in cooperation with the City of Budgeted

Dayton.
ADAMHS Board This fund provides mandatory separate accountability for approximately $5 million of federal Mulri-Year
Federal Grants grant programs which are administered by the Alcohol, Drug Addiction and Mental Health Budgeted

Scrvices Board, Each specific grant is accounted for on a separate multi-ycar project basis,
Hotel/Motel Tax This fund accounts for the collection and distribution of the County’s hotel/motel tax. Annually
Administration The majority of the disbursements are made to the Dayton Area Chamber of Commerce, Budgeted
Other Smaller Special Revenue Funds operated by the County and subsidized in part by local, state

and federal monies as well as miscellaneous sources. These funds are listed as follows:

-Dog and Kennel -Welfare Audit

-Caring Program -Inspection Services

-Animal Control Contracts -Mistrict Planning lees

-Coroner's Special Lab -Landfill Development

-Forensic Crime Lab -Day/Mont Courts Building

-Crime Lab-AFIS Fees -Reibold Building

-Victims of Domestic Violence -Coroner/Crime Lab Bldg Maint

-District Court Probation Services -Stillwater Center Contract

-CPC Probation Scrvices ~Children Serviees Board Contract

-Montgomery County Sentencing -Clerk of Courts Certificate of Title Admin.

-Alternative Dispute Resolution -Montg Co Auto License Bureau

-Indigent Guardianship -Domestic Relations Legal Rescarch Fecs

-Low Income Housing -domestic Relations Automation Fees

-CED-Muhi-Service Center -Probate Court Legal Research Fees Annually

-Cultural Facilitics -Probate Court Automation Fees Budgeted

-Telecommunications Tax

-Building Regulations

-P'lat and Site Review

-Joint Office of Economic Development
-Indigent Drivers Alcohol ‘[teatment
-Sheriff-Harmison Twp Contract
-Sheritf-Washington Twp Contract
-Sheriff-Jefferson Twp Contract
-Shentf Sccunty Contracts

-Jail Commissary

-Sheriff-DARE

-800 MHz Operating

-County Recorder Equipment Needs

-Common Plcas Court Legal Rescarch Fees
-Common Pleas Court Automation Fees
-Juvenile Court [.egal Research Fees
-Juvenile Court Detention Ctr Education
-Distrct Courts Legal Rescarch Fees
-Distret Courts Automation l'ees

-Dhistret Courts Operation
-DETAC-Prosecutor

-DETAC-Treasurer

-'Ireasurer's Prepayment Interest

-General Fund Incentive-to-Save Program
-County Prosecutor Victim Witness

-Job Center

-Children Services Board State Grants
-Justice Assistance Act

-Community Hurnan Services Capital Alloc.

-Community Oriented Policing Program
-Shenff's Seized Assets

-Sherift-CANE

-Sheriff-OCN

-DUI Enforcement Grant

-l.ocal I.aw Enforcement Block Cirant
-General Fund Strategic Investment
~Juvenile Court HS Levy Grants

-Juv. Acct. Inc. Block Grant
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-CPC State Grants

-CPC Federal Grants

-Litter Control

-Dara Tate Center Grant
-MRDD Federal Girants
-MRDD Residential
-MRDD Dual Diagnosis
-MRDD Family Resources
-VAWA Grant

-VOCA Grant

-DR Ct-Child Protection Mediation
-Building Regulations Grant

Multi-Year
Budgeted



MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Balance Sheet
All Special Revenue Funds

December 31, 1999

Alcohol, Drug

Board of Addiction and Children Human
Mental Mental Health Services Human Services
Retardation Services Bd. Board Services Levy
Assets
Equity in pooled cash
and cash cquivalents. ... h) 11,252,730 § 7,990,943 $ 1,718,988 $ 10,194,776 § 36,439,302
Nect receivables
XSttt it ettt eee e eee et a e 4,622,042 81,656,147
Accounts............... ISV UVUR PR PUo 260,097 7,204 1,139 2,259
ACCrued TMEICST. oo
Duc from other funds..........cooiiiiini v 516,734 1,046 2,084,918 478,662 2,444,127
Duc from other governments.........cooovvvvcrccnenas 265,065 655,458 2,356,461
Due from component unit.................. 100,000
TOtA] ASSCIS....oovvoss oo $ 17,016,668 % 8,654651 § 6,161,506 § 10,675,697 $ 120,539,576
Liabilities
Accounts payable........ e $ 310,074 $ 2,053,942 b 2,692,320 $ 2261310 § 3,028,933
Deferred revenue......... e 4,616,905 81,718,635
Ductoother funds............ 355,609 28,030 183,790 2,558,778
Due to other governments.... e 3,401 20,000 6,850 17,801 126,033
Accrued wages and benefits...........ccocooiin 562,496 28,586 284,541 441,879
Total LiaBilities. ..o 5,848,485 2,130,558 3,167,501 5,279,768 84,873,601
Fund Balances
Reserved for ecncumbrances......ooovoi 735,919 22,197,033 559,372 11,553, 874 1,017,044
Unreserved/undesignated.......... 10,432,264 (15,672,940) 2,434,633 (6,157,945) 34,648,931
Total EGUity....c.ccocooveenennnnn, 11,168,183 6,524,093 2,994,005 5,395,929 35,665,975

Total Liabilities And Equity 17,016,668 $ 8,054,651 % 6,161,506 % 10,675,697 §_ 120.539,576
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(Cont'd.)

Community Job
Country Road, Real Development Training Child Youth
View Auto Estate Block Partnership Support Services Economic
Manor and Gas Assessment Grant Act Enforcement Subsidy Development
$ 1209982 § 9,005,322 § 2,i63,017 % b3 § 3,673,733 § 3,202,627 § 14,790,985
764,827 990 112,310
122,437
4,080 65,610 2,660 925 401,772

473,704 1,536,036 2,787,482 239,574

$ 1214062 % 10431900 5 2165677 % 1,536961  $__ 2788472 $ 4187815 $ 3442201 § 14,790,985

$ 73,640 § 760316 $ 115,141 $ 483498 § 92912 § 40966 S 270830 8
70,222
14,074 145,380 10,428 1,046,458 2,019,284 512,516 14,215
295 26,313 10,353 1,515 736,533 -
48,778 144,778 24,588 7,005 259,668 12,541
136,787 1,147,009 150,157 1,536,961 2,122,549 814,665 297,586 736,533
61,801 2,524,622 134,763 3,548,939 1,041,663 3,509,432 188,399 3,064,390
1,015,474 6,760,269 1,880,757 (3,548.939) (375,740) (136.282) 2,956,216 10,990,062
1,077,275 0,284,891 2,015,520 0 665,923 3,373,150 3,144,615 14,054 452

$§ 1214062 % _ 10431900 % 2165677 § 1,536,961  $ 2788472 $ 4187815 § 3,442,201 5 14,790,985
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Balance Sheet

All Special Revenue Funds (Cont'd.)

December 31, 1999

ADAMHS Hotel/
Board Motel Tax
Community Federal Admini-
Corrections Grants stration Other Totals

Assets
Equity in pooled cash

and cash equivalents..........oiin s $ 8032062 % 1,080,292  § 142,166 § 43,650,792 § 147318917
Net receivables '

A Bttt iriatirarastserrersem e s s s saseaearesre e nreree e 169,679 86,447,868

Accounts e 11,221 490,342 1,650,389

Accrued INTEFESt......coooooeieeieie e 48,190 170,627
Due from other funds.........ccoco oo 10,406 566,057 6,570,997
Due from other governments.........oinnn, 18,017 267,536 8,599,333
Due from component unit...........n 100,000
TOUGL ASSCLS ..o $ B8I13.668 % 1109530 % 311,845 § 45022917 § 250,864,131
Liabilities

Accounts payable. ... 48012 &% 363,075 % 32 $ 1,244290  § 13,839,291

Deferred revenue............ 27,639 86,433,401

Due to other funds 27,781 160 807 278,962 7,196,272

Due to other governments............................ 19,045 211,746 1,179,885

Accrued wages and benefits.............. 69,613 1,384 366,486 2,252,343
Total Liabilities..............ccccoiviveveeiiviiiccininciiiia 164,451 363,235 2,223 2,129,123 110,901,192
Fund Balances

Reserved for encumbrances...........ccooooooereenn. 117,732 2,843 288 2,076 1,724 883 54,825,230

Unreserved/undesignated......... 531,485 (2,096,993) 307,546 41,168,911 85,137,709
Total EQUity........cccovovieein 649,217 746,295 309,622 42,893,794 139,962,939
Total Liabilities And Equity 813,668 % 1,109,530  § 311,845 § 45022917 § 250,864,131
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
All Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 (Cont'd }
Alcohol, Drug
Board of Addiction and Children Human
Mental Mental Health Services Human Services
Retardation Services Bd. Board Services Levy
Revenues:
PrOPCITY TAXCS.veuiiteecreeeere ettt eenes $ 4034638 8 $ $ $ 69,827,930
Other taXCS.uei e eenes 6,568 67,250
Licenses and permits.....ooeeeeveeecceecevveenennnes
Fees and charges for services.......... 1,050,144 2,495 131,475
Fines and forfeitures.........cocoeiianinnnnnicnnnnns
Intergovernmental........... et r bt e 10,229,501 20,882,784 28,072,177 55,787,740 7,474,924
Investment €arnINgs. ......coooooveiie e
Miscellaneous....ocooeaveciieciicciec e, 861,690 569,476 901,122 883,963
Total ReVenues..........c..o..ocieiiviisivis i 16,202,541 21,454,755 29,104,774 56,671,703 77,370,104
Expenditures:
Current.
General govermnment. e
Judicial and law enforcement......................
Environment and public works...................
Social SETVICCS. oo ceeee e, 27,946,093 36,939,976 46,778,121 52,362,437 9,339,166
Community and economic development....
Intergovernmental:
S0C1a] SCTVICES . civvnreis e 16,241,742
Community and cconomic development.....
Debt Service:
Principal retirement.......c..ccovee e, 67,598 23,529 34,384
Interest and fiscal charges.......ccccccciiin. 17,848 6,705 3,865
Total Expenditures..............ccccocvovocnannn.. 28,031,539 36,939,976 46,808,355 52,400,686 25,580,908
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........................... (11,828,998) (15,485,221) (17,703,581) 4,271,017 51,789,196
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Proceeds from sale of fixed asscts/sundrics..
Procceds from capital leases.....coooeerieenene 331,923 23,740
Operating transfers in...........ccceeiiiiieeinnnns 16,879,873 17,219,500 19,831,025 5,159,948
Operating transfers out.....vvennieen, (195,000) (102,236) (61,805,571)
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses 17,016,796 17,219,500 19,752,529 5,159,948 (61,805,571)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses................ 5,187,798 1,734,279 2,048,948 9,430,965 (10,016,375)
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning of Year............................ 5,980,385 4,789,814 945,057 (4,035,036) 45,682,350
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year......coovvoveoiiiiiiiiiiccnsei, $ 11,168,183 % 6,524,093 § 2994005 $ 5395929 § 35665975

- 75 -



MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Cont'd.)

All Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Community Job
Clountry Road, Real Development Training
View Auto Estate Block Partnership
Manor and Gas Assessment Grant Act
Revenues:
Property taXC8..oovrrieeeesieeneeseveereenrennaeneeens h 3
Other tAXES. .ccovviereereseesee e ereereees 3,981,265
Licenses and permits......c..ocooiiviini v,
Fees and charges for services 385,577 213,150 2,937,356
Fines and forfeitures........oooooniivieniviicinnns 204,753
Intergovernmental...........cocoviiiiiinnns 8,853,369 5,032,732 3,578,581
Investment earmings.......cccooovriierninnie e 461,137
Miscellaneous......ooooe e 28,837 1,558,364 2,660 28,248
Total ReVERUES. ..., 414,414 15,272,038 2,940,016 5,060,980 3,578,581
Expenditures:
Current:
General gOVernNMENL......ccooceimacennieereeneennes 2,099,840
Judicial and law enforcement........coccoeeeeee
Environment and public works................... 13,440,107
Social SETVICCS...oveii e, 1,809,446 2,912,658
Community and cconomic development..... 5,060,980
Intergovernmental:
Social SEIVICES. ..o,
Community and economic development.....
Debt Service:
Principal retirement............c.oooinienn
Interest and fiscal charges.........c..cocevevrennne
Total EXpenditures.............occcocoococnnee. 1,809,446 13,440,107 2,099,840 5,060,980 2,912,658
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.......................... (1,395,032) 1,831,931 840,176 0 665,923
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets/sundries.. 15,403
Proceeds from capital leases..........oovvvvecvenenn,
Operating transfers iN....ovrvvenin v 1,786,200 133,575
Operating transfers OUto..eivenn (12,240) (171,875)
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses 1,773,960 (22,897) 0 0 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Qver Expenditures And Other Uses................ 378,928 1,809,034 840,176 0 665,923
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning of Year...............ccccococioiicnnenn, 698,347 7,475,857 1,175,344 0 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year............................. 1,077,275 0,284,891 $§ 2015520 § 0 5 665,923
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ADAMHS Haotel/
Child Youth Board Motel Tux
Support Services Economic Community Federal Admini-
Enforcement Subsidy Development Corrections Grrants stration Other Totals

3 $ 5 by $ 1,028,303 74,910,871
2,246,769 6,301,852

2,346,086 2,346,086

1,094,947 12,467,960 18,283,104
54,230 258,983

9,006,739 3,081,501 9,082 3,983,952 3,815,072 14,393,071 174,201,225
11,942 213,835 686,914
406,246 2,049 32,589 2,174,155 7,449,399
10,519,874 3,083,550 9,082 3,983,952 3,847,661 2,246,769 32,677,640 284,438,434
1,905,503 4,005,343

15,704,742 2,009,765 3,593,212 16,114,871 37,422,590
2,507,513 15,947,620

3,101,366 9,200,926 190,390,189

2,471,987 1,400,620 7,307,939 16,241,526

16,241,742

1,202,388 1,202,388

27,943 1,301 154,755
6,655 128 35,201
15,739,340 2,009,765 3,674,375 3,593,212 3,101,366 1,400,620 37,038,181 281,641,354
(5,219,466) 1,073,785 (3,665,293) 390,740 746,295 846,149 (4,360,541) 2,797,080
15,403

10,000 365,663
6,192,137 35,329 5,000,000 21,931,742 94,169,329
(1,688,589) (753,479)  (3,663,343)  (68,392,333)
4,513,548 35,329 5,000,000 0 0 (753,479) 18,268,399 26,158,062
(705,918) 1,109,114 1,334,707 390,740 746,295 92,670 13,907,858 28,955,142
4,079,068 2,035,501 12,719,745 258,477 0 216,952 28,985,936 111,007,797
§ 3,373,150 3,144,615 § 14,054,452 649,217 § 746,295 $ 309,622 $ 42,893,794 § 139,962,939
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Board of Mental Retardation-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
PrOPErtY tAXES..ooviiveiiveeraieiti ettt $ 3,946,675 § 4064352 § 117,677
O T LXK S oot ve e sassesssraeess 3,000 6,568 3,568
Fees and charges for Services......ocovevvvervvinnne. 996,095 1,001,988 5,893
Intergovernmental..................n 10,113,857 9,971,555 (142,302)
MiscellanEous. ... ..o 568,618 571,442 2,824
Total RevVenuUes..................c.c.cccciieiee i 15,628,245 15,615,905 (12,340)
Ixpenditures:
Current:
Social Services
Mental Retardation and Developmental
Disabilities
Personal Services......oocvvveiiiiiiiiie e 26,471,592 24,528,348 1,943,244
Professional services..............cccoiveviciviniiinn 2,599,856 2,267,614 332,242
Operating expenditures............coocooveovnrreenenn, 2,126,164 1,528,892 597,272
Debt SErVICE . ...t 19,423 19,136 287
Capital OUtlays.. .o 234,204 190,312 43,892
Total Expenditures. ..., 31,451.239 28,534,302 2,916,937
Fxcess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures..................c...c..c....... (15,822,994) (12,918,397) 2,904,597
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers M. 17,306,820 16,879,873 (426,947)
Operating transfers oUt.........c.occoeveverecrinreenreenen, (801,794) (673,213) 128,581
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. 16,505,026 16,206,660 (298,366)
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses....................... 682,032 3,288,263 2,606,231
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...................... 7,016,969 7,016,969 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End OF Year........cccooovviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie $ 7,699,001 $ 10,305,232 § 2,606,231
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Children Services Board-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for services......ocoovviniinnnnnn $ 131,855 $ 131,855 $ 0
Intergovernmental................i, 25,018,666 25,018,666 0
Miscellaneous. ... 1,017,686 1,017,686 0
Total ReVERUES. ... 26,168,207 26,168,207 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Sociul Services
Children Services Department
Personal SerVICES. ..o iviiir e imiereeeaeerinireaeaea 15,993,351 15,991,084 2,267
Professional SErvVICES......ovveevveeeeeiee e 26,794,738 26,788,149 6,589
Operating expenditures..................cooooiininian, 4,588,486 4,543,962 44,524
DDl SEIVICE i iiieer e ane s 127,913 109,820 18,093
Capital outlays. ..o 611,094 608,228 2,866
Total EXpenditures........coooooviviiiininioiees 48,115,582 48,041,243 74,339
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........ccocoooieinnn (21,947 375) (21,873,036) 74,339
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating trans{ers ..., 17,019,177 19,831,025 2,811,848
Operating transfers out...........cocovereceiiiiinn, (168,592) (102,236) 66,356
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. 16,850,585 19,728,789 2,878,204
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses..................... (5,096,790} (2,144,247) 2,952,543
Fund Balance (Deficit) At ,
Beginning Of Year.............cccocoviiiiiininii 3,157,997 3,157,997 0
Fund Bulance (Deficit) At
End OF Year.......cocoooiiiiiiiiiiiiioic e, $ (1,938793) $ 1,013,750 § 2,952,543
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Human Services Levy A-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgerary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
PrOPEITY TAXCS . ivrrieeereerereeereereenevcsssieesasnrnseenasenes $ 34,691,708 § 34974343 § 282,035
OhEr LAXES. cveive e 15,158 34216 19,058
Intergovernmental.........ooiiii 3,719,515 3,719,515 ()
Total ReVenues. ... 38,426,381 38,728,074 301,693
Expenditures:
Current:
Social Services
Human Services Levy Administration
Professional services.........ooccvvivierercininiieeecineenns 2,774,249 2,924,358 (150,109)
Total EXpenditures..........cccoooviiviiiiiviiiaioin, 2,774,249 2,924,358 (150,109)
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures................................. 35,652,132 35,803,716 151,584
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating ransfers OUl...oeeeoreeee e, (39.421,243) (37,973,797) 1,447,446
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. (39,421,243) (37,973,797) 1,447,446
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses....................... (3,769,111) (2,170,081) 1,599,030
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year........................... 11,682,611 11,682,611 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year...........cccoouiviiinciciiciiciiiii, $ 7913500 $ 9,512,530 § 1,599,030
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Human Services Levy B-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: '
PrOperty taXCs .o ovrenerereeeiriiinrniestsieinicnnreenenenas $ 34,657,253 § 34930,123 $§ 272,870
Other TAXES...ieer e eer e et 14,624 33,034 18,410
Intergovernmental.........oooiniinn i 3,755,409 3,755,409 0
Total ReVERUES. .. ...t 38,427,286 38,718,566 291,280
Expenditures:
Current:
Social Services
Human Services Levy Administration
Professional Services........coovioiacrniiiiececen 22,677,021 22,651,570 25,451
Total EXpenditures. ... 22,677,021 22,651,570 25,451
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures................................ 15,750,265 16,066,996 316,731
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers OUL.........ovveveeieienie e, (24,681,639) (23,831,774) 849,865
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. (24,681,639) (23,831,774) 849,865
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses...................... (8,931,374) (7,764,778) 1,166,596
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year ... 34,222,982 34,222,982 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year........ccooo oo $ 25291,608 $ 26,458,204 § 1,166,596
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Country View Manor-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for services..........oooin, 385,577 $ 385,577 $ 0
Miscellaneous.......oooviiiiiireie e 24,757 24,757 0
Total REVENUES ... oot 410,334 410,334 0
FExpenditures:
Current:
Social Services
Stillwater-CountyView Manor
Personal SErVICES.. i eriereeeerrerecse s enninriene s 1,375,664 1,344,900 30,764
Professional SCIVICES. . .oviveerreraieareieeee e 153,141 100,564 52,577
Operating expenditures.........cocovvinninnnnen 474,002 404,092 69,910
Capital OUtlaYS......coonviiiii i 73,897 53,202 20,695
Total Expenditures.............cccccocoiiiiiiiiiei 2,076,704 1,902,758 173,946
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over EXpenditures. ..., (1,666,370) (1,492,424) 173,946
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers in..........oooeeninn e 1,786,200 1,786,200 0
Operating transfers oul.....cocoooviiiiiiicieei (12,300) (12,240) 60
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. 1,773,900 1,773,960 60
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses.................. 107,530 281,536 174,006
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year........ccccooioiiviiiii 797,565 797,565 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year...........cccoiioi 905,095 $ 1,079,101 $ 174,006
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Road, Auto and Gas-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
OhET EaXES. viiei ettt 3,994,752 % 3994752 % 0
Fees and charges for services..........cooovininnnn 172,071 172,071 0
Fines and forfeitures. ...oooooeeeeiie e 197,847 197,847 0
Intergovernmental..........coovvvrieiniiniicies 8,844,948 8,844,948 0
Investment @arnings.........cooooevvenrennianiiiniinn 224 436,469 436,245
Miscellaneous. . .....oovviveir e, 1,069,258 1,069,258 0
Total ReVEenUESs...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiei 14,279,100 14,715,345 436,245
Expenditures:
Current:
Public Works
Engineer
Personal SEIVICES. ...oovvviriviiiriieie v ea e e 6,323,322 5,728,970 594,352
Professional Services.......cccovvvvvvverveeinniciiieceeee, 538,499 478,692 59,807
Operating expenditures.............cccoccooniviiiinn, 1,570,396 1,472,844 97,552
Capital outlays.....cccoevierieinceee e 9,079,897 8,798,212 281,685
Total EXpenditures..............cccocooiviiviciiiiinininnn, 17,512,114 16,478,718 1,033,396
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Qver Expenditures..................c............. (3,233,014) {1,763,373) 1,469,641
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers in.........cooceveviccnnee 133,575 180,959 47,384
Operating transfers out...........cocoeivciivininiinane, (227,384) (219,259) 8,125
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ (93,809) (38,300) 55,509
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses...................... (3,326,823) (1,801,673) 1,525,150
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year..............c.ccccooiiiiiiiiii, 7,468,226 7,468,226 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year................iiiiiiiiiii, $ 4141403 $§ 5666553 % 1,525,150




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Real Estate Assessment-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services........ocooviin. $ 29290612 $ 2937381 h 7,769
Total ReVeRUES.........cccc.coiiicoiiaciiiiiiiiia, 2,929,612 2,937,381 7,769
Expenditures:

Current:
General Government
Auditor

Personal SEIVICES. ..oovveviveiiririrrrerresseesersaeaeaeaaanens 1,386,054 1,334,236 51,818

Professional SErviCeS....ooivivevivurrenenerererenerrnrnenes 682,615 049,403 33,212

Operating expenditures........c.ococoieeiininnenonnns 72,846 62,335 10,511

Capital outlays.........coooommiimii 257,352 252,174 5,178
Total ExpendittreS. ..o 2,398 867 2,298,148 100,719
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................ 530,745 639,233 108,488
Ffund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year................................... 1,276,719 1,276,719 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.............a... $ 1,807464 $ 1915952 § 108,488
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Hotel/Motel Tax Administration-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

OhET TAKES. oot eete et etre et e ee e $ 2240467 § 2235167 % (5,300)
Total Revenues................ccccccciiii 2,240.467 2,235,167 (5,300)
Expenditures:

Current:
Community and Economic Development

Hotel/Motel Tax Administration

Personal 5eTVICES. ... .ooociiireiiree e 81,720 81,720 0

Professional services....ococominieanniiiicen e 7,408 5,392 2,016

Operating expenditures...........ocoovivriinieeein: 1,856,347 1,438,396 417,951
Total ExpendittureS. ...t 1,945,475 1,525,508 419,967
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.......cocoooooovoonnn. 294,992 709,659 414,667
Other Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers out.............cocooiinnn (919,800) (753,479) 166,321
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. (919,800) (753,479) 166,321
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses...................... (624,808) (43,820) 580,988
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.................n. 183,910 183,910 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
ERd Of Year............co.c.ccooiiiiiiiiciiicis oo $ (440,898) § 140,090 § 580,988
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Dog and Kennel-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Licenses and permits...........ccooco i 3 726,794 % 719255 % (7,539)
Fees and charges for services.....cvvvvvievenieren, 120,460 120,460 0
Fines and forfeitures.............cccoeeieeiiiceiisicn, 26,200 26,200 0
Intergovernmental.........ocoorviirniiniiiiee 145,000 145,000 0
Miscellaneous.....c.ooovvvvvevervv e 45,759 45759 0
Total REVERUES. ..o 1,064,213 1,056,674 (7,539)
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Animal Control
Personal SEIVICES....ooeeeieiieeeeeee e 1,181,236 1,144,190 37,046
Profcssional SEIVICES......vvvvvevieeciiiiiciiiiciice 145,033 112,430 32,603
Operating expenditures............ccooooreivnns 115,407 112,684 2,723
Capital outlays.......cooovoiiniece 60,472 56,694 3,778
Total Expenditures. ..o 1,502,148 1,425,998 76,150
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures......................_.... (437,935) (369,324) 68,611
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers in................coon. 355,167 355,167 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses........... 355,167 355,167 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses....................... (82,768) (14,157) 68,611
Fund Balance (Deficit) At :
Beginning Of Yedr.............c.coococccii, 274,625 274,625 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.......cooiviviiiiiiiiiii e b 191,857 § 260468 % 68,011
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Caring Program-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance

_87-

Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for services......ooooovavienenns $ 30,733 § 30,733 § 0
Miscellaneous. ..o 28,324 28,324 0
Total Revenues................................ 39,057 59,057 0
Expenditures.
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Animal Control
Professional Services.........oooovvvivve e 47,500 38,049 9,451
Opecrating expenditures..............c.ccooovvevinnnn 21,200 18,729 2,471
Total Expenditures. ... 68,700 56,778 11,922
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............ccocooooveeonnn, (9,643) 2,279 11,922
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year......................ci. 71,323 71,323 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year............oooevoooovooeeeeooeeeoeeee . $ 61,680 $ 73,602 $ 11,922




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Animal Control Contracts-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgerary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for services........ooooeee. .. h) 59,630 % 59,630 % 0
Miscellaneous...............oo o 15 15 0
Total Revenues.........................cciiin, 59,645 59,645 0
FExpenditures:
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Animal Control
Personal Services. .o 21,564 16,739 4 825
Professional SEIVICES..........ccvi i 2,249 2,249 0
Operating expenditures. ... 25,995 24,890 1,105
Total Expenditures.. ..o, 49,808 43,878 5,930
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures................c.ocoe. 9,837 15,767 5,930
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.................... 35,966 35,966 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year............c.c..coiiiioiiiiii, $ 45803 % 51,733 § 5,930

- 88 -



MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Coroner's Special Lab-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services...........cooooieenn % 305,000 % 307489 % 2,489
Total ReVENUES. ..., 305,000 307,489 2,489
FExpenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Coroner

Professional ServiCes.....oieervrerreiresiieeeeaieee e 71,780 69,825 1,955

Operating expenditures...........cocoeiieiniiininnnn 108,616 105,412 3,204

Capital outlays.....coovveriireincerieeioens U 202,850 169,608 33,248
Total Expenditures..............c.occooooeoeeeiciciiiiiia, 383,252 144,845 38.407
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........................ (78,252) (37,356) 40,896
Other Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers olt.........c..ccoceiviviniinncnincnnnn, (62,500) (62,010) 490
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. (62,500) (62,010) 490
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses..................... (140,752) (99,366) 41,386
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year............cc.oocooovveceiciiiii 297,24() 297,240 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
EndOf Year........ooiiiiiiiiiiiei, $ 156,488 % 197,874 & 41,386
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Forensic Crime Lab-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for Services.....ocoovvviinnnienn 3 35,000 % 69,505 b 34,505
Intergovernmental...............ooo oo 870,000 880,600 10,600
MiSCEllaneous. .....ccouv e 58,500 61,025 2,525
Total Revenues..........................ccooo 963,500 1,011,130 47 630
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Forensic Crime Lab
Personal SEIVICES. .vvavrervrer e erereanrieeeaneeeseneeas 1,077,574 1,071,500 6,074
Professional SErvICES. ..o ivviriaaiirieerieraseiieanninan, 62,797 52,340 10,457
Operating expendifires..........cccvoovvivreeeeiercarieen 420,581 395,183 25,398
Capital outlays.......cocoovvivvieriiiiecinn 90,171 83,583 6,588
Total Expenditures ..o, 1,651,123 1,602,606 48,517
Fxcess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures................................ (687,623) (591,476) 96,147
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers in..........cciini, 671,128 687,097 15,969
Operating transfers out.........ccoevvvivvrcnrnenrennnnn (122,596) (122,596) 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ 548,532 564,501 15,969
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses..................... (139,091) (26,975) 112,116
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...................iii 351,508 351,508 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.......cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie $ 212,417 % 324533 § 112,116
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Crime Lab-AFIS Fees-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavaorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for Services.........ocoovivvviiinns b 221,000 3 221,873  § 873
Total REVEHUES. ..., 221,000 221,873 873
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Forensic Crime Lab

Personal SEIVICES..oovuiiriiei e eeirreieesneeaeneas 115,993 115,461 532

Professional S€IvVICes......ococvviveieercriice s 125,430 98,238 27,192

Operating expenditures...............coooinnn, 11,000 9,385 1,615
Total Expenditures.............c...c..cociiiiiiiiiiins 252,423 223,084 29,339
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures..............c.............. (31,423) (1,211) 30,212
Other Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers out...........coovviviiiiciiinin, (121,000) (121,000) 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ (121,000) (121,000) 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses...................... (152,423) (122,211) 30,212
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year..............ccoooiiiiiiiiii, 163,893 163,893 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year ... $ 11,470 $ 41,682 § 30,212
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Victims of Domestic Violence-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services. ..o eieiieneeennene 5 176,021  $ 164,537 §  (11,484)
Total Revenues.................c.ccccoccciiiie 176,021 164,537 (11,484)
Expenditures:

Current:
Social Services

Office of Family and Children First

Professional SErvICES......ovviviivivivivieieceieee e 180,000 167,206 12,794
Total Expenditures...............ccocoooooiioi 180,000 167,206 12,794
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.......................... (3,979) (2,669) 1,310
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year..............c..coii 89,757 89,757 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.....................oiii 3 85,778 % 87.088 § 1.310
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

District Court Probation Services-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for Services.....ooo i, 3 45000 § 48,729 % 3,729
Total Revenues...........cccccviiiiiiiieee e 45,000 48,729 3,729
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Domestic Relations Court

PCTSONal SEIVICES. veioreareaieeieieeneeeeeeeicneae e 52,683 40,557 12,126
Total Expendifures.........ocoooiiiiviiiiiniiiinnnn, 52,683 40,557 12,126
Fxcess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures....................... (7,683) 8,172 15,855
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.........................._........ 171,435 171,435 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.........cc.cccoocccociiii . b 163,752 % 179,607  § 15,855
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

CPC Probation Services-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charpes for services.........oooooinn, b 124,064 % 91,298 & (32,766)
Total ReVERUES. ... 124,064 91,298 (32,766)
Expenditures.:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Common Pleas Court

Personal SeIvICES......ooovviiiciieiirie e 40,746 40,718 28

Capital outlays........ccoooroiii 96,019 96,013 6
Total Expenditures. ..., 136,765 136,731 34
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................. (12,701) (45,433) (32,732)
Other Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers ... 857 857
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ 0 857 857
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses................. (12,701) (44,576) (31,875)
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year....................oiiii, 50,237 50,237 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year...............cocoooeiiiiiiiiiii $ 37,536 § 5,661 $ (31,875)
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Montgomery County Sentencing-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Total REVERUES. ..., $ 0 % 0 3 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Office of Management and Budget
Total Expenditures.......cooooooooiiiiiii 0 0 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................ 0 0 0
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers in...............ooiie 997,000 997,000 0
Operating transfers out.........covrieiieiiiiiinicins (34.442) (34,442) 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ 962,558 962,558 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses.................. 962,558 962,558 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year........ccoocooeiiiiiici 3,707,840 3,707,840 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.........coccoiiiiiiiii i $ 4670398 § 4,670,398 % 0
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Alternative Dispute Resolution-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP

Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for Services.......oooiviineienen, $ 321450 % 320702 % 8,252
Total Revenues................. ... 321,450 329,702 8,252
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Commaon Pleas Court

Personal SErVICES.....uuuuuuruiuereremenerenerenrnrrrrsrrrsesrenes 33,241 29,113 4,128

Professional services.......ooooeeivveeeeciiiceeeeeeeee. 184,250 184,116 134

Capital outlays. ... 10,700 10,561 139
Total ExpenditureS. ..o, 228,191 223,790 4,401
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures................................ 93,259 105,912 12,653
Cther Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers in................oinn 25,000 25,000 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ 25,000 25,000 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses...................... 118,259 130,912 12,653
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year....................oi 42,999 42,999 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year........cooooooovoiiviceicii $ 161,258 $ 173,911 $ 12,653
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Indigent Guardianship-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services..........ocooovvnieen. $ 85,000 $ 86,889 $ 1,889
Total ReVenmues...........c.ooiiiiiiiniiiiiseeeee, 85,000 86,889 1,889
FExpenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Probate Court

Personal Services.....oooovvvviivieires e 25,569 25,136 433

Professional Services.......coooivininniiiviniinnnen, 10,000 8,289 1,711

Operating expenditures...........c.ccooooi i, 1,600 1,376 224
Total Expenditures.......................cccocoiiiiiiiin 37,169 34,801 2,368
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over EXpenditures.............cc.cc........... 47,831 52,088 4,257
Other Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers oul........c.ocoovvrnirnins (53,220) 53,220
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. (53,220) 53,220
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses................... (5,389) 52,088 57,477
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year..................cccooivionviiicic, 211,675 211,675 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year...........c.ccoooviiiiiiiiieicaic $ 206,286 hY 263,763 $ 57,477
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Low Income Housing-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Total ReVEeNnUes. ... 3 0 % 0 $ 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Community and Economic Development
Non-Departmental
Operating expenditures........couveierriniinsirnns: 350,000 350,000 0
Total Expenditures. ..o 350,000 350,000 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........................... (350,000) (350,000) 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.........ccoooiiiiii 1,350,000 1,350,000 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.............ccccoiiiiiiiiiniiiiccicceee $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000 § 0
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
CED-Multi-Service Center-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for $ervices.........o.oovviinnnienn, $ 146,812 % 146,812 % 0
Miscellan@ous. .......oovverei i 15,372 15,372 0
Total ReVenues...........c.cc.ococcvv v, 162,184 162,184 0
Expenditures.
Current:
Community and Economic Development
Multi-Service Center
Personal SEIVICES. ....uuwuenoeiesvssssssnssssenenes 418,210 415,637 2,573
Professional Services. ..o iveeeieiirrerieeerrereinenns 234,333 220,111 14,222
Operating expenditures........cooooovevevenecrivieenn, 89,584 81,081 8,503
Capital outlays........ovveveieeiiiiciciiiinn e, 14,122 14,122 0
Total Expenditures.........cocoouviiiiioiiveoo 756,249 730,951 25,298
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures..............cccoo.. (594,065) (568,767) 25,298
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers ... 491,760 491,760 0
Operating transfers out...............ccooiiinnn. (14,995) (14,995) 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. 476,765 476,765 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses................... (117,300) (92,002) 25,298
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...........oii 152,680 152,680 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year. ..., $ 35380 % 60,678 % 25,298
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Cultural Facilities-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for services. ... $ 252,163 $ 252,163 $ 0
MISCEIANEOUS. ..o 4,842 9,842 5,000
Total Revenues................................. 257,005 262,005 5,000
Expenditures:
Current:
Community and Economic Development
Cultural Facilities and Affairs
Personal SErvIiCes.......oovvvvviiivviiece e 618,844 543,313 75,531
Professional Services...oovvvvvvririvevmvevirrnrvrvrvinrnenenes 265,215 221,152 44,063
Operating expenditUres..........ccoovveveeverivereeiereennns 228,996 154,865 74,131
Capital outlays....covvvirrecrr e 64,547 38,505 26,042
Total Expenditures......................._.. 1,177,602 957,835 219,767
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................ (920,597) (695,830) 224,767
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers ... 713,479 713,479 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ 713,479 713,479 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses....................... (207,118) 17,649 224,767
Fund Bulance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.........cccooovieiiiiiiioiiic, 1,234,090 1,234,090 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year..............i.., $ 1026972 $° 1251739 § 224767
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Telecommunications Tax-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (UnJavorable)
Revenues:
Total ReVERUES.........c..cooeioiiiecie 3 0 5 0 ¥ 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Community and Economic Development
Telecommunications
Professional Services.. ..o 275,000 250,000 25,000
Operating expendifures............cooocvoviiriieinnn. 129,905 122,861 7,044
Total Expenditures......................c............._.. 404,905 372,861 32,044
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.......................... (404,905) (372,861) 32,044
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers ..., 625,000 625,000 0
Operating transfers out................cc.ocoiiinnn, (427,500) (427,500) 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ 197,500 197,500 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses.................... (207,405) (175,361) 32,044
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year..............ciii, 361,384 361,384 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.......ccooiiiiiiiiiiiii $ 153979 % 186,023 % 32,044
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Building Regulations-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: '
Licenses and permits..........coocooonviiiioiin e, $ 1,377,147 $ 1,377,147 $ 0
Fees and charges for services.........cooocvivin 4093 4,093 0
Miscellaneous........ooeiiee e 5,858 5,858 0
Total ReVERUES. ... 1,387,098 1,387,098 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Community and Economic Development
Building Regulations
Personal services......oooi e 999,416 999,062 354
Professional SErviCes......oovvivviicinneee v 125,576 110,691 14,885
Operating exXpenditures........coocvevieeveeaenercr e, 99,796 90,060 9,736
Capital outlays.......cooeiieeii e, 34,300 23,051 11,249
Total EXpenditures..........c.cccocoooeviaiiaiiaina. 1,259,088 1,222,864 36,224
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................. 128,010 164,234 36,224
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year............................. 159,674 159,674 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.......ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiii h) 287,084 % 323,908 % 36,224
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Plat and Site Review-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services................cooinn, $ 19425 § 19,425 § 0
Total Revenues.................c.cooooooiiiiiii 19,425 19.425 0
Expenditures:

Current:
Community and Economic Development

Plat and Site Review

Operating expenditures..........coocooceveniereveennieenn, 1,500 138 1,362
Total EXpenditures...........o.c...oiiiviiiiiiiciinn,, 1,500 138 1,362
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.......................... 17,925 19,287 1,362
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year................................ 35,462 35,462 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year ..o b 53,387 % 54,749 § 1,362
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Joint Office of Economic Development-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:

[ntergovernmental.............ocoovoiiininin s $ 286,875 § 287,454 % 579
Total Revenues.................cocccocoiii 286,875 287,454 579
Expenditures:

Current:
Community and Economic Development
Joint Office of Economic Development

Personal SErvICes.......ooooveeiiiieceie e 43,280 39,997 3,283

Professional services.......ooovviicveeeiviiee e 831,108 749,399 81,709

Operating expendifires.........cocovvveecmniarieairirinine 76,999 19,845 57,154
Total EXpenditures.............cccccviiicoiiiia, 951,387 809,241 142,146
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures ... (664,512) (521,787 142,725
Other Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers if.........coccoeveveierecereivenieenneens 367,500 367,500 0

Opecrating transfers out.......ooiic s (15,000) (15,000) 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. 352,500 352,500 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Qver Expenditures And Other Uses....................... (312,012) (169,287) 142,725
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.................. 252,052 252,052 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
ERA OF YEQF-.oveoovooreooeeereoeeeeeeeeseeoeeeeeeeoe $  (59,960) $ 82,765 $ 142,725

- 104 -



MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Indigent Drivers Alcohol Treatment-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgerary Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fines and forfeitures.............cooinninn, 19,000 % 19,329 § 329
Intergovernmental..........ocoovvevicniiiirieees 2,000 1,988 (12)
Total Revenues....................cc.ccoviiiiiiiini e 21,000 21,317 317
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
District Courts
Professional ServiCes.....ooooeeicivireeerevriinineeseeeeens 10,000 1,146 8,854
Total Expenditures..............cocccooiiiiiiininiiiinnn, 10,000 1,146 8,854
FExcess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures....................... 11,000 20,171 9,171
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...........cccooooviniiinniisineeee 92,331 92,331 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.........cccoovooooiviiiiiiiie 103,331 $ 112,502 § 9,171
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Sheriff-Harrison Twp Contract-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental.. ... 2,483,417 $ 2,482,979 $ (438)
TOtal REVEHUES. ... oo oniis e e 2,483 417 2,482 979 (438)
Expenditures.

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Sheriff

Personal SETVICES. oottt ae e 2,399,031 2,167,802 231,229

Professional SEIVICES...ouvweireeaocenreeeeerarrirarease e as 205,188 173,913 31,275

Operating expenditurcs..........coceorornnvnrrnnnnon 39,198 17,903 21,295
Total Expenditures.......... i 2,643,417 2,359,618 283,799
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.................ooovne (160,000) 123,361 283,361
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year........ i 169,615 169,615 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.........c.cooiiiiiniii 9,615 % 292976  § 283,361
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Sheriff-Washington Twp Contract-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental..........c.coevvine s $ 1,996,143 § 1995993 § (150)
Total ROVERUES. ... 1,996,143 1,995,993 (150)
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Sheriff

Personal services. ... 2,067,717 1,914,382 153,335

Professional Services........ooovvviiiiiiiiiiine e . 127,143 59,672 67,471

Operating expenditures. ... 16,282 12,208 4,074
Total Expenditires........ccoooooviiviiiiiiiiiiii 2,211,142 1,986,262 224,880
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............cceil, (214,999) 9,731 224,730
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.........c.coo.ooovioiiiiiiie : 214,959 214,959 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.........cccoovuvvioiiiiiinioiini e $ (40) § 224,650 % 224730
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Sheriff-Jefferson Twp Contract-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance

Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental..............oooi, 311,949 % 311,564 % (385)
Total ReVEeRUes ... oo s cie oo oo, 311,949 311,564 (385)
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Sheriff

Personal SErvICeS. .. ovivi i 229,688 216,637 13,051

Professional SeIvices.........oovvviviiiiiniaiieanns. 52,799 47,806 4,993

Operating expenditures. ...............ocoveeiinen. 19,662 6,954 12,708

Capital outlays.........coocoeiiiiiiii 42 800 41,486 1,314
Total EXpenditures. ... oo oo v o 344,949 312,883 32,066
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................ (33,000) (1,319) 31,681
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year... 50,240 50,240 0
Fund Balance (Deful) Af
End Of Year.. : 17,240 $ 48,921 $ 31,681
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Sheriff Security Contracts-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance

Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorahle)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for services..........cooovvvrciiinne 3 160,209 § 189,463  § 29,254
Intergovernmental.............coooi, 26,203 27.500 1,297
Total Revenues..........c..c.ccccciiiiiiiiiii e 186,412 216,963 30,551
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Sheriff
Personal SeIVICES.....ooooviviiiiinires s 276,607 247,123 29,484
Professional SErvICEeS ..o eeernneens 7,656 1,303 6,353
Operating expenditures. .....cooovivvererenceneeneeeenen, 8,731 4,080 4,051
Capital outlays.......ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiicce, 4,500 4,406 94
Total Expenditures ..o 297,494 256,912 40,582
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over ExpendituresS......cooocoi, (111,082) (39,949) 71,133
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating (ransfers iN........cceeeeevireereerorevnreneeenes 111,082 (111,082)
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. 111,082 0 (111,082)
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses...................... 0 (39,949) (39,949)
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year..............coccooiiiiininin, 26,828 26,828 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year......cc.oooovceiiiiiiniiie e, b 26,828 § (13,121)  $  (39,949)
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Jail Commissary-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgerary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services....o e $ 60,000 § 57,489 % (2,511)
Total Revenues. ...l 60,000 57,489 (2,511)
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Sheriff

Operating expenditures............ccooririiriociieeeenn, 5,000 1,057 3,943

Capital outlays......covovvivievce e, 24.000 23,327 673
Total EXpenditures..............cccooiiiiiiiiiiin 29,000 24,384 4,616
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........................ 31,000 33,105 2,105
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year............c.oooveviiciiiioniinne. 0 0 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.................c.coooiiiiiiiiiioes e, g 31,000 % 33,105 ¢ 2,105
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Sherift-DARE-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, [999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Miscellaneous. ... r e, $ 41,653 § 19,069 §  (22.584)
Total Revenues .............................c..i..... 41,653 19,069 (22,584)
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Sheriff

Personal ServiCes. ....ooviviiveinvrraie e, 41,653 41,653 0

Operating expenditures. ..., 3,078 2,085 993
Total Expenditures .........cc.cccciuiiiiiiiinn... 44,731 43,738 993
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures ........................ (3,078) (24,669) (21,591)
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year ..., 3,980 3,980 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year ... $ 902 $ (20,689) $ (21,591)
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

800MHz Operating-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services........oovvvveninnes $ 328,050 % 329439 % 1,389
Total ReVenues...............ccivi v 328,050 329,439 1,389
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Sheriff

Personal SerVICES. ..o e e 67,114 65,292 1,822

Professional SErVICES. v i i eereeen s e s eee s 103,230 100,113 3,117

Operating expendifures.........cocoooveieerieeeieenn . 123 882 115,753 8,129
Total Expenditures..............ccccooiviviiiininiiiinn, 294,226 281,158 13,068
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.............................. 33,824 48,281 14,457
Other Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers out........ccocoeviiicniiienneens (35,024) (35,024) 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. (35,024) (35,024) 0
Excess (Deficieney) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses..................... (1,200) 13,257 14,457
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year................o 182 182 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.........ccoooviivvciciiiiiiiiiii i $ (1,018) § 13,439  § 14,457
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

County Recorder Equipment Needs-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Total ReVenues. ... v e $ 0 9 0 % 0
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Recorder
Professional SErviCes. .. ...ocooviiiiiiiiiieiniinnenns 136,592 93,030 432 562
Capital outlays...........cooviiiiiii e, 142,038 127,938 14,100
Total Expenditures........cccooviiviiiviiinoio e 278,630 220,968 57,662
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.............cco...... (278,630) (220,968) 57,662
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers in...............n 480,000 576,470 96,470
Operating transfers out........ccocoovvevnovincvnenns (380,957) (380,957) 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ 99,043 195,513 96,470
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses....................... (179,587) (25,455) 154,132
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...........c.ccccooeieviiciniinnn, 815,056 815,056 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year......c..ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiii e, $ 635469 § 789,601 $ 154,132
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Welfare Audit-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for Services.........coovvvinvnenne $ 595,039 % 387,145 § (207,894)
MiSCEllaneous. .......oooveeiiiiiec e 3,124 3,124
Total ReVenUes............c.c...cccceeiiiiiiiiiiii 595,039 390,269 (204,770)

Expenditures.
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Prosecutor
Personal SErVICES......o.vccvvvieviiirersree s eeeesies e e e 413,352 352,109 61,243
Professional services.......oooeviiiieeeiei i 29428 16,720 12,708
Operating expendifures........coveoeoeeeeicneeicnieens . 107,534 104,435 3,099
Capital outlays.......cooovvvvvi i 30,194 30,194 0
Total Expenditures...........c.c.oocivooeoeccociiil 580,508 503,458 77,050
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures...........ccocooioiiin 14,531 (113,189) (127,720)
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers olt.........ocoooeieiiicieeenne, (15,201) (11,600) 3,601
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. (15,201) (11,600) 3,601
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses................... (670) (124,789) (124,119)
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...........ccccoiiiiiii 108,997 108,997 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year..........ccccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e b 108,327 § ° (15792) § (124,119)
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Inspection Services-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Licenses and permits......ccvivovoeiecnieicnieea, $ 235,000 3% 238,235  § 3,235
Miscellaneous. .....cooovveriiiiri e 4810 4,809 (1)
Total ReVeRUES............coooii i 239 810 243,044 3,234
Expenditures:
Current:
Environment and Public Works
Sanitary Engineering
PErsonal SEIVICES. ..uuuieieeres e cieiesssnsnsnsnenrnenenenenes 327,267 279,350 47917
Professional Services....c.cciuiviereienioirinncieeeeenins 19,777 15,366 4,411
Operating expenditures..........covoveerrecrinnnnnnnss: 17,008 9,667 7,341
Capital outlays.......coooovviiiiec 77,377 53,660 23,717
Total Expenditures...........oooiiiiviiinoii 441,429 358,043 83,386
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........_.._..._........ (201,619) (114,999) 86,620
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.........ccccoccoivviinviniic e 189,978 189,978 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year...........c..cccoooiviniiooiieiiiie, 3 (11,641) § 74,979 § 86,620
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

District Planning Fees-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: '
Fees and charges for services.......ocoovveiinin. 1,896,500 $ 1,896,670 $ 170
MISCEllANEOUS. ...oviiiri e 1,450 1,699 249
Total RevVenues................ccoocciiciiieiiiiiiieeneeee 1,897,950 1,898,369 419
Expenditures:
Current: :
Environment and Public Works
Solid Waste Administration
Personal SErVICES.....oivveievirireciererrreerressiieesiee e 399,915 315,410 84,505
Professional Services.......oooieeiiiieeeeieeeeee i 756,075 667,375 88,700
Operating expenditures. ..o, 084,846 832,892 151,954
et SCIVICE. ..veveie et §,000 8,000
Capital outlays........oooovvimvii e 126,077 107,438 18,639
Total Expenditures. ..o 2,274913 1,923,115 351,798
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........................ (376,963) (24,746) 352,217
Other Financing Sources and Uses
Operating transfers out......oooooviiniee o (213,088) (213,051) 37
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses.............. (213,088) (213,051) 37
Excess (Dificiency) of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses.................... (590,051) (237,797) 352,254
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year ..., 2,466,873 2,466,873 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year ..o 1,876,822 § 2229076 § 352,254
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Land(fill Development-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues.

Fecs and charges for services...........ccoo e, $ 1,171,000 § 1,170,923 % (77)
Total ReVenues. ... 1,171,000 1,170,923 (77)
Expenditures:

Current:
Environment and Public Works

Solid Waste Administration

Operating expenditures........cooeevvveinnienvneninnns 1,500,000 235,619 1,264,381
Total Expenditures..............ccooooviiiiiiininann, 1,500,000 235,619 1,264,381
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................... (329,000) 935,304 1,264,304
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.............c.c.ocooiniiioiioininn 2,720,975 2,720,975 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
FEnd Of Yedr.........ocovovioiiiiiiiiiiii $ 2,391,975 3 3,656,279 $ 1,264,304

-117 -




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Day/Mont Courts Building-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for Services........covovvnvnnnene, $ 486,833 3 486,964 % 131
MiscellaneOus. .....covvvivie et 98 98
Total ReVENUES...........cocviiciiiiiiiiiiisise e, 486,833 487,062 229
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Public Works
Personal ServiCes........covvveiiiiiivineeree e 432,345 409,143 23,202
Professional ServiCes.............ovvvvverivreeencrnnenennens 77,634 63,024 14,610
Operating cxpenditures.........covvvvon i, 589,937 553,010 36,927
Capital outlays......ooo 2,771 2,771 0
Total Expenditures...............ccccccocooooviiiiiiiiiiinn, 1,102,687 1,027,948 74,739
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures................................. (615.854) (540,886) 74,968
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers in........ccocooeveiiieiniiieeee 652,946 652,103 (843)
Operating transfers out.......cooovvviiciineinn (86,385) (86,385) 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. 566,561 565,718 (843)
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses..................... (49,293) 24,832 74,125
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...............cccc.ccoioiiieci (21,617) (21,617) 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year............c.coocoiiiiiiiiiiiniene $ (70,910) §% 3215 § 74,125
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Reibold Building-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for services......oovieninine $ 698402 % 698,722 $ 320
MiSCellanEOUS. ....vvi i 2,900 2,977 77
Total Revenues........................ccccccci) 701,302 701,699 397
Expenditures:
Current:
General Governmen!
Public Works
Personal ServiCes......cooiviiiiiiiie e 714,165 657,101 57,064
Professional SErviCes........coceiveieeieiecciceii i 180,234 140,379 39,855
Operating expenditires...........cooeeovvevvirererinnenns 532,540 431,670 100,870
Dbt SEIVICE..iviiiiiiiiirir it 402,420 402,420
Capital OutlayS....occovivriveiereren e 12,636 9,757 2,879
Total Expenditures.................cocooooeoiiii . 1,841,995 1,238,907 603,088
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................... (1,140,693) (537,208) 603,485
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers iM............cocoevveeeeeeeienieennns 700,000 696,630 (3,370)
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ 700,000 696,630 (3,370)
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses....................... (440,693) 159,422 600,115
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...............cccoccivvivnveivisiosancnn, 444,674 444,674 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year........ccoooocviiviioiioiiiiiie e $ 3,981 3 604,096 $ 600,115
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Coroner/Crime Lab Bldg Maint-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgerary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budyget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Total ROVEHUES. ..., $ 0 3 0 9 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Public Works
Personal SEIVICES.. ..o eririva s e einrrre e s 125,899 123,071 2,828
Professional SEIvICES........ocovveiieeiiiviereee e 55,674 52,540 3,134
Operating expenditurcs..........cooevverenencnnceeen, 99,456 97,587 1,869
Capital outlays.........ccocoiiiii 1,395 1,395 0
Total Expenditures..................................... 282,424 274,593 7,831
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.............ccccocc...... (282.,424) (274,593) 7,831
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers ..o, 255,785 270,973 15,188
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. 255,785 270,973 15,188
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses....................... (26,639) (3,620) 23,019
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year............................... 9,143 9,143 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year..........c.oooiiiiiiii $ (17,496) § 5,523 % 23,019
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Stillwater Center Contract-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorahle
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services......ooovvvevevvvvveenennn. 503,456 % 503,451 3 (5)
Total ReVenues............ccooooiooociiiiiiiiiii 503,456 503,451 (5)
Expenditures:

Current:
Social Services

Public Works

Personal SeIviCes....ccomiviriiniii e see e 488,888 479,779 9,109

Professional SErVICES...oov i ieevreee e enieens 15,258 12,675 2,583

Operating expenditures...........ooovniiininienn, 5,770 2,680 3,090

Capital Outlays.....covvvreriieiieri i 1,000 900 100
Total EXpenditures..........cccoociiciiiiiiiii, 510,916 496,034 14,882
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures................................ (7,460) 7,417 14,877
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...............coococooiiiiniiiciinin o, 0 0 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
ERd OF YeQr......coocveiiiiiiiiiiveiieiee s (7.460) $§ 7417  $ 14,877
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Children Services Board Contract-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budyget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fces and charges for services.........oooooineenn $ 212,800 $ 212,800 A 0
Total Revenues.......................c....c..... 212,800 212,800 0
Expenditures:

Current:
Social Services

Public Works

Personal SEIVICES...coiiviieeieerieiieeee e e eseseririrenen e e 103,321 101,796 1,525

Professional ServiCes...iiiiiiieieeieriee e e e 121,713 117,594 4,119

Operating expendifires..........cocoeiiieiiciicienns 19,031 14,891 4,140
Total Expenditures..........cococoiiiiiiiiiiii 244,065 234,281 9,784
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................ (31,265) (21,481) 9,784
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...................oocoiviii 0 0 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year............... $ (31,265) % (21,481) § 9,784
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, CHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Clerk of Courts Certificate of Title Admin.-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 3/, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budyget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for services................oove, $ 2,670,500 $ 2,673,919 hY 3419
Miscellaneous.........c.oovvieiiiiiieiiiie e seaia 35,800 22,739 (13,061)
TOUA] ROVEHUECS.......ooeeeee e 2,706,300 2,696,658 (9,642)
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Clerk of Courts
Personal ServiCes.......ovvieviriivininnire s e, 1,677,014 1,360,321 316,693
Professional ServiCes......ooovvoiieieeeeeee e 101,739 70,681 31,058
Operating expendifures...........ccooveeeeevecieiniennen, 200,717 167,503 39,214
Debl SEIVICE..uviiiiiiiiiiieeee e 1,738 1,474 264
Capital outlays.....cooov i, 124,300 40,398 83,902
Total EXpenditures..............c.ccocoeiiiciiiii 2,111,508 1,640,377 471,131
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.......................... 594,792 1,056,281 461,489
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year....................ccoeiinninn, 872,908 872,908 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.......ccoooeociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie o § 1,467,700 $ 1,929,180 § 461,489




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Montg Co Auto License Bureau-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges for services........ococeniiniiinns $ 115,526 3 115,526 i 0
Miscellancous. ..o e 62 62 0
Total Revenues...............................ccociciiiiiinn, 115,588 115,588 0
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Auditor
Personal SETVICES.....ovvviiiiviiiiiireeee e ciiriier e e escinees 121,592 116,753 4,839
Professional SEervices.....ooooivv v 2,200 204 1,996
Operating expenditures.................ocoovir e, 14,175 12,882 1,293
Total Expenditures.....................cc..coiviiein.. 137,967 129,839 8,128
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures...................c...c......... (22,379) (14,251) 8,128
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...................cccoccooiiiiiiiin, 12,423 12,423 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year............coociiiiiiiii $ (9,956) % (1,828) % 8,128
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Domestic Relations Legal Research Fees-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for seIvices.......ooovvrveninnnnnn, 12,000  § 11,485 % (515)
Total Revenues. ... 12,000 11,485 (515)
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Domestic Relations Court

Professional SEIVICES. ..o iieininrrrresnrerereeeaeans 8,554 4,677 3,877
Total Expenditures...........c.cccoooiiiiiiiiiainn, 8,554 4,677 3,877
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures..................co.......... 3,446 6,808 3,362
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year..................................... 3,544 8,544 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year........cocooiiiiiioiiiiiiiiic e, 11,990 § 15352 § 3,362
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Domestic Relations Automation Fees-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services.....oooovvvivvvciennnnn, $ 50,000 % 51,396 § 1,396
Total ReVenues...............cccoceeeeiiieiieeiiieeeei . 50,000 51,396 1,396
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Damestic Relations Court

Personal SEIVICES.....oovvvviriirriire e eee e 11,923 10,833 1,090

Professional Services.............ocooiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee 20,329 20,172 157

Operating expendifures..........c.ciiiinnn, 6,946 5,045 1,901

Capital outlays........ocooovviiini e, 30,679 25,731 4,948
Total Expenditures.......cccoooiviiiiiiiiiii, 69,877 61,781 8,096
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.............................. (19,877) (10,385) 9,492
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year................cooooioiii 80,491 80,491 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year. ... $ 60,614 % 70,106 % 9,492

- 126 -



MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Probate Court Legal Research Fees-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services.......o.ocovvvevecinnannn, b 14,000 & 13,275  § (725)
Total Revenues...........co.ooo.oiio ... 14,000 13,275 (725)
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Probate Court

Professional ServiCes. ..o vvirarerneerorcinsieninnnnnn. 6,000 1,500 4,500
Total Expenditures ... 6,000 1,500 4,500
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures...................c...c..o..... 8,000 11,775 3,775
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...........c...coocvviiiiiiviieien 40,630 40,630 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
ERA OF Yer......oovooveoeoeeeeoeeeeeeeeeereeoeeeo $ 48,630 $ 52,405 % 3,775
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Probate Court Automation Fees-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services.......ocvvvvvvevreeiennn, 80,700 % 78,899 % (1,801)
Total Revenues......................c.oooo._.. 80,700 78,899 (1,801)
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Probate Court

Capital outlays........ccooeoivinriiniiciiiiii s 37,000 37,000 0
Total Expenditures.............................. 37,000 37,000 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures..................ccocioon 43,700 41,899 (1,801)
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.............c..c.coooviiiiiiii 165,756 165,756 0
Fund Bulance (Deficit) At
ENA Of YeQF...o..oooeveooeeeeeoeoeeeeeoeeeeeeeee 209456 $ 207,655  $  (1,801)
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Common Pleas Court Legal Research Fees-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services.......ooooviiiene 22,000 % 43471 % 21,471
Total Revenues................cccoeee i 22.000 43471 21471
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Common Pleas Court

Professional Services. ..o 170 170

Operating expenditures. ..o, 3,759 3,088 671

Capital outlays.......coooveiviiinii e 45,229 44,663 566
Total Expenditures................................ 49,158 47,751 1,407
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.............c..ccccocoo. (27,158) (4,280) 22,878
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.............c.cociiiiiiiiii 68,382 68.382 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year ... 41,224 % 64,102 % 22,878
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Common Pleas Court Automation Fees-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorahle)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services.......ccoviiiiinnnnn. h) 115,000 108,942 % (6,058)
Total REVERUES................cc.ccoeiiiiii i 115,000 108,942 (6,058)
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Common Pleas Court

Personal SEIVICES.....oviviviiriiee et 24.208 21,665 2,543

Professional SEIVICES........cuvvvirieecieiie s 48,488 39,158 9,330

Operating expenditures.. ... 7,011 5,193 1,818

Capital outlays.........cooovoeniieii e 143,571 101,128 42,443
Total Expenditures....................coiiiiiiininn 223,278 167,144 56,134
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........................... (108,278) (58,202) 50,076
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year ... 281,385 281,385 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year ... $ 173,107 223,183 % 50,076




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Juvenile Court Legal Research Fees-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services........o.cocvvvevvvvnnnn, 16,000 § 18,379 § 2,379
Total ReVeRUEs. ..........cvvevenrsne 16,000 18,379 2,379
Expenditures.

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Juvenile Court

Professional Services. ......oooovvieeeeeeiciieeeeeiee e 15,977 7,038 8,939
Total Expenditures. ..., 15,977 7,038 8,939
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.....................cc......... 23 11,341 11,318
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year..............cc.ccccooiiiiiii, 50,340 50,340 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year..........i 50,363  § 61,681 $ 11,318
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Juvenile Court Detention Ctr Education-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

MiSCelan@ous. ....ccoevvieevecriire oo 3 173,957 % 173,014  § (943)
Total ReVenues. ... i 173,957 173,014 (943)
Expenditures:

Current;
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Juvenile Court

Personal SEIVICES. ...oiciivieiiieeeecicieeie e e 363,295 251,063 112,232

Professional ServiCes...cc.ooiiiiriciee i 1,010 117 893

Operating expenditures..........c.ocoeerinmnreen e 24,877 18,993 5,884

Capital outlays.........cooooiimiiii 25,000 22,135 2,865
Total EXpenditures. ... 414,182 292 308 121,874
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures..............cccooo (240,225) (119,294) 120,931
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year........................ 192,435 192,435 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiii, $ (47,790) % 73,141  § 120,931
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

District Courts Legal Research Fees-Special Revenue Fund

{Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorahle
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fecs and charges for services......oovvvvvnrvviininnnn. $ 45,000 $ 62,135 $ 17,135
Total ReVENUES. .. ........cccciiiiiiii e, 45,000 62,135 17,135
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
District Courts

Professional ServICes.......ovvieveeieieiieeeiiienee e eeennens 11,220 9,270 1,950

Operating expenditures. ..., 8,800 8,483 317

Capital outlays......ccooovvvivrvinii, 28,872 21,277 7,595
Total EXpenditures. ... 48,892 39.030 9,862
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........................ (3,892) 23,105 26,997
Other Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers ..., 587 587
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. 0 587 587
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses..................... (3,892) 23,692 27,584
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year............cooiiiiiiii 144,192 144,192 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year......ooc.ooo oo $ 140,300 $ 167,884 $ 27,584




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

District Courts Automation Fees-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budygetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services..........ocooovinnnne $ 77000 % 110,026 § 33,026
Total ROVERUCS.........c..cciiiii i 77,000 110,026 33,026
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

District Courts

Professional services.........cccccoeiiiiiniceieceiiiieeeen, 6,508 2,710 3,798

Operating expenditures..........ccoooeveriinineecinennn,s 10,000 7,204 2,796

Capital outlays.....covveoveerieiiin e 15,423 12,826 2,597
Total EXpenditures. ... 31,931 22,740 9,191
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................... 45,069 87,286 42217
Other Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers iN...........coocovvvvrcirveecveoe oo 733 733

Operating transfers out.............ccooeiiiiii (46,326) (46,326) 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. (46,326) (45,593) 733
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses....................... (1,257) 41,693 42,950
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.........coccoovvviivieiiiiiiirciinn 65,934 65,934 0
Fund Bualance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.........ccocoiiiiiiiiiiiii e, $ 64,677 § 107,627 % 42,950
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
District Courts Operation-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fees and charges fOr services......ovvnvenernennnn, 8§ 126,135 % 129410 % 3,275
Miscellaneous. .......cooeeirieriiei e 30 30
Total ReVENUES.........ccc.ooiiiiii e 126,135 129,440 3,305
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement
District Courts
Total Expenditures..........cccoooiiiiiiiiiin s, 0 0 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.........cocoooooin 126,135 129,440 3,305
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers oule......oo i, (26,135) (26,135) 0
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ (26,135) (26,135) 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses....................... 100,000 103,305 3,305
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year......................... 11,743 11,743 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year........coocoooooiviiiioie oo b 111,743 b 115048 % 3,305




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

DETAC-Prosecutor-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Property taXe8...coovevinirinierreeeie oo eie e $ 450,000 § 527,063 § 77,063
Total Revenues.................. ... 450,000 527,003 77,063
Expenditures:

Current:
Judcial and Law Enforcement

Prosecutor

Personal servICes........vvi 229,620 183,767 45,853

Professional SCIVICES. .. ..o verermrerceenrrermnmnnrerenene 134,000 37,993 96,007

Operating expenditures............ccooooiiiiinnn 24,765 12,830 11,935

Capital outlays........oooeoeiniii 10,000 10,000
Total Expenditures..........ooccoiiiiiinon o 308,385 234,590 163,795
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........... 51,615 292,473 240,858
Other Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers out..............nnnnan, (7,500) (7,500) 0
Total Qther Financing Sources And Uses............. (7,500) (7,500) 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses....................... 44,115 284,973 240,858
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...................cooiiiiiiiniennn, 930,326 930,326 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year..........coooioiiiiieiiiiiiic e $ 974,441 $ 1215299 § 240,858
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

DETAC-Treasurer-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Property taxes......coovorireeiece e by 443167 % 501,240 § 58,073
Total Revenues............ccccooooiiiiiiiiiii, 443,167 501,240 58,073
Expenditures:

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Treasurer

Personal services. . v miaiaieie e 347,097 333,792 13,305

Professional SErvICES.......oovvvivievrve v ennines 97,345 46,858 50,487

Operating expendiures. ... 12,475 5,909 6,566

Capital outlays.........coooooiiiiiiii 30,316 30,314 2
Total EXpenditures...................c...cccoocooviiain, 487,233 416,873 70,360
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures................c..ocooiui.., (44,066) 84,367 128,433
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year........c..ccoccviieiiiiiniiicinin, 640,741 640,741 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year.....c.ccooooviioiiiiiiiici e h) 596,675 % 725,108 & 128,433




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Treasurer's Prepayment Interest-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:

INVESTMENt INCOMIE ... ...vvrireseiersesreeiaesrrasnee e $ 204970 % 202,477 % (2,493)
Total Revenues............ ... .. 204,970 202,477 (2,493)
Expenditures:

Current:
General Government

Treasurer

Personal SETVICES.....covvieerieeeeeier e e ree e 65,941 50,988 5,953

Professional SEIVICES.......oivvvivvvieiiieeriee e 38,544 36,640 1,904

Operating expenditures................cc.coo. e 630 81 549

Capital outlays......ocoooiiiii 3,150 3,146 4
Total EXpenditures...............ccccocooiiviiiiiiii, 108,265 99,855 8410
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................ 96,705 102,622 5,917
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...........cccooiiiiiini 61,919 61,919 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year......................... $ 158,624 % 164,541 $ 5,917
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

General Fund Incentive-to-Save Program-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TOtal REVERUECS. ..o, $ 0 % 0 3 0
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Non-Departmental
Total Expenditures.........cccocoioiiiiiiin 0 0 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over ExpenditureS..........ocooooiieinns, 0 0 0
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers in..........coceviiicciieeee 1,270,484 1,321,930 51,446
Operating transfers out.........ccoeceeevereniincenens (1,554,305) (1,554,301) 4
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses.......... (283,821) (232,371) 51,450
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses.................. (283,821) (232,371) 51,450
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year............iiiiii 2,012,241 2,012,241 0
Fund Balunce (Deficit) At
End Of Year......cccccoooiiiiiiiiiii $ 1,728420 % 1,779870 § 51,450
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

County Prosecutor Victim Witness-Special Revenue Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Miscellaneous. .......ooveericiiiiciricr e, 65§ 1,090 § 725
Total Revenues. ..., 365 1,090 725
Expenditures.

Current:
Judicial and Law Enforcement

Prosecutor

Operating expenditurcs........occcvvccinnniiniene e, 365 154 211
Total Expenditures.......coooiiiiiiiiii, 365 154 211
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.............................. 0 936 936
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...................ooiii 0 0 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year...........cccccoooiiiiiviiiiiii 0 3 936 § 936
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Job Center-Special Revenue Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: '
Fees and charges for Services. ..o, $ 2,103,935 % 2103935 % 0
MisceHancous. ..o 207,239 207,239 0
Total RCVEIUES . ..cieeeii e 2,311,174 2,311,174 0
Expendirtures:
Current:
Human Services
Job Center
Personal SErVICES..ooiovv e 144,808 138,542 6,266
Professional SerVICES. ... .oovvieievieerccer e crree e 73,222 56,889 16,333
Operating expendifures..........cooovvvivniinn 2,555,726 2,479,373 76,353
Capital outlays.....ooooveveviie e, 51,623 20,432 31,191
Total Expenditures...................ccccccoooiiiiiiii, 2,825,379 2,695,236 130,143
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures.......................... (514.205) (384.062) 130,143
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers out........cocovovivnirnnn (660,000) (554,634) 105,366
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............ (660,000) (554,634) 105,366
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses....................... (1,174,205) (938,696) 235,509
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year................c.cccciiiiiii o, 2,322,157 2,322,157 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End OF Year...........ccoocoiiiii i $ 1147952 $ 1,383,461 § 235,509
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Debt Service Funds

These funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal
and interest on debt reported in the General Long-term Debt Account Group.

Road Assessment
Debt Service

To account for the accumulation of Road Assessments charged to the bencefitted property
owners for, and the payment of, principal and interest on special asscssment bonds
reported 1n the County's General Long-term Debt Account Group.

Water and Sewer
Assessment Debt
Service

To account for the accumulation of Water and Sewer Assessments charged to the benefitted
property owners for, and the payment of, principal and interest on special assessment bonds
reported in the County's General Long-term Debt Account Group.

Engineer’s
Maintenance Facility
Debt Service

To account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal and
intcrest on general obligation bonds issued to finance the Engineer's Maintenance Facility
and reported in the County's General Long-term Debt Account Group.

Various Purpose
Facility Improvement
Debt Service

To account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal and
interest on general obligation bonds issued to finance various facility improvements
and reported in the County's General Long-term Debt Account Group.

Reibold Building
Debt Service

To account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal and
interest on general obligation bonds issued to finance Reibold Building improvements
and reported in the County's General Long-term Debt Account Group.

Children Services
Building Debt
Service

To account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal and
interest on general obligation bonds issued to finance a new Children Services Bulding
and reported in the County's General Long-term Debt Account Group. This fund was
not appropriated for 1999 and had no disbursements during the year.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Balance Sheet
All Debt Service Funds

December 31, 1999

Water Engineer's
Road and Sewer Maintenance
Assessment Assessment Facility
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents............cccocoooevivvs hY 55,282 2,002,498 $ 2
Cash and cash equivalents--
segregated ACCOUDMS.....ot it 15,422 857
Special assessments receivable...................nnn 435,393 1,228 471
TORAL ASSELS. ... oo h) 506,097 3,231,826 $ 2
Liabilities
Accounts payable.........ooooooi hY 1,956 $
Deferred revenuUe. ... 435,393 1,228,471
Matured general obligation bonds..........ccccoovneniniiiinnn
Matured special assessment bonds........oooveveiieiiiieieee 15,000
Matured special assessment bond interest...........coooeeeieiennn, 422 857
Total Liabilities. ...t 450,815 1,231,284 0
Fund Balances
Reserved for debt SCIVICE. ... 55,282 2,000,542 2
TOL] EQUITY.......oooeoo oo 55,282 2,000,542 2
Total Liabilities And Equity................cccooiiin, $ 506,097 3,231,826 $ 2
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Various

Purpose Children
Facility Reibold Services
Improvement Building Building
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Totals

3 709,176 1,192,597 % 38,350 3,997,905

10,000 26,279

1,663,864

3 719,176 1,192,597 § 38,350 5,688,048

$ 1,956

1,663,864

10,000 10,000

15,000

1,279

10,000 0 0 1,692,099

709,176 1,192,597 38,350 3,995,949

709,176 1,192,597 38,350 3,995,949

b 719,176 1,192,597 § 38,350 5,688,048
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in I'und Balances
All Debt Service Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Water Engineer's
Road and Sewer Maintenance
Assessment Assessment Facility
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service

Revenues:

Special aS5ESSMEILS. .. couirrvrreiiiiiiii i 3 234,121 $ 171,577 $

MiSCEHANEOUS. ....cviiiiiiiiti et 113 571
TOIA] REVENUES. ... e 234,234 172,148 0
Expenditures:
Debt service:

Principal retirement. ... 306,100 113,128 300,000

Interest and fiscal charges.....ooocoovivv i 39,110 77,499 43,750
Total EXpen@itires..........ccocoiuiviiiiiii i 345,210 190,627 343,750
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over Expenditures...................cccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiniiisiiieeie i (110,976) (18,479) (343,750)
Other Financing Sources And Uses

Operating transfers ..o e e 343,750
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses...................... 0 0 343,750
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses.............c..coeiiiiiiieiviiinnns (110,976) (18,479) 0
Fund Balance (Deficit)
At Beginning Of Yedr............ocoooiiiiiiiii i 166,258 2,019,021 2
Fund Balance (Deficit) _
At End Of Year.......cccocooiiiiiiiiiiiiiici e, b 55,282  § 2,000,542  § 2
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Various

Purpose Children
Facility Reibold Services
Improvement Building Building
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Totals
b $ 405,698
38,350 39,034
0 0 38,350 444 732
775,000 210,000 1,704,228
1,224,164 192,420 1,576,943
1,999,164 402,420 0 3,281,171
(1,999,164) (402,420) 38,350 (2,836,439)
1,997,163 2,340,913
1,997,163 0 0 2,340,913
(2,001) (402,420) 38,350 (495,526)
711,177 1,595,017 0 4,491,475
709,176 3 1,192,597 38,350 § 3,995,949
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Road Assessment Debt Service
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Special aSSESSIMENTS......ovvv oo $ 236,686  § 234,121 $ (2,565)
MisceHaneous. ....ooooeoereeiere e 113 113 0
TOtal ROVEHUES.........cooi oo, 236,799 234,234 (2,565)

Expenditures:
Debt Service:
Principal retirement. ... 306,100 306,100 0
Interest and fiscal charges. ... 40,829 40,077 752
Total Expenditures. ..o 346,929 346,177 752
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures....................... (110,130) (111,943) (1,813)
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year...........c.cccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiin, 167,225 167,225 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year....ocoiiiiiiiiee e $ 57,095 § 55282 % (1,813)
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Water and Sewer Assessment Debt Service
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Special a88ESSMENLS. .. .cooviviiiviriririeirininserieanns 3 136,669  § 171,577 % 34 908
MIiSCellanEouS. ..o e 571 571 0
Tl ROVEAUES. ... oo, 137,240 172,148 34,908
Expenditures:
Debt Service:
Principal retitement. ... 113,128 113,128 0
Interest and fiscal charges......cocoocviienninin 77,840 77,459 381
Total Expenditures........ccoooovviiioooiiii 190,968 190),587 381
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........................... (53,728) (18,439) 35,289
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year.....................ie 2,020,937 2,020,937 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year ..., $ 1967209 $ 2002498 § 35,289
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Engineer's Maintenance Facility Debt Service
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Total ReVENUES..........c.cccociiiiiiiiiiiiii h) 0 3 0 % 0
Expenditures:
Debt Service:
Principal retirCment....o.ooovvviveeieiiceece e 300,000 300,000 0
Interest and fiscal charges.........coovii 43,751 43 750 1
Total Expenditures ..o 343,751 343,750 1
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures...........ccovviins, (343,751) (343,750) 1
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers in.........ocoooeeiiiiiieen 343,751 343,750 (1
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses.........._.. 343,751 343,750 (1)
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses...................... 0 0 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year......................... 2 2 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year..........coooov oo $ 2 0% 2 3 0
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Various Purpose Facility Improvements Debt Service
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Total Revenues. ..., $ 0 3 0 % 0
Expenditures:
Debt Service:
Principal retitement........c.ocoovviriinineiicceec 775,000 775,000 0
Interest and fiscal charges. ..o 1,224,165 1,224,163 2
Total Expenditures.....ooiiie 1,999 165 1,999,163 2
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures............................. (1,999,165) (1,999,163) 2
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Operating transfers ... 1,997,165 1,997,163 (2)
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses............. 1,997,165 1,997,163 (2)
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses................. (2,000) (2,000) 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year................................. 711,176 711,176 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End Of Year................ccoi.. 3 709,176  $ 709,176 % 0
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Reibold Building Debt Service

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Total ReVeRUES. ..o $ 0 0 3 0
Expenditures:
Debt Service:
Principal retirement...............cooioiiinns 210,000 210,000 0
Interest and fiscal charges.......cooevevvvveevvnenen, 192,422 192,420 2
Total ExpendituresS.......ccoooo 402,422 402,420 2
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenditures........................_. (402,422) (402,420) 2
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
Beginning Of Year ... 1,595,017 1,595,017 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) At
End OF Year.........c...ooovmeeiiiiiiiiiii $ 1,192,595 1,192,597 § 2
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities or improvements (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds).

Public Works

This fund accounts for a variety of renovation and new construction projects at

Capita/ various County facilities which are overseen by the County's Public Works Department.
C(Ipi[(ll The Capital Improvement Fund finances a large variety of capital needs for the County.
Improvement Its primary source of revenuc is the General Fund.

Board Of This fund was pursuant to state law, and has been authorized by the County

Mental Retardation Commissioners to account for ongoing, significant capital needs of the Board
Capital Fund of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities, which also provides its tunding,
Road Assessment This fund accounts for the financing and construction of road improvemnent assessment
Projects projects which will eventually be funded through special levies against the property

owners who benefit.

Water and Sewer
Assessment Projects

To account [or the financing and construction of water and sewer asscssment projects,
the resulting capital assets of which will be capitalized in the respective Enterprise

Fund with an offset to contributed capital.

County Engineer
Issue 2 Projects

To account for road and bridge construction projects which are partially funded by grants

trom the Ohio Public Works Commission, pursuant to Auditor of State specifications.

County Engineer
Federal Aid Projects

To account for road projects which are partially funded by the federal state and community

highway safety program and received through the State Department of ‘Transportation.

800 MHz Capital
Replacement

This fund was crealed to account for the eventual replacement of the County's 800 MHz radio
communication system. Its funding 10 date is attributed to transfers-in from the 800 MHz Operating

Special Revenue Fund.

Data Processing
Capital

This fund accounts for capital outlays associated with a variety of general government automated

system upgrades throughout the County as well as the County's Justice Information System.

Insurance Safety Capital

This fund was created as a mechanism to identify and fund safcty-rclated capital projects on an ongoing basis.

The County provides funding to this capital fund from the General Fund, based on annual premium savings

realized as a resull of implemented safety programs.




MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Balance Sheet
All Capital Projects Funds

December 31, 1999

Board of
Public Mental Road
Works Capital Retardation Assessment
Capital Improvement Capital Fund Projects
Assels
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents.......... 3 47,026,706 % 3,363,909 % 754,793 % 761,696
Due from other governements.......................
Total ASSEIS ..ot $ 47,026,706 ¥ 3,363,909 % 754,793 % 761,696
Liabilities
Accounts payable........c.oiiiii e h) 4,111.474 3 90,096 § 13,712 § 2,089
Due to other funds.........coceevviineiin s 4,326
Accrued wages and benefits........ooooovin 1,272
Total Liabilities......ccocoviiviiviisiocaeoiaiiiiiciiin 4,117,072 90,096 13,712 2,089
Fund Balances
Reserved for encumbrances.........ccooceveeeriecneenn. 22,599,872 734,131 235,659
Unreserved/undesignated...........ccoovveciinnnnnn, 20,309,762 2,539,682 505,422 759,607
TOtGl EQUITY......oooviiviiei e, 42,909,634 3,273 813 741,081 759,607
Total Liabilities And Equity........................ b 47,026,706 $ 3,363,909 % 754,793 % 761,696




Water County County
and Sewer Engincer Engineer 800 MH:z Data Insurance
Assessment Issue 2 Federal Aid Capital Processing Safety
Projects Projects Projects Replacement Capital Capital Totals

38,346 i) ¥ 274,842 % 7,737,664 3 997,067 60,955,023
435,000 435,000
38,346 03 03 274,842 § 8,172,664 3 997,067 61,390,023
$ 1,115 § 3 1,472,471 % 133,596 5,824,553
1,292 5,618
1,272
0 0 1,115 0 1,473,763 133,596 5,831,443
28,943 587,764 17,273 2,729,509 77,995 27,011,146
9,403 (587,764) (18,388) 274 842 3,969,392 785,476 28,547,434
38,346 0 (1,115) 274,842 6,698,901 803,471 55,558,580
38,346 0% 0% 274842 § 8,172,664 % 997,067 61,390,023
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Statement of Revenues,
FExpenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
All Capital Projects Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Board of
Public Mental Road
Works Retardation Assessment
Capital Improvement Capital Fund Projects
Revenues:
Fees and charges for services..................... 3 33,570
Special assessSmEnts. . ....ovvoiiiieeieieeceen 64,497
Intergovernmental............ccoooiii 147,275 150,000
Miscellaneous..........vveierrierer e 2,973,574
Total Revenues....................ocoiiiiiiiaae. 3,154,419 150,000 64,497
Expenditures:
Capital outlay.......cooovveiierecr e, 22,118,983 1,095,130 4,126
Total Expenditures..............coccooveriiannni, 22,118,983 1,095,130 4,126
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over ExpenditUres..........ccooecececeiii (18,964,564) (945,130) 60,371
Other Financing Sources And Uses
Proceeds of bonds........ccvvvevvveiciiniiinne, . 12,800,000 40,000
Operating transfers M........ccooovvvvivimiiinen, 14,589,898 155,000
Operating transfers oul.........cooovvvnviiiennnns
Total Other Financing Sources And Uses....... 27,389,898 155,000 40,000
Fxcess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures And Other Uses................ 8,425,334 (790,120) 100,371
Fund Balance (Deficit)
At Beginning Of Year ... 34,484,300 1,531,211 659,236
Fund Balance (Deficit)
AtEnd Of Year..........ocoovooeioil $ 42,909,634 741,081 759,607




Water County County
and Sewer Engineer Engineer 800 MH: Data Insurance
Assessment Issue 2 Federal Aid Capital Processing Safety
Projects Projects Projects Replacement Capital Capital Totals
$ $ $ $ $ i 33,570
64,497
370,350 205,600 809,375 1,732,000
5,080 2,978,654
0 370,350 205,600 0 809,375 5,080 4,808,721
9,271 370,350 206,715 4,771,340 145,525 29,960,357
9,271 370,350 206,715 0 4,771,340 145,525 29,960,357
(9,271) 0 (1,115) 0 (3,961,965) (140,445) (25,151,636)
185,000 13,025,000
35,024 924,648 16,362,387
(865,474)
185,000 0 0 35,024 924,648 0 28,521,913
175,729 0 (1,115) 35,024 (3,037.317) (140,445) 3,370,277
(137,383) 0 0 239,818 9,736,218 1,003,916 52,188,303
$ 38,346 h) 0 (1,115) $ 274,842 3 6,698,901 h) 863.471 $ 55,558,580
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. The intent of the County is that the costs of providing services o the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Water The County Sanitary Engineer provides water to residential, commercial and industrial
customers. Revenue generated through user charges is used for the operation, maintenance
and capital improvement of the water distribution system.

Wastewater The County provides sanitary sewer service to residential, commercial and industrial
users also serviced by the water system. Wastewater charges are based on water usage and
serve as the major revenue source for financing the operations and maintenance of the
wastcwater system.

Solid Waste This fund is used to account for the financial operations of the County's solid waste
Management removal and disposal activities.
Parking Facilities This fund is used to account for the revenue carned and expenses incurred in operating

both an underground parking garage and an outside parking garage. The facilities scrve both
County employees and the general public.

Stillwater Center Stillwater Center is a skilled nursing care facility for the mentally retarded and devel-
opmentally disabled. Sources of revenue include Medicaid funding, as well as a County
subsidy from the Human Services Levy Fund.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Balance Sheet
All Enterprise Funds

December 31, 1999

Solid
Waste
Water Wastewater Management
Assets
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents............ $ 19,516,856 14,250,325 22,454,164
Cash and cash equivalents--segregated accounts............co.oooee
Net receivables:
ANCCOUIITS. .+ oeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e eeeeesaeesemsbeearmareeeaannree s e b besseanreas 7,737,885 7,934.910 2,389,475
ACCIUEA INECTES . e eneeeieeecieeeceeeeeee e et teeete e e e s s s e srie e 429,474 137,331 85,253
TOLAl FECCIVABIES. ... ... oot 8,167,359 8,072,241 2,474,728
Due from Other TURAS.....oe e e ribaisae e 33,769 218,853 258,430
Due from other SOVErIIMENTS. ......cooviviiae i 341,482 846,647
Inventory of SUPPLEs. .....ccoov v 185,641 727,500 58,353
TOtal CUFFERE (SSEIS. ... oot 27,923,625 23,610,401 26,092,322
Restricted Assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents............ 37,902,890 26,883,042
Cash and cash equivalents--segregated accounts...................... 7,577,480 1,613,699 11,217,838
Investments--segregated aCCOUTS.......oovvviriiiiiiicnn e 3,625,419 7,347,692
Total reStricted ASSEIS. .. ... e 45 480,370 32,122,160 18,565,530
Fixed assets in service:
Y TG U U UV RO T UTUP PP 1,068,887 2,478,556 1,700,291
Land iMprovements...........oocoooioiiininiiannane e 90,076 42,278 572,172
Utality plant in SETVICE.......oiiiminiiiicn s 113,909,205 157,293,177
Buildings, structures and Improvements. ... 4,141,338 90,565,926 12,640,674
Fumniture, fixtures and equIPMENt.........ccoocvriiriorirenrenesiins 2,617,452 4,166,139 5,243,819
Less:Accumulated depreciation.. ... (59,549,583) (119,491,608) (9,494,737)
Construction-IN-PrOFIESS. ... c..vimiieeieeieeeeeeiee e e, 35,005,483 49,261,870 25,587,066
Total net fixed assers..................iiiiiiio i 97,282,858 184,316,338 36,249,285
TOLAL ASSEIS. o oo $ 170,686,853 240,048,899 80,907,137
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(Cont'd.)

Parking Stillwater
Facilities Center Totals
3 732,887 1,899,066 58,853,298
500 500
15,299 655,189 18,732,758
652,058
15,299 655,189 19,384,816
13,021 544,073
1,188,129
0 41,841 1,013,335
761,207 2,596,590 80,984,151
376,291 4,860,904 70,023,127
25,000 20,434,017
10,973,111
401,291 4,860,904 101,430,255
1,300,000 460,779 7,008,513
704,526
271,202,382
7,274,584 4 691 445 119,313,967
34,091 362,999 12,424,500
(2,032,227) (3,681,311) (194,249 466)
109,854,419
6,576,448 1,833,912 326,258,841
$ 7,738,946 9,291,412 508,673,247
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Balance Sheet
All Enterprise Funds (Cont'd.)

December 31,

1999

Solid
Waste
Water Wastewater Management
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

AcCcounts payable. ... by 237,052 467,821 2,812,207

Duae 10 other fUndS......ovv i 151,642 269,492 405,312

Due to other governments........................... et 8,833,612 3,477,458

Accrued wages and benefits..............nnnnnnn 629,189 659,875 444,968

Current portion of long-term notes.........cocoviiiiiinne, 27,375 1,384,941

Current portion of gencral obligation bonds...........coooveine. 155,305 1,345,000

Accrued interest on general obligation bonds..............ccoces 26,449 258,353

Current portion of capitalized leases............c.occoeviiiiiiiinicns 843 1,281
Total current Labilities. ...........coooiiviii e e 10,061,467 7,864,221 3,662,487
Current liabilities payable from restricted assests:

Matured revenue bonds..........co.ooeoriiinisicn e 20,000

Matured revenue bond Intercst.........oooeevciieeeee e, 44,019

Accrued revenue bond INtErest .. ..o 373,005 226,762 462,984

Current portion of revenue bonds................ooo 1,675,000 1,340,000 3,820,000

Matured general obligation bonds.........coevevvevvvveeciiiiiinreee 30,000

ConStruCTION CONTIACES. .o viivir it eeveiiaiiaeaeesvanirserarasaraaaeanenes. 558,041 644,685 44 018

OTHET .. ettt st s eae s 64 137,926 1,942
Total current liabilities

payable from restricted dSSets. ... 2,606,110 2,379,373 4,392,963
Long-term liabilities:

(net of current portions)

LONE-TeTIN OIS ... vecvereieiere ettt er s e e e see s 410,625 32,115,786

Revenue bonds.........c.ccocociiiiiiiiic e 49,145,000 14,620,033 49,475,000

Less: Unamortized revenue bond charges.......ooooeveevevieeveennnen: (2,943,890) (2,354,247) (3,126,870)

General obligation bonds.........cccoveviveiiievein i 3,064,057 28,805,000

Less: Unamortized general obligation bond charges................ (63,159) (685,265)

Estimated liability for landfill post-closure costs ...................... 730,160
Total long-term Habilities.....................ceioiiiiiiii, 49,612,633 72,501,307 47,078,284
Total Liabilities ... 62,280,210 82,744,901 55,133,734
Contributed Capital and Retained Earnings

Contributed capital..........coooveiiiiiie e 83,508,260 167,497,854 3,366,863

Retained earnings:

Reserved for restrictod assCts.......oiviivieviveviriiieieee e ee e 42,874,260 29,742,787 14,172,567
UNIeserved.. ..ot e (17,975,877) (39,936,643) 8,233,973
TOU] EQUITY......o oo 108,406,643 157,303,998 25,773,403
Total Liabilities And EqQuity...............c.cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiin 170,686,853 240,048,899 80,907,137
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Parking Stillwater
Facilities Center Totals

4 385 142,747 3,664,212

704 193,073 1,020,223
95,212 12,406,282

5,867 622,451 2,362,350
1,412,316

270,000 1,770,305
76,585 361,387
2,124

357,541 1,053,483 22,999,199
20,000

44,019

1,062,751

6,835,000

25,000 55,000
1,246,744

98 140,030

25,000 98 9,403,544
32,526,411

113,240,033
(8,425,013)

4,015,000 35,884,057
(303,159) (1,051,583)
730,160

3,711,841 0 172,904,065
4,094,382 1,053,581 205,306,808
254,372,977

376,291 4,860,806 92,026,711
3,268,273 3,377,025 (43,033,249)
3,644,564 8,237,831 303,366,439
7,738,946 9,291,412 508,673,247
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings
All Enterprise Funds

For The Year Ended December 31, 1999

Solid
Waste
Water Wastewater Muanagement

Operating Revenues:

Charges fOr SEIVICES...ovi i s h) 36,098,672 37,656,681 $ 20,317,785

L0131 g Tt o LT 198,350 225,870 22.808
Total Operating Revenues. ..., 36,297,022 37,882,551 20,340,593
Operating Expenses:

Personal ServiCes. ..ot 3,937,713 7,167,164 3,655,488

Materials and supplies.......ocoveiiii 854,769 939,035 601,958

CONIACTUAL SEIVICES. . ovivieiieiiiirirrrrrrrareeeereeereareeaaeaereaeereeeeeeeeees 1,025,084 1,825,768 1,029,095

UHHHES ..ot as b e 20,969,803 10,511,129 5,825,184

D e PTECIAION. .ot eree ettt 2,583,994 6,793,404 1,203,356

O NET EXPEIISES . tvveeeieieieceeetee v e ebbesbb e et baeibasabasssasasaanen. 534,146 1,816,133 709,584
Total Operating EXPenses..........ccocviviviiononoeeiiienecaiaee, 29,905,509 29,052,633 13,024,665
Operating Income (LOSS)..........cccoooiviiiiiiciiiic e 6,391,513 8,829,918 7,315,928
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

INVestmeEnt INCOME. ... ..o 401,194 222,597 906,866

Interest expense and Niscal charges....o.cvcvvveiceennn, (1,213,848) (2,819,700) (3,353,172)

Gain (loss) from disposal of fixed assets............cccceeveveennne 24,202 (1,571) (20,177)

Other nonoperating revenue (EXPENSE).....oooveeeeeeereereecreennen. 26,584 165,750 230,183
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)................c........ (761,868) (2,432,930) (2,236,300)
Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers....................oo...... 5,629,645 6,396,988 5,079,628
Operating transfers M.t 1,213,383 1,098,886 1,311,827
Operating transfers OUt............oocoeooviieee e (149,451)
Net Income (LOSS)............oooceveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccieeee e 6,843,028 7,495,874 6,242,004
Retained Earnings (Deficit) At
BeginHING Of YEAF ..., 18,055,355 (17,689,730) 16,164,536
Retained Earnings (Deficit) At
Erd Of Year. ..o, 24,898,383 $__(10,193.856) $ 22,406,540
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Parking

Stillwater

Facilities Center Totaly

3 935,639 7,899,796 102,908,573
244 29,159 476,431
935,883 7,928,955 103,385,004
103,996 6,163,203 21,027,564
8,842 604,584 3,009,188
69,856 1,393,721 5,343,524
36,663 218,426 37,561,205
185,664 135,461 10,901,879
158,663 885,287 4,103,813
563,684 9,400,682 81,947,173
372,199 (1,471,727) 21,437,831
1,530,657
(265,285) (7,652,011)
2,505 4,959

1,000 423,517
(204,285) 2,505 (5,692,878)
107,914 (1,469,222) 15,744,953
1,544,105 5,168,201
(149.451)

107,914 74,883 20,763,703
3,536,650 8,162,948 28,229,759
$ 3,644,564 8,237,831 48,993,462
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
All Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Solid
Waste
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents Water Wastewater Management
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from CUSLOMICTS ..vvviervr et $ 32,600,898 $ 34429000 $ 20,253,406
Cash receipts from quasi-external operating transactions.................... 113,739 72,168 221,145
Cash payments to employees for SCIVICEs....ocoviiiivcecene (2,465,382) (5,692,032) (2,914,070)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services. ... (17,557,344) (13,195,201) (4,948,422)
Cash payments for quasi-external operating transactions............coevee, (2,811,741) (2,473,500) (1,805,370)
Other operating cash receiptS. ..o, 198,350 225,870 22,808
Cash {10 OLHEr SOUTCES..vvi vt 29,073 12,180
Other cash payments..........oocoooiiiii s (1,280) (32,549)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities......................... 10,106,313 13,345,936 10,829,497
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating transfers in from other funds................nn 1,213,383 1,098,886 1,311,827
Operating transfers out to other funds..........ocooveni (149,451)
Noncapital loan proceeds................oo 276,896
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities............ 1,213,383 1,375,782 1,162,376
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on capital Teases.......ooovivii it (1,893) (2,877)
Interest paid on capital [€aS€S........ocoocoviiiiiiici e (179) (272)
Principal paid on long-term notes........ccooevvveenieerr e (27,375) (966,625)
Interest paid on long-termm NOES.......coorvrrr e neeens (910,131)
Principal paid on revenue bonds.........cooooovvvvvennii (1,605,000) (1,280,000) (3,595,000)
Interest paid on revenue bonds...........ooooiiiiiie (3,056,988) (740,445) (2,932,981)
Proceeds from general obligation bonds........coocoviiniiniiiii s 1,700,000 2,400,000
Principal paid on general obligation bonds........ccoooviieiviniiiiniens (93,872) (1,040,000)
Interest paid on general obligation bonds.........ccccciveeiiciiicccccce, (89,204) (1,564,723)
Landfill post-closure costs paid......ccooeeieeieceverevesesere e ceaenes (48,939)
Other fiscal charges paid.......ccooivvneviniiinnie e (53,225) (55,971) (61,70D)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets........coeecciviainirensrinns (6,740,340) (7,578,914) (975,627)
Net cash provided by (used for) capital
and related financing QCHVILIES...........ccccccoovvivieesiirseee e e (9,968,076) (11,739,958) (7,614,248)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of INVESIMEnt SCCUTIUES. ...t saeee e (1,656,588) (113,410)
Sale of INVESIMENT SECUITHES.....iovoereieecrere e 1,566,298
Interest received on investments. ... 1,885,304 775,753 923,333
Net cash provided by (used for) investing aclivilies...................... 1,885,304 685,463 809,923
Net mcrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents..........oooooeee 3,236,924 3,667,223 5,187,548
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year......oooveeeiee e, 61,760,302 39,079,843 28,484,454
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.......ccocooviiiiiiiiicc e, $ 64997226 § 42,747,066 $ 33,672,002
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(Cont'd.)

Parking Stillwater
Facilities Center Totals
b 824,057 7,909,713 hY 96,017,074
110,404 517,456
(74,223) (5,026,132) (16,171,839)
(200,555) (2,075,637) (37,977,159)
(114,342) (2,065,635) (9,270,588)
29,159 476,187
1,000 2,505 44,758
(33,829)
546,341 (1,226,027) 33,602,060
1,544,105 5,168,201
(149,451)
276,896
0 1,544,105 5,295,646
(4,770)
451)
(994,000)
(910,131)
(6,480,000)
(6,730,414)
4,100,000
(225,000) (1,358,872)
(245,155) (1,899,082)
(48,939)
(170,897)
(43,962) (15,338,843)
(470,155) (43,962) (29,836,399)
(1,769,998)
1,566,298
3,584,390
0 0 3,380,690
76,186 274,116 12,441,997
1,057,992 6,486,354 136,868,945
h 1,134,178 6,760,470 b 149,310,942
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
All Enterprise Funds (Cont'd.)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Solid
Waste
Water Management
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating iNCOME (10SS)..vcvvureririverirrrerr et 6,391,513 7,315,928
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

DEPTECIALION. ....ecieeieesire e s e et 2,583,994 1,203,356

Miscellaneous nonoperating income (expense) 27,793

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable.. ... (3,376,219) 425,004

(Increase) decrease in due from other funds......ooviviiiin (7,816) (11,491)

(Increase) decrease in due from other governments............coovvviveenn. (256,747)

(Increase) decrease in inventory of supplies. ..o, 13,019 (17,039)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable. ... 2,756 2,079,748

Increase (decrease) in due to other funds.................... 65,463 61,791

Increase (decrease) in due to other governments 4,399,397

Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits............cooocs 6,413 28,947
Total QdJUSIMENLS...........ooeo e 3,714,800 3,513,569
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities............................ 10,106,313 10,829,497

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:

During 1999, the Wastewater tund reflected note payable obligations from noncash state capital public works loans in the amount of $§12,937,637.

The Water and Wastewater funds recognized noncash contributions of capital in the amounts of $831,143 and $969,563, respectively. The
Wastewater fund also recognized a noncash decline, in the amount of $29,162, in the fair value of investments.
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Parking Stillwater
Facilities Center Totals
h) 372,199 (1,471,727) 21,437,831
185,664 135,461 10,901,879
1,000 2,505 10,929
9,459 9,917 (5,925,205)
(10,881) (33,772)
(415,310)
312 (16,759) (8,499)
(13,320) (15,800) 1,883,367
(214) 158,376 264,560
95,212 5,408,784
2,122 (123,212) 77,496
174,142 245,700 12,164,229
3 546,341 (1,226,027) 33,602,060
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual
Water-Enterprise Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges fOr SEIVICES....vvviimiriiiiiiececc $ 32,417,789 32,416,545 $ (1,244)
(0711 1=) SRR OO VU VPP 1,514,590 113,016 (1,401,574)
Total ReVenues. ... s 33,932,379 32,529,561 (1,402,818)
Expenses.
Per50NAal SEIVICCS. .uvuemenenenenensissssssssnsnsnrnrnnnnn s en o 4,149,825 3,855,752 294,073
Professional SErVICES....ooivivivirirre o eriiiraraeaae e e as 1,316,946 1,190,420 126,526
Operating eXpEnSEs.....cvorirrreieeierririreese e 18,702,758 18,585,361 117,397
DEb SEIVICC..cuveviereerieie e ere s enne e rress e ens 63,518 43,590 19,928
Capital outlays.......coooooivvoimiiice 517,824 360,389 157,435
Totul EXPDERSES...oovi oo 24,750,871 24,035,512 715,359
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenses....o 9,181,508 8,494,049 (687,459)
Operating transfers M. 1,213,382 1,213,384 2
Operating transfers out............coooooin . (9,143,557) (9,143,557) 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenses
And Operating Transfers..........cooeiie 1,251,333 563,876 (687,457)
Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year..................... 17,916,597 17,916,597 0
Fund Equity At End Of Year........................... $ 19,167,930 18,480,473 §  (687,457)
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual

Wastewater-Enterprise Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for ServICEs. .o $ 32,743,138  § 32,743,941 $ 803
L0131 SET U USRI PRY 745,445 732,780 (12,665)
Total ReVeRUEs. ..........ooviiiiiii i 33,488,583 33,476,721 (11,862)
Expenses:
Personal SEIVICES.....oovivvvreeiiaiiie e areee e e e 8,071,577 7,034,616 1,036,961
Professional SErviCes.......ovvvvivrvvrieeicicaciieea e 1,390,440 1,081,497 308,943
Operaling EXPENSCS...ccociiriieirerienrrneirirs s s anes 13,522,658 12,545,028 977,630
Dbt SEIVICE. cvvieiriireeie e 1,955,395 1,934,952 20,443
Capital outlays. .....ooovvviimniiinnicice e 678,712 540,322 138,390
Total EXPENSES.....ooioiiiiiiiiiiiocvii o 25,618,782 23,136,415 2,482,367
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over EXDENHSES.........ccivviiiiininiiiinc s 7,869,801 10,340,306 2,470,505
Operating transfers in................nnn... 1,071,005 1,098,885 27,880
Operating transfers out................. (10,440,600) (10,408,318) 32,288
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenses
And Operating Transfers..................ocn (1,499,800) 1,030,873 2,530,673
Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year..................... 12,337,465 12,337,465 0
Fund Equity At End Of Year......................... § 10,837,665 $ 13368338 § 2,530,673
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual

Solid Waste Management-Enterprise Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavarable)
Revenues:

Charges fOr SErVICES..oviimiiie e inees $ 20,475,347 $ 20474326 % (1,021)
OTRCT ettt 22,625 22,808 183
Total ReVenues. ... 20,497,972 20,497,134 (838)

Expenses:
Personal SErVICES.......oiiriiiiiiiiierireeerere e 4.035,195 3,576,977 458,218
Professional SETVICeS......oovviiieieiviieiei e eer e 1,171,356 951,939 219,417
Operating eXpenSes.....coovieeiieimieee e, 7,937,971 7.775,288 162,683
DIEDE SEIVICEC..uiiiiiii et ee e 837,112 5,148 831,964
Capital outlays.......oovvvervivei e 506,946 488,194 18,752

Total EXPERSES.....c.ocooiiiiiiiiioiiin 14 488,580 12,797,546 1,691,034

FExcess (Deficiency) Of

Revenues Over EXPERSES. ...t 6,009,392 7,699 588 1,690,196
Operating transfers ... 1,244,170 1,244,127 (43)
Operating transfers ol (6,024,732) (5,963,983) 60,749

Excess (Deficiency) Of

Revenues Over Expenses

And Operating Transfers.........cc.coviiininn, 1,228,830 2,979,732 1,750,902

Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year.................... 17,808,065 17,808,065 0

Fund Equity At End Of Year......................... $ 19,036,895 $ 20,787,797 % 1,750,902
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual
Parking Facilities-Enterprise Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges {or Services.....oovivrrverivceinsie i $ 933590 % 934,461 3 871
O CT e e 1,000 1,000 0
TOtal REVERUES. ..o s 934,590 935,461 871
Expenses:
Personal SETVICES. . .cicruenininererererermrrrine e eaas 131,512 101,511 30,001
Professional SErVICES. .. ..iviurrrrenererrmenrnrnnres s enns 86,174 82,891 3,283
Operating eXPCeNSES....cvrviviriierimiiemieieeieeaeeenes 111,997 102,911 9,086
Capital Outlays.......ccocovmiiiiniiii e 5,000 3,062 1,938
Total EXPERSes. ..o 334,683 290,375 44,308
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over EXpenses..........coooooviiiiicnn ., 599 907 645,080 45,179
Operating transfers out.........oovieiniiiii L, (621,575) (621,575) 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenses
And Operating Transfers............. . (21,668) 23,511 45,179
Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year........................ 696,221 696,221 0
Fund Equity At End Of Year...................... $ 674,553 $ 719,732 $ 45,179

-173 -



MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual

Stillwater Center-Enterprise Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges {or Services......ooiiiniiceccceee, $ 7,909,713 § 7,909,713 % 0
10117 SR U PP 31,604 31,664 0
TOtAl REVERUES. ... oo 7,941,377 7,941,377 0
Expenses:
Personal 8ervices.......ccoovviovoiiiiiie e e 6,606,445 6,343,345 323,100
Professional SErvices.......ooooviivvvereeiniciiiiieeee e 1,538,403 1,239,634 208,769
Operating eXPenses......ccooevrrrerieerriraasaca e 2,021,994 1,780,524 241,470
Capital outlays.......ooovovieniii 127,124 99,301 27,823
Total EXpenses.......ccoooooiiiiiiii 10,353,966 9,462,804 891,162
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over EXpenses...........cocooviiiiin (2,412,589) (1,521,427) 891,162
Operating transfers in.................... 1,544,105 1,544,105 0
Operating transfers out............coocooiin. (3,505,090) (3,500,000) 5,090
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenses
And Operating Transfers........................... (4,373,574) (3,477,322) 891,162
Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year.................. 5,122,127 5,122,127 0
Fund Equity At End Of Year.............ccoeooe. $ 748,553  § 1,644,805 $ 896,252
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Internal Service Funds

These funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to
other departments of the County or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Printing Services

The Printing Scrvices Fund accounts for revenue earned from printing and binding services
provided to County departments. Expenses of the fund are for administration and
maintenance of the printing service operation.

Mailroom

This fund is used to account for the County's centralized mailroom for interoffice and
outgoing mail. Charges are basically on a cost-reimbursement basis for postage as well
as a small administrative fee.

Stockroom

The County operates a central storeroom which stocks a variety of supplies and serves
departments on an as-necded basis. Revenue is derived from user charges, which are
determined by item cost plus a standard markup for administrative cost.

Service Depot

The Secrvice Depot provides gasoline and repair services on vehicles of the County, as well
as other governmental units. Users are billed for costs incurred.

Telecommunications

The Telecommunications Fund is used to account for interdepartmental charges for the use of
the telephone system.

Other Data Services

The Other Data Services Fund was established to account for certain centralized internet
provider services which were made available to County departments,

Health Insurance
Admin./E.AP.

The County's Benefits Department centrally admuinisters the various health insurance programs
available to employecs through outside providers.  This fund is used to account for the
operation of this activity, along with a special employee assistance program the County offers.

Property/Casualty
Risk Management

The County is self-insured for certain property and casualty liability claims. The Property/
Casualty Risk Managment Fund is a multi-ycar budgeted fund used to account for self-funded
claims along with the administration of the overall insurance program,

Workers' Compensation
Risk Management

The County has a self-funding program for certain workers' compensation claims by
participating in a retrospective rating plan offered by the Ohio Bureau of Workers'
Compensation, This multi-year budgeted fund is used to account for self-funded claims
along with the administration of the overall insurance program.



MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Balance Sheet
All Internal Service Funds

December 31, 1999

Printing Service
Services Mailroom Stockroom Depot

Assets
Current assets:

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents...............coee. $ 146,405 § 72,690 § 131,307 § 73,015

Accounts receivable (Net)...ccoooeer e, 284 243 8,417 14,889

Due from other fUnds...........coiovvviireeerrer e 13,726 136,842 219,612 85,221

Inventory of suUpplies.......ccoovevriiiir e, 22,233 102,505 37,541
TOtal CUFFERE ASSELS..ovveceeeeeeieee et 182,648 209,775 461,841 210,666
Fixed assets in service:

Land. oot 75,000

Buildings, structures and improvements................ccoiin 24,490

Furniture, fixtures and equipment...........ccocociiiiiine e, 489,166 72,682 51,849 23,354

Less: Accumulated depreciation.......coccvevveviieviiniinniceane. (347,568) (57.838) (41,393) (17,518)
Total net fixed ASSEIS........ccoiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaiiiiiieiic 141,598 14,844 10,456 105,326
Total Assets........................ e e $ 324246 § 224619 § 472297 § 315,992
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable........coiiii § 17,178  § 28,906 § 202,178 § 72,780

Current portion of insurance claims payable..............coo.

Due to other funds.........coooiiiiiiiiinr e 2,643 1,812 1,348% 10,150

Due to other ZOVErnMmMeNtS. .......cccovvcvreeieere e viee s

Accrued wages and benefits........ooooriiiii i 23,059 16,279 3,712 10,499

Current portion of capitalized leases.........coceeeiiiiiinnnn 38,968 5,085

Total Current Liabilitios. .....ccccoivireriiiiiie e, 81,848 52,082 207,238 93,429
Long Term Liabilities:

Insurance claims payable (net of current portion)..............

Capitalized leases (net of current portion).........c.ccceeeeennne 53,868 9,832
Total Long Term Liabilities..........................ccccoovviiii 53,868 9,832 0 0
Total Liabilities...........c..ccooeeiiieieeiiiiiieiiicticieei e 135,716 61,914 207,238 93,429
Contributed capital and retained earnings

Contributed Capital..........cooov i 3,750 805 32,613

Retained Earnings:

UNTESEIVEA .o e 188,530 158,955 264,254 189,950

Total EQUItY.....co.oooiiiiiiieii et 188,530 162,705 265,059 222,563
Total Liabilities And EGUity..........coocooiioiniiniiiiiie, $ 324246 $ 224619 § 472297 § 315992
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Property/ Workers'

Health Casualty Compensation
Telecom- Other Data Insurance Risk Risk
munications Services Admin./E.A.P Management Management Totals

$ 801,873 3 16,838 h 163,945 b 7,889,200 $ 18,945,133 $ 28,240,406

141,777 249,982 415,592
430,513 414 1,000 2,658,084 3,545,412
7,083 169,362
1,381,246 16,838 164,359 7,890,200 21,853,199 32,370,772
75,000

24,490

572,497 5,435 15,152 25,882 1,256,017
(494,609) (1,631) (3,884) (5,159) (969,600)
77,888 0 3,804 11,268 20,723 385,907

$ 1,459,134 $ 16,838 $ 168,163 $ 7,901,468 § 21873922 § 32,756,679

$ 243,889 $ 5 11,148 $ 16,728 $ 11,122 A 603,929
212,997 309,347 522,344

16,908 1,402 8,857 1,745,309 1,788,429
237,216 237,216

12,502 38,461 11,195 8,902 124,609
44,053

273,299 0 51,011 249,777 2,311,896 3,320,580
182,475 3,301,857 3,484,332

63,700

0 0 0 182,475 3,301,857 3,548,032
273,299 0 51,011 432,252 5,613,753 6,868,612
342,598 0 1,034,915 2,181,124 3,595,805
843,237 16,838 (917,763) 5,288,092 16,260,169 22,292,262
1,185,835 16,838 117,152 7,469,216 16,260,169 25,888,067

§ 1,459,134 $ 16,838 $ 168,163 $ 7,901,468 § 21873922 $ 32,756,679
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Statement of Revenues,

Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings

All Internal Service Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Printing Service
Services Mailroom Stockroom Depot
Operating Revenues:

Charges for SEIVICES. ..ocooiiiiiiic e 638,493 $§ 1,274,673 % 1,774,657 577,939

OUhET TEVENUE ..o srerer e e eee et s 2,076 1,079 38,055
Total Operating Revenues.........coooooovvviviiiioo 640,569 1,275,752 1,774,657 615,994
Operating Expenses:

Personal SEIVICES.........oveovioverieienrerrrere e 307,467 176,535 104,909 169,404

Materials and supplies.........coooommiiio e 138,696 649,981 99(),022 341,152

Contractual SErVICES......c.vviieiier e ire i esiiaie e aneaienns 140,733 388,500 646,992 142,162

@S e eveeveeee ettt er e e 1,758

DePreciation......covivvirereeiee e 40,225 4,687 4,800 1,753

Insurance claims.......cc.ocoveiiiieiiiieir

OLher EXPEINSES..eivereirevireie e ettt 1,617 20 56,496 21,289
Total Operating EXpenses...........coooiio o, 628,738 1,219,729 1,803,219 677,518
Operating Income (LOSS)......c.coooooiiniini 11,831 56,023 (28,562) (61,524)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest expense and fiscal charges..........oooo (3,389) (1,268)

Loss from disposal of fixed assets........ccccocveeerennnnn (15,066)

Other nonoperating revenue (eXpense)........ooooeeee.... 8,940 1,793
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses). ... 5,557 (16,334) 0 1,793
Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers ... 17,388 39,689 (28,562) (59,731)
Operating transfers in...........ccovorenn . 5,000 0,958 6,833
Operating transfers OUL.........cccoiir e (13,791)

Net Income (LOSS)......coocoooouiiiii it 8,597 46,647 (21,729) (59,731)
Retained Earnings (Deficit) At

Beginning Of Year.................. s v, 179,933 112,308 285,983 249,681

Retained Earnings (Deficit) At

End Of YeAr.....c.oocooiioiiiicciiiiiiii e 188,530 % 158955 % 264,254 189.950
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Property/ Workers'
Health Casualty Compensation
Telecom- Other Data Insurance Risk Risk
munications Services Admin/E.A.P. Management Management Totals
1,964,003 § 13,948 § 337946  § 1,287,938 2,873,340 10,742,937
269 414 59,313 424 101,630
1,964,272 13,948 338,360 1,347,251 2,873,764 10,844,567
148,737 191,400 85,680 83,074 1,267,206
1,657 0 5,856 2,889 2,130,253
155,513 5,084 123,119 497,507 475,714 2,575,330
1,421,079 1,422,837
27,388 544 2,330 3,605 85,332
500,000 850,000 1,350,000
16,049 8,263 1,085 3,927 108,746
1,770,423 5,084 323,326 1,092,458 1,419,209 8,939,704
193,849 8,864 15,034 254,793 1,454,555 1,904,863
(4,657)
(15,066)
2,100 (955) (119,273) (107,389)
2,100 0 0 (955) (119,273) (127,112)
195,949 8,364 15,034 253,838 1,335,282 1,777,751
18,791
(23,287) (37,078)
172,662 3,864 15,034 253 838 1,335,282 1,759,464
670,575 7,974 (932,797) 5,034,254 14,924,887 20,532,798
843237 $_ 16838 § (917.763) % 5,288,092 16,260,169  § 22,292,262
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
All Internal Service Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Printing
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents Services Mailroom Stockroom
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash Teceipts from CUSTOMECTS. ..v.vviveireieees it $ 47,135 $ 37,880 % 21,162
Cash receipts from quasi-external operating (ransactions.......... e, 608,240 1,195,520 1,634,948
Cash payments to employees for SEIVIEES......oovmiaiiiiniien e (253,030) (144,445) (83,484)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services.......coveee. (264,120) (1,054,599) (1,518,219)
Cash payments for insurance claims.......ccenininnenee
Cash payments for quasi-external operating transactions (80,838) (43,157} (48,848)
Other operating cash receipts 1,390 1,079
Cash from Other SOUTCES. .......ce.vecveieer et e s 7,318
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities. ..o, 66,095 (7,722) 5,559
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating transfers in from other funds........ccoi i, 5,000 6,958 6,833
Operating transfers out to other funds........coie (13,791)
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities................. (8,791) 6,958 6,833
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on capital leases (28,530) (4,731)
Intcrest paid on capital leases........occviviivnniiinnns (3,389) (1,268)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities........... (31,919) (5,999) 0
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents...........cooovviiiiinnninne. 25,385 (6,763) 12,392
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning of year..........c.cocooiii i 121,020 79,453 118,915
Cash and cash cquivalents at end of year.........cooi $ 146,405 $ 72,690 % 131,307
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating INCOMMC (1088 ). uvvieerrerrerirriiieciisiissii s s s s e s s st s s $ 11,831 $ 56,023 § (28,562)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
DCPTCCIALION 11 csv e et ab e h bbbk 40,225 4,687 4,800
Miscellancous nonoperating income (expensc) 7,318
(Increase) decreasc in accounts receivable............... 12,798 3,759 (1,953)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds......ccovvvovvniii, 3,398 (45,032) (116,594)
(Incrcasc) decrease in inventory of SUpplies.... ..o 178 (7,883)
Increase (deercasc) in accounts payable...., (11,893) (29,182) 162,015
Increase (decrease) in duc to other funds..........ooooo (202) (5 (2,816)
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments..........ccovcvvinvinien
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and bencfits 2,442 2,028 (3,448)
Increasc (decrease) in insurance claims payable.........oooinnn
Total QUJUSTMERLS. ..o 54,264 (63,745) 34,121
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities...........c..c.coooiviniivnnennienn, $ 66,095 $ (7,722) § 5,559

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:

During 1999, the Printing Services fund entered into new borrowings under capital lease agreements in the amount of $84,048.
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Property/ Workers'
Heualth Casualty Compensation
Service Telecom- Other Data Insurance Risk Risk
Depot munications Services Admin./E. AP Management Management Totals
$ 133172 % 51,660 3§ h) 14472 % i h) 305,481
468,520 1,731,790 13,948 323,474 1,288,188 3,133,608 10,398,236
(131,550) (121,166) (149,468) (70,969} (67,864) (1,021,976)
(444,742) (1,514,370) (5,084) (123,736) (483,569) (1,436,012) (6,844,451)
(363,432) (1,689,132) (2,052,564)
(57,184) (74,657) (43,261) (57,475) (37,873) (443,293)
37,708 269 58,313 98,759
1,793 2,100 1,873,473 1,884,684
7,717 75,626 8,864 21,481 371,056 1,776,200 2,324,876
18,791
(23,287) (37,078)
0 (23.287) 0 0 0 0 (18,287)
(4,879) (4,879) (43,019)
(4,657)
(17,079) (7,384) (18,114) (42,577)
(17,079) 0 0 0 (12,263) (22,993) (90,253)
(9,362) 52,339 8,864 21,481 358,793 1,753,207 2,216,336
82,377 749,534 7,974 142,464 7,530,407 17,191,926 26,024,070
h) 73015 % 801,873 § 16,838 % 163945 % 7,889,200 $ 18945133 § 28,240,406
$  (61,524) % 193,849 § 8,864 § 15,034 3§ 254,793 § 1,454,555 § 1,904,863
1,753 27,388 544 2,330 3,605 85,332
1,793 2,100 1,873,473 1,884,684
77,017 (24,901) 1,338 68,058
(53,901) (155,652) (414) (750) 258,506 (110,439)
(11,173) (2,454) (21,332)
46,292 29,557 (2,089) (19,195) (12,779) 162,726
6,861 9,901 (455) (955) 1,999 14,328
(964,551) (964,551)
599 (4,162) 8,861 (1,735) (814) 3,771
136,568 (839,132) (702,564)
69,241 (118,223) 0 6,447 116,263 321,645 420,013
$ 7,717 % 75,626 § 8864 § 21481 § 371,056  § 1,776,200 § 2,324 876
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual

Printing Services-Internal Service Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes. ..o 3 655,375 % 655,375 % 0
OURET. e s 2,031 2,031 0
Total Revenues............ 657,406 657,406 0
Expenses:
Personal sErvICes.......ovoirarieeeirreeevmresiiinea e e 305,184 305,184 0
Professional SCIVICES. ... i 153,032 149,866 3,166
QPETating EXPENSES...ovvvirtitiisennern e 151,987 145,077 6,910
DIEbE SEIVICE. ..o iiieitieisreree i e 34,600 29,359 5,241
Capital OULAYS. .ooverieiiei e 6,000 722 5,278
Total EXPEnses. ..o 650,803 630,208 20,595
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over EXPOHSES.................ccoiiviiii s 6,603 27,198 20,595
Operating transfers ... 5,000 5,000 0
Operating transfers out............ (13,791) (13,791) 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenses
And Operating Transfers........................... . (2,188) 18,407 20,595
Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year.................. 121,020 121,020 0
Fund Equity At End Of Year........................ $ 118,832 % 139427 % 20,595
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual
Mailroom-Internal Service Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unjavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES. ..o $ 1,233400 % 1,233400 $ 0
(0 1411= CUTUTU TS 1,079 1,079 0
Total Revenues. ... ... 1,234,479 1,234,479 0
Expenscs:
Personal services............ e 177,089 174,753 2,336
Professional SETVICES........coovvvviinieiirreaeaea e 510,705 426,807 83,898
Operating eXPenses....ooovoiemrrrvii i e 1,001,279 650,116 351,163
DEbt SCIVICE...cuiieiiiir e e 3,375 3,375
T01al EXPENSCS...c.oiiiiisiiiiseee e ieciiiiieiies e e 1,692,448 1,251,676 440,772
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenses ..o (457,969) (17,197) 440,772
Operating transfers ... 6,958 6,958 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenses
And Operating Transfers............................ . (451,011) (10,239) 440,772
Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year.................... 79,453 79,453 0
Fund Equity At End Of Year.......................... $  (371,558) § 69,214 $ 440,772
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual

Stockroom-Internal Service Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Ior the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Charges for Services.........cocoiiniiiniiie e $ 1,643,961 $ 1,656,110 3§ 12,149
Total Revenues.................ccco i e 1,643,961 1,656,110 12,149
Expenses:

Personal Services....ooviiiiieieeiiiieieee e 108,458 108,451 7

Professional services.....cooooccviiiiiiiiiiice e 637,376 603,509 33,867

Operating eXPenSes. .....ocoorieiaereeieecaseee e eee s 1,035,965 1,007,633 28,332

Capital OULLAYS.c.vive e e e 4,793 4,677 116
Total EXpenses............ccooiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,786,592 1,724,270 62,322
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over EXpenses........ocooooiiiiii i (142,631) (68,160) 74,471

Opecrating transfers M. 6,833 6,833 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenses
And Operating Transfers..............c.c.oei oo, . (135,798) (61,327) 74,471
Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year........................ 118,915 118,915 0
Fund Equity At End Of Year....................... $ (16,883) % 57,588 % 74,471
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in IF'und Equity-Budget and Actual

Service Depot-Internal Service Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for Services.......oooovaiiniier e $ 601,692 h 601,692 $ 0
OtRET oot 39,501 39,501 0
Total ReVENUES. ... ittt e s 641,193 641,193 0
Expenses:
Personal SCIVICES.........ocviiieiiierierereieeee e eeeee e 169,007 169,007 0
Professional ServiCes. ..o ivierieniiiineeee 125,047 124,423 624
OpETaling EXPCNSES...vvrrevvirevrieeeeeeereeeaie o eees 351,880 314,470 37,410
Capital OUtlaYS.....cooiiireeie e e 43,290 42 665 625
Total EXPORSES. ..o e 689,224 650,565 38,659
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Qver Expenses.................. (48,031) (9,372) 38,659
Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year...................... 82,377 82,377 0
Fund Equity At End Of Year..............c............... $ 34,346 § 73,005 % 38,659
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual
Telecommunications-Internal Service Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for Services. ... $ 1,777,649 $ 1783450 % 5,801
OEhET . e 2,369 2,369 0
Total ReVERUeS.......................ccciiiiiiiiiiisiiis s, 1,780,018 1,785,819 5,801
Expenses:
Personal Services. .o ovieiiieinieirrie e 153,032 # 153,032 0
Professional Services....oooovivevniiinnii oo 173,498 150,997 22,501
Operating eXpenses......o.ooveeeeeeeeeeserenienneeoe e 1,513,239 1,499,371 13,868
Capital outlays......coocooovirvinin 31,742 25,315 6,427
Total EXPeRSes.......occooiivoiiiiiiiiiae .. 1,871,511 1,828,715 42,796
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over EXpenses. ... ... (91,493) (42,896) 48,597
Operating transfers out.............ccoceii (23,287) (23,287) 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenses
And Operating Transfers..............cccoe . (114,780) (66,183) 48,597
Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year....................... 749,534 749,534 0
Fund Equity At End Of Year.....................c.os 3 634,754 % 683,351 § 48,597
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual

Other Data Services-Internal Service Fund
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Charges for ServiCes ... $ 12,898 § 13948  § 1,050
Total Revenues.......................... . 12,898 13,948 1,050
Expenses:

Professional ServiCes.....cocicvvveviviieieiveeieeee e 5,543 5,084 459
Total EXPERSES.....ooooiiiiiii 5,543 5,084 459
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over EXpenses.........co.co 7,355 8,864 1,509
Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year....................... 7,974 7,974 0
Fund Equitv At End Of Year.............cccooiine, $ 15329 % 16,838 § 1,509
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual
Health Insurance Admin./E.A.P.-Internal Service Fund

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Charges for Services. ..o 337,946 337,946 0
Total REVEHUES ... e e 337,946 337.946 0
Expenses:

Personal SEIVICES....oomevviereeeiiitiiererererere e e nneeees 182,880 182,048 832

Professional SErVICES.......vvvivivi e 159,045 141,237 17,808

Operating EXPeNSCSs. ...ttt 11,569 7,925 3,644

Dbt SEIVICE. ..o iieenssi e s e e s reneeees 2,025 2.025

Capital outlays. ..o 1,127 1,127 0
Total EXPenses......ccooovioivoiiiia o : 356,646 332,337 24,309
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over EXpenses.....cooooooeiiii {(18,700) 5,609 24,309

Operating transfers iN.........cocoveivininniinin s 7,848 7,848

Operating transfers out. ... (7,848) (7,848) 0
Excess (Deficiency) Of
Revenues Over Expenses
And Operating Transfers......................... (26,548) 5,609 32,157
Fund Equity At Beginning Of Year......................... 142,464 142,464 0
Fund Equity At End Of Year...........ocooei 115,916 148,073 32,157
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, ORIO

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity, for other governments
and/or funds. The County's fiduciary funds are comprised of an Expendable Trust 'und and various
Agency Funds.

Expendable Trust Funds are trust funds whose resources may be expended. They are accounted for
and reported in essentially the same manner as governmental funds.

Expendable Trust The County uses this fund to account for assets, consisting of unclaimed funds, which it is
Fund holding in a trustee capacity until such time that they are rightfully claimed or, if unclaimed,

revert to the County.

Agency Funds are custodial in nature (uassets equal liabilities) and do not purport to present the
financial position or results of operations of the related entities.

Payroll Agency These funds are comprised of payroll control funds, which are ministerial in nature,
Funds including various employee tax withholding funds, etc.
Undivided Tax The Undivided Tax Funds include Real Estate Property Taxes, Tangible Personal Property
Agency Funds Taxes, Inheritance Taxes and various other taxes collected and distributed by the

County.
Other Agency Other miscellancous Agency Funds, for which the County acts as custodian, are reported
Funds under this heading.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Balance Sheet
All Fiduciary Fund Types

December 31, 1999

Expendable Total
Trust Agency
Fund Funds Totals
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash cquivalents ... g 817,731 83,017,406 83,835,137
Cash and cash cquivalents--
segregated accounts....ooveioiiieenes 15,418,478 15,418,478
Taxes levied for other governments 443,978,077 443,978,077
TOUAT ASSELS.....coeeie oo eean e s eba s oo s e $ 817,731 542,413,961 543,231,692
Liabilities
Due 10 Other TUNAS.......covviiie e e e e sr et re e e s st s b e e e 3,025,750 3,025,750
Due to other governments 491,734,030 491,734,030
Other Habilifics. ...t 10,000 47,654,181 47,664,181
TOtal LIGBIITHES. .......ooooioeee oot 10,000 542,413,961 542,423,961
Fund Balances
Unreserved/undesignated. ..o 807,731 807,731
TOLL EQUITY. ..ot 807,731 0 807,731
Total Liabilities And EGUIty.. ..o $ 817,731 542,413,961 543,231,692
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets
and Liabilities-All Agency Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Payroll Agency Balance at
Funds Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents.............cccocov i, $ 3,268,367 182,222,114 178,296,958 § 7,193,523
TOtal ASSCES.cocvovireie et $ 3,268,367 182,222 114 178,296,958 § 7,193,523
Liabilities
Due to other governments........................ $ 3,268,367 80,932,170 77475038 § 6,725,499
Other Habilities. ..o 0 101,289,944 100,821,920 468,024
Total Liabilities...........cocovcivvenivnie 3 3,268,367 182,222,114 178,296,958 §$ 7,193,523
Undivided Tax Assets
Agency Funds Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents........ooovroeiiiiiniinn, 3 29422272 648,904,933 § 642,767,524 § 35,559,681
Taxes levied for other governments......... 426,236,326 420,516,901 402,775,150 443,978,077
T0tal ASSELS. ..o § 455,658,598 1,069,421,834 1,045,542.674 $§ 479,537,758
Liubilities
Due to other funds......coceveeeeerervicenennns $ 3,332,237 2,468,685 2,775,172 % 3,025,750
Due to other governments..........ocooeeeene. 452,326,361 1,066,953,149 1,042,767,502 476,512,008
Total LiahilitieS........cccooooveveeeeioe, $ 455,658,598 1,069,421,834 1,045,542,674 $ 479,537,758
Other Agency Assets
Funds Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents................ et ) 40,208,999 78,176,867 78,121,664 $ 40,264,202
Cash and cash equivalents-
segregated ACCOUNTS....oovvvreeioerrceeeeeaenss 14,559,235 380,534,408 379,675,165 15,418,478
Total ASSCIS. ..o $ 54,768,234 458,711,275 457,796,829 $§ 55,682,680
Liabilities
Due to other funds.........ccoovevvvivvenrennnn, $ 0 25,977,588 25,977,588 $ 0
Due to other governments.......ooeviiiennen. 12,616,921 1,660,362 5,780,760 8,496,523
Other Habilities. .o 42,151,313 431,073,325 426,038,481 47,186,157
Total Liabilities.............c.cc..occooooiiii, $ 54,768,234 458,711,275 457,796,829 3 55,682,680
Total Agency Assets
Funds Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents................ 3 72,899,638 ! 909,303,914 899,186,146 % 83,017,406
Cash and cash equivalents-
segregated aCCOUNIS.....vcovcricicieecreeene 14,559,235 380,534,408 379,675,165 15,418,478
Taxes levied for other governments......... 426,236,326 420,516,901 402,775,150 443,978,077
TOtal ASSEIS. oo $ 513,695,199 1,710,355,223 1,681,636,461 $§ 542413961
Liabilities
Due to other funds..........coooovieveeein $ 3,332,237 28,446,273 28,752,760 $ 3,025,75C
Due to other governments.........ooceevvennn 468,211,649 1,149,545,681 1,126,023,300 491,734,030
Other liabilities..........ccoooeeiiieec e 42,151,313 532,363,269 526,860,401 47,654,181
Total Liabilities.............c.cococcovoveiiiiiinnnn, $ 513,695,199 1,710,355,223 1,681,636,461 $ 542.413,96!
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

General Fixed Assets Account Group

This group is used to account for all fixed assets of the County other than those accounted for in the
Proprietary Funds. General fixed assets include land, land improvements, buildings, structures and
improvements, as well as furniture, fixtures, and equipment owned by the County.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of General Fixed Assets
By Source

December 31, 1999

General Fixed Assets:

LN e bbb e s $ 4,686,140
L.and IMPIOVEIMENIS. ...t bt 1,412,810
Buildings, structures, and improvements.............ocooovivoinenreiies 88,703,697
Furniture, fixtures, and eqUipment.............occoooiiorinmn o 32,370,604
CoONSrUCTION-IN-PIOZTESS. .....vi e oieiiiieieete sttt 16,838,187
Total General Fixed ASSeLs. ... ... $ 144,011,438
Investment in General Fixed Assets from:
Gencral fUNA TEVENMUES. ....viviiiii it ie e v cair b s s esessebraaaaasnnnsbsaeeaaans 3 28,132,897
Special revenue fund reVenues........c.oooviviii e 32,483,799
Capital ProJectS. ..o 82,565,800
D OMALIONS . ¢« e vt ettt ettt ettt e e et en e, 828,942
Total Investment in General Fixed Assels..............ocoin, $ 144,011,438
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of General Fixed Assets
By Function and Activity

December 31, 1999

Buildings, Furniture,
Land Structures and Fixtures and
Function and Activity Land Improvements Improvements Equipment Total
General Government:
Legislative and Exccutive...................... $ $ $ A 131,097 h 131,097
Data Processing.........oooovvevieeeciiinnennnn 3,925,591 3,925,591
AUITOT ..o 254,462 254,462
Treasurer.........cooeeeei, 136,710 136,710
Recorder. ..., 75,166 75,166
Board of Elections........cooveeveveevveeceneenne, 196,022 196,022
Public Works.......ccocoiiiiiiciiiecen, 965,977 17,311,455 242,679 18,520,111
Total General Government...................... 965,977 0 17,311,455 4,961,727 23,239,159
Judicial and Law Enforcement.
Sheriffi....ocooi e, 20,937,933 6,580,817 27,518,750
County COUtS......ooerervriveerieeesreerreeeens 242,464 26,200,931 4,094,678 30,538,073
Prosecutor........ocovveieeeieei e 456,884 456,884
L0107 7] 1 SR 400,000 2,389,450 1,168,559 3,958,009
Forensic Crime Lab...........c.ccooccoon. 1,010,378 1,010,378
Animal Shelter.........ccoevivceiniiece, 6,169 958,942 335,220 1,300,331
Support Enforcement.............cco....... 306,777 306,777
Total Judicial and Law Enforcement....... 648,633 0 50,487,256 13,953,313 65,089,202
Environment & Public Works:
Memorial Hall.........oocoooiiiiii, 42,345 1,707,815 55,113 1,805,273
Public works.......ccccoviiciiiniciie, 12,855 12,855
County Engineer........cccooveeniniiniicrinn, 48211 5,187,918 5,156,185 10,392,314
Total Environment & Public Works........ 90,556 0 6,895,733 5,224,153 12,210,442
Social Services:
Children Services Board..........ccceene. 145,666 2,459,631 1,025,313 3,630,610
Human Services Department................. 23,945 365,432 1,061,391 1,450,768
Board of Mental Retardation................. 713,618 11,774 6,599,827 4,577,786 11,903,005
ADAMHS Board........ccoorvvvinivivneinenn, 172,664 80,001 252,665
Country View Manor.........ccccccceeninine 36,570 2,012,103 144,540 2,193,213
Employment & Training.......c.cooeeeenne 180,416 180,416
Total Social Services......................... 1,092,463 11,774 11,436,993 7,069,447 19,610,677
Community And Economic
Development:
Community and Economic
Development Department.................... 459,596 277,286 736,882
County Parks.....c.cooivvvvvrviirvrniere e, 1,888,511 1,401,036 2,112,664 884,678 6,286,889
Total Community And
Economic Development........................... 1,888,511 1,401,036 2,572,260 1,161,964 7,023,771
Construction-in-progress..... e 16,838,187 16,838,187
Total General Fixed Assels...................... $ 4,686,140 $ 1,412,810 $ 105,541,884 $ 32,370,604 $ 144,011,438
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets

By Function and Activity

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Function and Activity 1999 Additions (Deductions) 1999
General Government:
Legislative and Executive. ..., 131,097 $ h 131,097
Data Processing.........ooceereeeveneneernrevarerninnens 4,524,620 265,294 (864,323) 3,925,591
AUAITOL. oo o i er e 229,107 25,355 254,462
T @ASUTET s vivavie e eeecatieieee e e e s e s bmaene e e e s e rssnsnsaeas 73,967 62,743 136,710
RECOTART ... 75,166 75,166
Board of EIeCtiOnS.........ooveiieieeiieeineee e eseee e 186,874 16,684 (7,536) 196,022
Public Works........cccocoiiiiirecen e 18,520,111 18,520,111
Total General Government............ccccooeeviieenn.. 23,740,942 370,076 (871,859) 23,239,159
Judicial and Law Enforcement:
SHETIE ..ot 27,503,936 311,628 (296,814) 27,518,750
County COUMS.....oeiririiirieni e ee e 30,081,122 491,209 (34,258) 30,538,073
PrOSCOULOT. .. eeeee et ee e tieb s e e aaeaanans 375,358 103,381 (21,855) 456,884
(@00 18 ) 1= SUUTT OO U U U PSPPI 3,868,693 89,316 3,958,009
Forensic Crime Lab...........oooov i, 1,008,767 60,186 (58,575) 1,010,378
Animal Shelter.........ooovvvvvieiie e, 1,322,927 7,285 (29,881) 1,300,331
Support Enforcement..............cooooiiins 306,777 306,777
Total Judicial and Law Enforcement................. 64,467,580 1,063,005 (441,383) 65,089,202
Environment & Public Works:
Memorial Hall.............cocooiini e, 1,805,273 1,805,273
Public WOTKS.....cove e 0 12,855 12,855
County Engineer.........ocoooe s 10,121,495 505,844 (235,025) 10,392,314
Total Environment & Public Works................._. 11,926,768 518,699 (235,025) 12,210,442
Social Services:
Children Services Board.............cocoeivneen 3,283,396 366,887 (19,673) 3,630,610
Human Services Department........cococcoovvnennn 1,388,868 61,900 1,450,768
Board of Mental Retardation...........ccoceevueenennne, 11,216,545 998,231 (311,771) 11,903,005
ADAMHS Board.........cocooveeceeee e, 244,947 7,718 252,665
Country View Manor...............ocoevvvniine, 2,185,481 24,418 (16,686) 2,193,213
Employment & Training.........cccovvveivrvciniinnn 180,416 180,416
Total Social Services.........o...oco.oooeiiiiiinn 18,499,653 1,459,154 (348,130) 19,610,677
Community And Economic
Development:
Community and Economic
Development Department.............coooeeies 736,882 736,882
County Parks.................. 6,235,488 97,678 (46,277) 6,286,889
Total Community And
Economic Development...........................c.... 6,972,370 97,678 (46,277) 7,023,771
Construction-In-Progress. ..o oo erereenens 1,809,343 15,028,844 16,838,187
Total General Fixed Assels.............................. $ 127.4106,056 $ 18537456 % (1.942.674) $ 144.011.438
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

General Governmental Expenditures by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Judicial Environment Community Parks,
General & Law & Public Social & Economic Recreation & Debt
Government  Enforcement Works Services Development  Conservation Service Total
1990  $24.607,617  $65,386,3890  $15,9260,881  $119,606,237 $6,299,927 $2,521,705  $1,694,120  $236,042,876
1991 18,804,613 70,512,718 16,333,491 132,964,954 9,120,514 2,055,574 2,558,520 252,950,384
1992 19,504,305 74,888,141 15,208,284 130,199,418 11,543,636 3,366,717 4,071,197 258,781,698
1993 19,517,644 77,971,230 15,482,364 130,199,751 11,773,281 3,276,117 4,411,164 262,631,551
1994 20,069,071 79,642,687 13,867,264 137,074,703 14,578,723 3,487,681 3,625,875 272,346,004
1995 20,490,853 87,544,292 15,161,575 145,346,413 12,500,296 3,480,501 3,538,136 288,062,066
1996 18,390,638 91,228,628 16,798,395 162,772,356 16,168,379 3,764,823 3,241,202 312,364,421
1997 18,030,629 96,001,945 15,394,463 175,132,985 15,781,331 3,809,336 3,304,103 327,454,792
1998 19,712,683 104,138,662 14,816,392 184,370,476 18,259,902 3,705,580 3,115,103 348,118,798
1999 22,012,933 109,947,009 16,468,339 208,852,087 22,339,614 - 3,565,848 383,185,830

Judiciat & Law Enforcement 28.7%

Environment & Public Works 4.3%

Debt Service 0.9%

Community & Economic Development 5 8%

1999

1 Social Services 54 6%

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Office

Note: Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds. Beginning in 1999, the Parks, Recreation and Conscrvation classification was was eliminated.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

General Revenues by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fees & Fines
Licenses Charges and Special Inter- Investment
Taxes & Permits  for Services  Forfeitures  Assessments Governmental  Earnings  Miscellaneous Total
1990  $100,325,578 $1,333,519  $21,071,859  §1,395,578 $961,035 $102,181,770 $14,938,475  $4,489,142 $246,696,956
199] 101,324,616 1,247,390 25,135,719 1,217,051 766,873 116,846,512 13,886,796 5,989,038 266,413,995
1992 104,701,496 1,271,724 26,824,659 1,274,760 1,016,601 108,215,497 12,370,425 7,259,180 262,934,342
1993 111,234,452 1,279,278 29,551,095 1,422,849 965,537 115,537,758 10,052,932 6,416,503 276,460,404
1994 134,155,669 1,784,520 30,704,396 1,486,845 863,237 116,634,125 11,701,321 5,109,584 302,439,697
1995 137,882,476 1,777,723 29,178,478 1,535,510 796,610 123,288,605 14,898,406 6,538,641 315,896,449
1996 145,056,425 1,827,525 30,049,838 1,471,196 667,307 142,981,459 17,308,102 3,883,123 343,244 975
1997 150,270,880 1,820,932 33,917,340 1,442,352 491,051 165,652,975 19,541,415 3,984,181 377,121,126
1998 153,318,874 1,820,706 33,906,623 1,295,105 445600 163,991,838 26,390,123 6,276,959 387,445,828
1999 158,551,667 2,399,728 35,471,566 1,716,496 405,698 196,801,889 11,887,399 8,737,073 415,971,516
Investment Eamings 2.9%
T Miscalianaous 2.1%
///”"

F
Intergovernmental 47.3% A
£

{.
L

A A A Ml i

Special Assessments 0.1%

Fines and Forfeitures 0.4%

Licenses & Permits 0.6%

Taxes 38.1%

Faes & Charges for Services 8.5%

1999

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Office
Note: Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Real, Public Utility and Tangible Personal Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Current Current Current

Tax Collection Taxes Taxes Percent of Delinquent Tax Total

Year Year Levied Collected Levy Collected Collections Tax Collections
1989 1990 $55,669,033 $51,463,725 92.4% $2,180,940 $53,644,6065
1990 1991 58,109,334 55,502,037 95.5% 2,044,474 57,546,511
1991 1992 59,198,979 56,816,327 95.9% 2,657,273 59,473,600
1992 1993 59,489,726 57,889,429 97.3% 2,330,314 60,219,743
1993 1994 §2,376,126 80,211,424 97.4% 2,870,566 83,081,990
1994 1995 82,224,796 81,776,243 99.5% 2,787,288 84,563,531
1995 1996 90,984,487 89,251,660 98.1% 2,916,091 92,167,751
1996 1997 93,541,788 89,679,128 95.9% 3,256,593 92,935,721
1997 1998 94,415,815 92,268,244 97.7% 3,600,117 95,868,361
1998 1999 96,442,969 93,655,374 97.1% 3,672,969 97,328,343

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Office - Department of Finance
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Real Property(l) Personal Property(l) o Total

Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated

Year Value Actual Value Value Actual Value Value Actual Value

(1990  $ 4,372,712,670 § 12,493,464,771 § 1411,776,689 § 5,042,059,604 $ 5784,489,359 § 17,535,524,375
1991 5,396,551,890 15,418,719,686 1,389,874,044 5,147,681,644 6,786,425.934 20,566,401,330
1992 5,440,856,110 15,545,303,171 1,489.876,518 5,730,294,300 6,930,732,628 21,275,597,471
1993 5,479,982,870  15,657,093,914 1,473,069,212 4,403,673,014 6,953,052,082 20,060,766,928
1994 5,780,438,590 16,515,538,829 1,447,295,926 4,295,367,222 7,227,734,516 20,810,906,051
1995 5,799,374,750 16,569,642,143 1,475,941,067 4,333,881,186 7,275,315,817 20,903,523,329
1996 5,907,015,710 16,877,187,743 1,481,717344  4,758,348,840 7,388,733,054 21,635,536,583
1997 6,585,728,000 18,816,365,714 1,536,976,114 4,873,166,250 8,122,704,114 23,689,531,964
1998 6,635,726,270 18,959,217.914 1,563,579,180 5,148,179,762 8,199,305,450 24,107,397,676
1999 6,771,709,230 19,347,740,657 1,631,390,913 5,236,974,782 8,403,100,143 24,584,715,439

25

20

15

BILLIONS

10

!

<
&
<

Iy

1990

1991

1992

M1 Assessed Value - Real Property
3 Estimated Value - Real Property

1993

1994

1995 1996

1997 1998

[J Assessed Value - Personal Property

B3 Estimated Value - Personal Property

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Office - Departrment of Finance
(1) Includes public utility property values.

- 200 -



MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Property Tax Rates--County and All Overlapping Governments
(Per 31000 of Assessed Value)

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Cont'd.)

1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

County Units

General Fund 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.70
Mental Retardation & DD 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Human Services Levy | 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 - - - - - -
Human Scrvices Levy 11 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 - - - - - -
Human Services Levy 111 2.36 2.36 2.36 2.36 2.36 2.36 - - - -
Human Services Levy IV 2.67 2.67 2.67 2.67 2.67 2.67 - - - -
Human Services Levy A - - - - 5.21 521 5.21 5.21 5.21 5.21
Human Secrvices Levy B - - - - - - 5.03 5.03 5.03 5.03
Total Rates 10.45 10.45 10.45 10.45 1294 1294 1294 1294 1294 12,94
School Districts
Brookville 4143 4963 4928 4928 4928 49.08 5758 5724 5722 5715
Centerville 4948 4948 4948 498! 5058 5648 5648 5648 5648  56.05
Dayton 5225 5225 5225 6265 02.65 6265 6265 6265 6265 62.65
Huber Heights 4141 41.05 50.55 4881 4868 4847 4837 4798 4792 4771
Jefferson 4140 5090 5090 5640 5640 5640 5640 5640 5640 61.90
Kettering-Moraine 4220 4890 4890 4890 4981 4980 5310 53.10 53.10 53.10
Mad River 3423 43.00  43.00 4300 5060  50.60  50.60 50.60 50.60  50.60
Miamisburg 3895 3895 3895 3874 3895 3895 4470 4395 4495 44.63
New Lebanon 4895 4895 48.55 4855 4855 48.55 4855 4830 4830 4830
Northmont 46.35 5535 5468 5468 54.18  59.18  59.18  59.08 59.03 5893
Northridge 36.85 3685 4435 4435 4435 5210 5210 52.10 52.10 5210
Oakwood 68.07 8232 8232 8232 8232 8882 8B.B2 88E82 RE.82  BR.82
Trotwood-Madison 4574 4522 4556 4586 4586 4586 5576 53.74 5374 5374
Valley View 42.66  38.66 3866 38.66 3866 3866 3866 3866 38.66  38.606
Vandalia-Butler 4453 4453 42091 4291 4291 4786 47.86 4586 4586 4586
West Carrollton 4385 4344 4344 5084 50.84  50.76 50.76 5326 5326 5326
Qut-Of-County School Districts
Beavercreek 36.80 3570 4090 4070 40.10 3900 4250 4300 4290 42.00
Carlisle 4270 42770 4270 42770 4270 4270 42770 4270 4370  50.51
Fairborn 4230 4210 4190 4220 4180 4180 41.80 4180 41.80 41.80
Preble Shawnee 2950 2950 2950 2750 2750 2550 2500 2450 2250 2549
Tri County North 3815  36.55  36.55 3635 3395 4295 4270 4195  41.17  40.85
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Property Tax Rates--County and All Overlapping Governments
(Per 31000 of Assessed Value) (Cont'd.)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

1990 1997 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

Corporations
Brookville 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30
Carlisle 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.80
Centerville 3.04 2.72 2.72 2.64 2.64 2.64 2.64 2.64 2.51 235
Clayton 5.96 5.96 5.96 5.96 9.46 9.46 9.46 9.46 9.46 9.28
Dayton 10.00  10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00  10.00 10.00
Englewood 7.67 7.67 7.67 7.67 7.67 7.67 7.67 7.67 7.67 1017
Farmersville 9.64 9.64 9.64 9.64 9.64 9.64 9.64 9.64 9.64 9.64
Germantown 5.38 5.16 5.16 5.16 5.16 5.16 5.16 4.66 4.66 4.66
Huber Heights 14.57 14.57 14.34 14.34 1196 11.79 11.79 11.76 11.76 11.74
Kettering 7.41 7.41 7.25 7.17 7.17 7.17 7.17 7.00 7.00 6.98
Miamisburg 4.85 7.03 7.03 7.03 7.03 7.03 7.03 7.03 7.03 6.35
Moraine 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
New Lebanon 7.67 1470 1470 1470 1470 1470  14.70 1470 1470 14.70
Oakwood 11.08 11.08 11.80  11.80 11.80 11.80 11.80 11,80 11.80 11.80
Phillipsburg 9.02 12.02 12.02 12.02 12.02 12.02 12.02 12.02 12,02 12.02
Riverside 1.26 1.26 1.26 1.26 1.26 6.39 6.39 6.39 6.39 6.39
Trotwood 4.48 5.22 5.22 5.22 3.44 3.44 6.94 1514 1514 1514
Union 13.11 13.11 13,11 13.11 13.11 13.11 13.11 13.11 13.11 16.03
Vandalia 4.14 4.14 4.14 4.14 4.14 4.14 4.14 4,14 4.14 4.14
Verona 8.30 8.30 8.30 8.30 8.30 8.30 8.30 8.30 1330  13.30
West Carrollton 2.74 2.74 2.74 2.74 2.74 2.74 2.74 2.74 2.74 2.74
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1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
Townships
Butler 12.60 13.60 13.60 15.60 15.10 15.10 15.10 16.60 17.60 17.60
Clay 9.90 9.90 9.90 9.90 990 1140 1140 1140 l. 1.40  11.40
German 1236 1236 1436 1436 1636 1586 1586 1470 1570 1570
Harrison 1058  11.08 1198 1198 1328 1328 1368 1368 1368 1368
Jackson 14.15 14.15 14.15 14.15 15.15 15.15 15.15 16.90 18.70 18.70
Jefferson 14.99 12.99 14.99 16.69 18.59 18.59 18.59 18.59 18.59 18.59
Madison 17.14 1964 1964 1964 1964 19.64 19.64 - - -
Mad River 11.53 1153 1153 1353 13.53 - - - - -
Miami 1479 1479 1629 1854 1854  17.00  17.00 17.00 17.25 17.25
Perry 10.80  10.80 10.80 1080 1080 1080 10.80 10.80 10.80 10.80
Randolph 1034 1034 1034 1034 1034 1034 1034 1034 1034 1034
Washington 1505  16.05 1605 1655 1575 1575 1575 1575 1550  15.50
Other Units

Dayton/Montgomery Library - - - - - 0.72 0.72 0.72 0.26 0.26
Washington/Centerville Library - - - 1.63 1.63 1.63 1.63 1.63 1.63 1.63
Community College 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
Park District 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20
Conservancy Tax 0.04 - - - - - - - - -

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Office - Department of Finance
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Special Assessment Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total

Current Current Ratio of Delinquent

Fiscal Assessments Assessments Collections Qutstanding
Year Due Collected To Amount Due Assessments
199() 3 1,627,069 $ 1,444,360 89% 3 943 838
1991 1.491,057 1,328,670 89% 1,204,133
1992 1,582,509 1,527,187 97% 1,089,481
1993 1,499,108 1,281,454 85% 1,046,696
1994 1,283,636 1,164,887 91% 1,121,165
1995 1,749,884 1,449,211 83% 1,227,363
1996 692,667 647,329 93% 765,300
1997 431,522 402,524 93% 439,380
1998 356,443 344 528 96% 224,740
1999 425,342 386,095 1% 271,888

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Office - Department of Finance
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Ratio of Net Bonded Debt
to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Assessed Less Self- Less Applicable Net Ratio of Net Net Bonded
Fiscal Values Gross Supporting Debt Service Bonded Bonded Debt to Debt
Year  Population (in 000's) Bonded Debt Debi(l) Fund Balance(?) Debt Assessed Value Per Capita
1990 573809 § 5784489 § 124,279,000 § 123,049,000 $ -0- 3 1,230,000 0.021% % 2.14
1991 574,685 6,786,426 150,897,000 124,957,000 490,000 25,450,000 0.375% 44.29
1992 579,016 6,930,733 187,076,000 161,648 500 490,000 24 937,500 0.360% 43.07
1993 582,287 6,953,052 170,979,033 143,779,033 490,003 26,709,997 ().384% 45.87
1994 572,140 7,227,735 166,463,033 139,983,033 633,046 25,846,954 0.358% 45.18
1995 570,490 7,275,316 161,539,033 135,806,533 633,046 25,099,454 0.345% 44.00
1996 566,312 7,388,733 209,046,033 184,103,533 711,179 24,231,321 0.328% 42.79
1997 561,303 8,122,704 199,923,033 175,808,033 711,179 23,403,821 0.288% 41.70
1998 558,427 8,199,305 190,407,533 167,170,033 711,179 22,526,321 0.275% 40.34
1999 565,866 8,403,100 197,954,433 159,496,933 1,940,125 36,517,375 0.435% 64.53

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Office

(1) Self-Supporting Debt consists of Revenue Bonds, Special Assessment Bonds, and General Obligation Bonds paid from Enterprise
Fund Revenue, and one-half of the County Engineer's Maintenance Facility Bonds which are payable from road, awto and gas revenue.

(2) Applicable debt service fund balance includes fund balances, reserved for debt service, for the Lingineer's Maintenance Facility Bonds
and the Various Purpose Facility Improvement Bonds.

Ratio of Annual Debt Service for General Bonded Debt to
Total General Governmental Expenditures

Debt Service Requirements(1) Total General Ratio of Debt Service
Interest & Total Governmental 1o General Governmental

Year* Principal Fiscal Charges Debt Service LExpenditures (2) Expenditures

1991 $ 180,000 3 696,561 $ 876,561 $252,950,384 0.35%
1992 610,000 1,784,688 2,394,688 258,781,698 0.93%
1993 875,000 1,484,508 2,359,508 262,631,551 0.90%
1994 830,000 1,547,553 2,377,553 272,346,004 0.87%
1995 865,000 1,498,813 2,363,813 288,002,066 0.82%
1996 915,000 1,446,543 2,361,543 312,364,421 0.76%
1997 960,000 1,390,513 2,350,513 327,454,792 0.72%
1998 1,020,000 1,331,163 2,351,163 348,118,708 0.68%
1999 1,285,000 1,460,334 2,745,334 383,185,830 0.72%

* Priorto 1991, Monigomery County had no General Bonded Debt Service Requirements.

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Oftice

(1) Debt service requirements include only those amounts for the County Engineer's Maintenance Facility Bonds and the Various
Purpose Facility Improvement Bonds,

(2) Gengral govemnmmental expenditures include General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds,
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

December 31, 1999

Total of all County Debt Quistanding (1)l 3 197,954,433
Debt exempt from computation.
Special assessment bonds.............ooo s 1,605,038
SRSy DTS o) ¢ e - F 120,075,033
Self-supporting general obligation bonds paid from:
R L LAV o LU 3,219,362
A T (ot Y T o (et o L (T OO PSSRV SUSUSUSUSUSUPTSPN 30,150,000
Parking facilitics TEVEMUC. ... s 4,285,000
Portion of general obligation bonds payable from road, auto & gas revenue...........ccocovveennne 162,500
Portion of general obligation bonds for County jail / family courts expansion...........c.c.cceceeie 15,046,591
Portion of general obligation bonds for Children Service's Board admin bldg......................... 12,800,000
Total eXempt debi..........cccoiiiii e (187,343,524)
oL s (-]« OO OOV O T PO U O T T T PP PP VPP PO PP RO POTUPROPITON $ 10,610,909
Assessed Valuation of County (2).......iiiiiii i $ 9,042,888,279

Direct debt limitation-ORC 133.02 and ORC 133.05 (3% of
first $100,000,000 assessed valuation; 1 1/2% of amount
in excess of $100,000,000: not in excess of $300,000,000;

2 1/2% of amount in excess of $300,000,000).....ccviiriiririiiieiei i e $ 224,572,207
Net debt (All UNVOEA) . ..ooii e e e s e snen e (10,610,909)
Direct Legal Debt Margin (Voted and Unvoted)........c.ceoeiieiiicceeseeeeeeee e $ 213,961,298
Unvoted debt limitation (1% of County assessed valuation)..................ccccc....ovvveineiiiiiviiiioneenann ¥ 90,428,883
NEt UNVOLEA AEBL. oot ee e e e e s e e st e e e s e e s e e e e e ert e e e ranra e s ennees (10,610,909)
Unvoted Legal Debt Margin...................o..o..ccovvvivvrovreorsvsrrssovsonsosssssossossossonsossnsossnsosssesnnnions $ 79,817,974

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Office

(1) Total debt outstanding includes all bonded indebtedness and bond anticipation notes.
(2) For the purpose of this computation the current assessed valuation, on which the 2000 levy will be based, is used.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

December 31, 1999

Self- Debt
Giross Supporting Service Net Percent County
Debt Debt(!l) Fund(2) Debt Applicable(3) Share
Montgomery County............co.ee. $ 197,954,433 § 159,496,933 3 1,940,125 § 36,517,375 100.00% $ 36,517,375
Montgomery County
Cities, Villages, Townships....... 150,104,210 34,543,172 19,744,843 95,816,195 100.00% 95,816,195
Montgomery County
School Districts......ocooeveiiinnn 64,931,548 8,288,234 56,643,314 100.00% 56,643,314
Miami Valley Regional
Transit Authority........cccoeeneennen, 2,581,514 2,581,514 2,581,514 100.00% 2,581,514

Total Net Debt Overlapping.........

191,558,398

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Office - Department of Finance
(1) S¢lf-Supporting Debt consists of revenuc bonds, special assessment bonds, general obligation bonds paid from Enterprise Fund
revenue, and one-half of the County Engincer's Maintenance Facility Bonds which are payable from road, auto and gas revenuc,
(2) 1999 Tax Budgets filed with County Budget Commission by July 20, 1998. Certified unencumbered balances filed with the County Budget
Commission January 1999. Debt service funds exclude amounts for Sclf-Supporting Debt.
(3) Percent applicable to Montgomery County calculated using asscssed valuation of taxing district. Assessed valuation of taxing districts

furnished by County Budget Commission.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Enterprise Fund Bond Coverage
(Revenue Bonds and General Obligation
Bonds Paid from Enterprise Fund Revenue)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Revenue Bonds

Enterprise Fund Supported
General Obligation Bonds

Net Revenue

Available for
Net Revenue Creneral
Operating Available for Debt Service Requirements Obligation Debt Service Requirements
Pledged & Maintenance  Revenue Bond Bond Band Bond
Year Revenues(1) Expenses(2) Debi Service Principal Interest Towl  Coverage  Delt Service Principal Interest Towal  Coverage
Water [Ffund Bond Coverage:
1990 § 26898141 § 22163726 % 4,734415 § 400,000 § 2.791.321 $ 3,191,321 148 3% 1,543,094 % 76,070 3 25,529 % 101,599 15.19
1991 33,046,365 21,573,488 11,472,877 400,000 2469314 2.869.314 4.00 8,603,563 108,309 124,706 233,015 36.92
1992 29,998 521 22,413,463 7,585,058 500,000 2,139,884 2.639 884 2.87 4,945,174 110,070 100, 162 210,232 23.52
1993 35.923.006 23998320 11,924,680 895,000 4,032,102 4,947,102 2.41 6,977,578 138,129 135,293 273,422 2552
1994 37,953,789 23,421,937 14,531,852 1,323,000 3,333,685 4.658.685 312 9,873,167 121.479 122,132 243,611 40.53
1995 36,706,974 22,597,612 14,109,362 1,360,000 3.293,773 4,653,773 3.03 9,455,589 127,912 115,018 242,930 38.92
1996 37,163,334 22,024,597 15,138,737 1.415.000 3.244.308 4,659,308 3.25 10,479,429 131,149 107,432 238,581 43.92
1997 36.197,147 23,237,689 12,959,458 1,470,000 3.187.073 4,657.073 2.78 8,302,385 81.192 99,647 180,839 45,91
1998 33,552,060 23,483,129 10,068,931 1,530,000 3.124.843 4.654,843 216 5,414,088 85,522 94,515 180,037 30,07
1999 44,022,667 27,321,515 16,701,152 1,605,000 3,056,988 4,661,988 3.58 12,039,164 93,872 89,205 183,077 65.76
Wastewater Fund Bond Coverage:
1990 § 18982298 § 17.149088 § 1,833,210 § 455,000 $ 1673797 $ 2,128,797 08 % (295,587) % 704,930 $ 475,793 § 1,180,723 (0.25)
1991 26.563 843 17,058,435 9,505,408 480.000 1,646,953 2,126,953 4.47 7.378.455 706,691 1,280,400 1,987,097 37N
1992 25,052 852 19,011,348 6,041,504 510,000 1,617,432 2,127,432 2.84 3,914,072 749,930 1,069,571 1,819,501 2,13
1993 29,068,949 18,762,352 10,306,597 695,000 1,324,731 2,019,731 5.10 8,286,866 869,930 902.404 1,772,134 4.68
1994 31,195,514 20.735.057 10,460,457 1,060,000 959,800 2,019,800 5.18 8,440,657 759,930 860,374 1,620,304 5,21
1995 30,597,171 18,738 588 11,858,583 1,085,000 930,120 2,015,120 5.88 9.843,463 834,930 905,119 1,740,049 5.66
1996 32,519,114 21,044,113 11.475.001 1,130,000 891,060 2,021,060 5.68 9.453.941 861,693 823,568 1,685,261 5.61
1997 33,017,250 20,416,288 12,600,962 1,170,000 845,205 2,015,295 6.25 10,585,667 1,375,000 1,888,392 3,263,392 3.24
1998 31,617,936 21,391,430 10,226,506 1,225,000 795,570 2,020,570 5.06 8,205,936 1,455,000 1,663,560 3,118,560 2.63
1999 39.925,658 22,259,229 17,666,429 1,280,000 740,445 2,020,445 R.74 15,645,984 1,030,000 1,561,985 2,591,985 6.04

(1) Pledged Revenues: All revenues (excluding gains or fosses on disposition of assets, judgments received, and gains and losses arising from early extinguishment of
Bonds, General Obligations and Notes and Obligations), plus. for Water, the lessor of 25% of unencumbered year end balance carried over to the current fiscal
year, or an amount equal to 25% of the Operating and Maintenance Expense of the immediately preceeding year, for Wastewater, none: for Solid Waste, 100% of
any unencumbered year-end balance carried over to the current fiscal year. Pledged revenues also include 100% of any unencumbered year-end balances carried
over to the current fiscal year for the Parking Facilities Fund

(2) Operating expenses exclude depreciation, amortization and non-operating expense items,

(3) Coverage data for the self-supported general obligation bonds payable from the Parking Facilities fund are included for disclosure purposes only. 1991 was the first year of debt service for
these bonds.

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Office
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Revenue Bonds

Enterprise Fund Supported
General Obligation Bonds

Net Revenue
Available for

Net Revenue General
Operating Availuble For Debt Service Requirements Obligation Debt Service Requirements
Fledged & Mammtenance  Revenue Bond Bond Bond Bond
Year Revenues(1) Fxpenses(2) Debht Service Principal Interest Total Coverage  Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
Solid Waste Management 'und Bond Coverage:
1990 & 18678737 § 14594782 § 4,083,955 % 400,000 5 1,953,950 3 2,353,950 1.73 § 1,730,005 % 165,000 % 20,663 § 185,663 9.32
1991 19,557,716 15,152,409 4.405,307 400,000 1.929.550 2,329,550 1.89 2,075,757 120,000 11,944 131,944 15.73
1992 24,358,955 17,361,234 6,997,721 500,000 1.904.750 2,404,750 291 4,592,971 125,000 6,094 131,094 35.04
1993 26,898 856 19,018,817 7,880,039 R05.000 2.071.213 2.876,213 2.74 n/a n/d n/d n/a w/a
1994 30,792,319 18,707,567 12,084,752 925,000 2,023,200 2,948,200 4.10 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
1995 38,545,773 19,824,539 18,721,234 1,040,000 1,907,138 3,007,138 6.23 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
1996 33,051,689 14,233,900 18,817,789 1,290,000 1.889,107 3,179,107 5.92 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
1997 33945511 12,938,298 21,007,213 3,220.000 3.230,256 6,450,256 326 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
199% 36,286,941 13,622,738 23,364,203 3,415,000 3.079.121 6,494,121 3.60 n/a n/a 1/a 1/a n/a
1999 39,591,723 11,821,309 27770414 3.615.000 2.917.406 6,532,406 4.25 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Parking Facilitics Fund Bond Coverage: (3)
1991 § 1,005,592 § 237,386 1/a n/a n/a na n/a % 708,206 § 0 3 {07,709 § 107,709 7.13
1992 1,473,102 193,446 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1,279,656 155,000 358,739 513,739 2.49
1993 2,015,111 170,637 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1,844,474 205,000 300,980 505,980 3.65
1994 1,286,023 218,850 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1,067,173 200.000 310.425 510425 2.09
1995 1,205,272 203,653 n/a n/a 1/a n/a /s 1,001,619 205,000 298,765 503,765 1.99
1996 1,298,993 208,235 n/a n/a n/a 1n/a n/a 1,090,758 215.000 286,545 501,545 2.17
1997 1,365,645 291.092 n/a n/a n/a n/a 1n/a 1,074,553 225.000 273,565 498,565 2.16
1998 1,485,037 264,493 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1.220.544 240.000 259,855 499,855 2.44
1999 1,621,944 378,020 n/a n/a 1a n/a n/a 1,243,929 250,000 245,155 495,155 251
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Demographic Statistics

December 31, 1999

Population County SMSA
1940 295,480 331,343
1950 398,441 518,642
1960 527,080 727,121
1970 606,148 850,266
1980 571,697 830,070
1990 573,809 951,270
Population for the 1990 573,809
Last Ten Years 1991 574,685
1992 579,016
1993 582,287
1994 572,140
1995 570,490
1996 566,312
1997 561,303
1998 558,427
1999 565,866
590,000
585,000
[
580,000 Z‘
.
)
575,000 % ?
n
570,000 H % % 7
% -
565,000 % % 7
2
1 /
560,000 M ? é % %
555,000 -///- %% ¥ : %
' 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

Population

Source: Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission
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Age Distribution

1990 Age Number Percentage
Under 5 years 42232 7.36%
5-17 years 100,408 17.50%
18-20 years 25,809 4.50%
21-24 years 34,752 6.06%
25-44 ycars 185,303 32.29%
45-54 years 60,090 10.47%
55-59 years 26,745 4.66%
60-64 years 26,462 4.61%
65-74 years 43,373 7.56%
75-84 years 22,032 3.84%
85 years & over 6,603 1.15%
Total 573,809 100.00%
Median Age 333
Source: Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission
Racial/Ethnic
Composition of Number Percentage
Population White 463,551 80.78%
1990 Black 101,817 17.74%
Asian/Pacific Islander 5,886 1.03%
Other 2,555 0.45%
Hispanic Origin* 4,539 0.79%
Total 573,809 100.00%
* Note: Hispanic is an ethnic category, not a race. Persons of Hispanic origin may
be of any racce; therefore, this category is nat included in total population.
Source: Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission
Ten Largest Employees
Employers Wright-Patterson AIr FOICE BaSE.........e.viucircuruiiirieiriasiresesceseesscinecesmsessemssssseeseseerenens 21,000
Delphi AUtOmMOtiVe SYSIEMS...cviiicririii et s 13,000
Premier Health Partners.. ... covori i ciiesiee e ieeseessteesate s s s eessssaeanre e s sraessneessnnesssseens 9,000
AITDOINIE EXPIESS.c.ei ittt ettt e 7,875
IMEIJEE TIIC. oottt ea e e . 6,600
International Truck and Engine Corp.......oocoviinriiii e 5,000
GM Truck Group Moraine Assembly.......cocovimiiiiiii 4,350
MONtZOMETY COUNLY...utiviiiiieiir ettt sttt e b s e er e 4,100
N N T O TP OO PR PUP PR 4,000
Dayton Public Schools.......ccoooiiiiiii 3,850

Source: Dayton Arca Chamber of Commerce
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Property Value, Building Permits and Banking Activity

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Building Permits

Total Total Real Property Banking
Permits Estimated Value Assessed Estimated Activity
Year Issued(l) of Buildings(1) Value(2) Actual Value Bank Deposits(3)
1990 5,073 $ 107,848,891 $ 4,372,712,670 $ 12,493,464,771 $ 5,442,750,000
1991 5,203 101,454,393 5,396,551,890 15,418,719,686 6,052,080,155
1692 5,526 110,702,171 5,440,856,110 15,545,303,171 4,068,798,000
1993 5,081 122,933,423 5,479,982,870 15,657,093,914 3,834,335,000
1994 5,929 179,422,999 5,780,438,590 16,515,538,829 4,034,766,000
1995 6,245 160,012,514 5,799,374,750 16,569,642,143 3,995,114,000
1996 6,015 181,851,306 5,907,015,710 16,877,187,743 3,899,145,000
1997 5,957 163,934,037 6,585,728,000 18,816,365,714 3,530,314,000
1998 5,719 172,963,112 6,635,726,270 18,961,321,96() 3,264,705,000
1999 5,203 353,279,710 6,771,709,230 19,347,740,657 2,994,378,000

(1) Source: Montgomery County Building Regulations Department, permits issued in predominantly unincorporated localities

(2) Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Ottice - Department of Finance
(3) Source: Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland

Principal Taxpayers

December 31, 1999

Percentage of

Total County
Assessed Assessed
Company Taxes Value (1) Valuation
Dayton Power & Light Co. $30,641,210 $383,140,225 4.56%
Ohio Bell Telephone Co. 8,249,880 315,679,801 3.76%
City of Dayton 2,126,355 60,774,757 0.72%
NCR 1,867,886 48,971,829 0.58%
Dayton Mall Venture Inc. 1,855,710 43,897,347 0.52%
General Motors Corp. 1,825,880 43,492,859 0.52%
Huber Investment Corp. 1,453,520 47,484,686 0.57%
General Telephone Co. of Ohio 1,286,444 47,676,158 0.57%
Kettering Medical Center 674,565 18,988,214 0.23%
Delphi Automaotive 674,079 20,905,210 0.25%
Total Real and
Personal Property Valuation 1,031,011,086 12.28%
All Others 7,372,089,057 87.72%
Total Assessed Valuation $8,403,100,143 100.00%

Source: Montgomery County Auditor's Office - Department of Finance

(1) Value used for this disclosure is that upon which the 1999 levy was based.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Synopsis of Insurance

December 31, 1999

Policy Annual
Carrier Number Policy Period Coverage Limits Deductible Premium
Alcohol. Drug Addiction and Mental Health Services Board:
Cincinnati Insurance Co. CPP5003369AWR 9/1/99-9/1/02 Employee Dishonesty $100,000 $0 $2,179
liquipment $222,000 $250
Comprehensive $500,000 Per Incident %0
General $1,000,000 Aggregate
Personal & Advertising £500,000
Cincinnati Insurance Co. CCC4402148 9/1/99-9/1/02 Umbrella Liability $5,000,000 $0 $1,750
Relance Insurance Co. DN2O6383% 2/1/99-2/1/00 Directors & Officers $2,000,000 $2,500 $12,657
Liability

Board Of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities:

Nationwide Insurance EGL0005739 2/1/99-2/1/00 Acts or Omissions $2,000,000 Per Incident 30 $3,278
$5,000,000 Aggregate
Nationwide Insurance EGIL.0005739 2/1/99-2/1/00 Umbrella Liability $3,000,000 Per Incident 50 $12,725
Acts or Omissions $3,000,000 Per Incident
Nationwide [nsurance CA0005739 8/24/99-8/24/00  Automobile Liability $5,000,000 Per Accident 50 $47,902
Auto Medigal $5,000 Per Person $0
Uninsured Motorist $5,000,000
Motor Vehicle $1,000,000
Collision $250
Comprehensive $250
Nationwide Insurance IMC0005739 8/24/99-8/24/00  Inland Marine $20,787 Equipment $0 $177
Fidelity and Deposit CCP0020532 1/29/99-1/29/02  Forgery or Alteration $10,000 $1.000 $3,077
Company of Maryland Theft, Disappearance $5,000 Inside $1,000
and Destruction $5,000 Outside £1.,000
Employee Dishonesty $10,000 Per Incident $1,000

Other County Agencies:

U.S. Fidelity and Guaranty Co. DREZ2099699 12/31/99-12/31/01  General Liability, Stop Gap,  $5,000,000 $250,000 $127,050
Employee Benefits Liability,
Law Enforcement Liability,
Hospital Liability,
Professional Liability

U.5. Fidelity and Guaranty Co. DRE2099799 12/31/99-12/31/01 Public Officials $5,000,000 $250,000 $40,290
Liability

U.S. Fidelity and Guaranty Co. DRE2099699 12/31/99-12/31/01  Automobile Liability $5,000,000 $250,000 $68,230

Lexington Insurance Co. 8893177 12/31/99-12/31/00  Excess Liability $20,000,000 n/a $101,750
for all the above
coverages

Royal Ins. Co. PSU006692 4/1/97-12/31/00  Property, Boiler & $342,669,000 $£100,000  $222,734
Machinery,

Catastrophic Auto
Physical Damage
American Intemational Group 8576185 12/31/98-12/31/01 Crime $1.,000,000 50 $26,580

Source:
Montgomery County Risk Management Department, ADAMHS Board, Board of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

Miscellaneous Statistics

December 31, 1999

Population Rank Among Ohio Counties
Elevation (ft. above sea level)
Universities & Colleges

School Systems

LIDTATIES . ittty e e e e e e e et e e e e e eeeee e araaaeaeeaenen

4th
755
11
38
21

Recreation

Softball/Bascball

SWITIIITUIIZ . ..o e ettt s e e tr e es s s et s e etbs s e e enee e e

U= 1198 OO OO PO U U U USSR

Indoor sports complexes seating 5,500 t0 13,500...........cccoviiiiviree e
Bicycle Trails.......oooi ittt e,
Sources: Various including the Dayton/Montgomery County Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc.
and the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission

15 centers

25 public

21 private

100 diamonds
27 pools &
swim clubs

85 public courts
36 indoor courts
5

58 miles

Health Care

Hospitals. ..o

Physicians per 100,000
Hospital Beds per 100,000

10
296
583

Enrollment in
Colleges &
Universities

Sinclair Community College
Wright State University
University of Dayton

Institutions with Fewer Than 1000 Enrolled (Eight)........oooovioviioeiiieieeeee

20,698
15,702

10,183
2,437

(1999) Transportation

International Airport
AL LINES. oo e s et e be et aesb e s sae s easaenteesbeeaesaaees

FHIEhES PET day ...ttt et b e ea e aesear e

Other ATTTIEIdS. ..ot er e
Truck Companies with terminals
Bus Lines-Arrivals per day
RAIITOAAS. ..ot

1
11
85

5
26
23

2

November 1999
Elections

Total Number of Registered Voters
Voters in '99 General Election
Percentage of Registered Voters Voting
Source: Montgomery County Board of Elections

351,531
81,849
23.28%

Sanitary Engineering

No. Miles of Sewer Lines
No. Miles of Water Lines
No. of Sewer Customers
No. Water Customers

Source: Montgomery County Sanitary Engineering

1,163
1,155
76,990
78,244

Solid Waste
Management

No. Tons of Solid Waste Transferred to Landfill...........oooovrvioveiieeeeesieeeeeee

Source: Montgomery County Solid Waste Management

278,102
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88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

MONTGOMERY COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITION

MONTGOMERY COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desarn Poabbtt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
AUGUST 10, 2000
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